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Asia, especially China, is rising towards a historical
economic and cultural renaissance. The new era provides
iImmense business potential to companies which can bring
good lifestyle and values to the region.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
EERE

Your Board of Directors is pleased to announce that a
consolidated profit of HK$27.9 million was recorded for the
year ended December 31, 2010. Turnover of the Group
increased by 29.3% to HK$1,604.2 million.

In the course of 2010, our markets had fully recovered from
the global tsunami and posted strong economic growth in
GDPs and consumption. The products we represented were
segments that benefitted from this recovery.

As mentioned in my statement in last year, bold and prudent
overhauls of operations and trimming of expenses resulted
in profits of all our major business segments with
substantially improved gross profit and efficiency. These
achievements were made despite a 16.8% reduction of staff,
a tribute to a very professional and productive workforce.
The focus on our core businesses enhanced the return on
our investment and growth.

Our motor car business performed very well in terms of sales
and profit growth. This was achieved with the new and
immensely successful Ferrari 458 ltalia and California
models. Maserati business also did well with its new two-
door models. We are on the way to have another very
successful year with a full year delivery of the 458 Italia and
introduction of the Ferrari FF and other new models. The
dealerships in Mainland China also performed satisfactorily
and we expect continuous growth there. We shall also see
our after sales service business to be more profit-generating
with newly installed ADP software and strong management.
The motor yacht business was able to generate a small profit
and we are positive about its promising development.

Qur electrical appliances business achieved satisfactory
result, especially the ‘MHI’" air-conditioning products and
the ‘Alpine” OEM car entertainment business in Malaysia
and Singapore. We are also entering the fast-growing market
of energy-saving air-conditioning and LED lighting systems;
providing energy efficiency solutions, involving our own
brand ‘Bodysonic’. We expect exciting growth in this sector.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERRE

During the year we terminated the ‘Playboy’ licensing
business and focused on developing our own ‘V-one’ men'’s
fashion brand. This decision proved to be correct with good
improvements in our own brand. Our joint venture fashion
watch distribution business continued to improve. We shall
see continuous progress of these fashion apparels and
accessories businesses.

The Group’s financial position was further strengthened
within the year with positive cash flow from operations and
completion of the placing of convertible loan note agreement.
It is always our priority to continue improvement of our
financial strength.

With the announcement of the 12th Five-Year Plan of China
to further stimulate consumers’ income and spending, to
speed up the development of motor car business and
energy-saving technologies, we are confident of the
continuous growth of our major business sectors in the
coming years. We foresee an immediate and long term
increase in the number of high net worth individuals and
the middle class who will accelerate the consumer market
expansion in our region, especially in Mainland China and
Hong Hong. We are working on further development of our
car dealerships and fashion retailing network in these
markets, together with the provision of energy-saving
solutions.

Whilst we are very confident of the future prospects of our
markets and our businesses, we are monitoring closely the
Japanese earthquake and the possible impact of the nuclear
leakage catastrophy on our electrical appliance business.
At this moment, no substantial adverse effect is observed.
We do wish the best for the Japanese people and the
imminent recovery of their economy.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFEH|E

As always, we are very blessed to have well-experienced, —AG @ EEXRRMEEALHLEE « 7om
passionate and competent staff working in harmony to grow ~ ZG « BEBR N AMARKNE T - RAZARE
the Group. On behalf of your Board of Directors, | would EEERTER HZFAREBE L 1EH BT
like to express our whole-hearted gratitude and sincere AR « ERFITLEEOUBEE T » BUA
appreciation to our shareholders, bankers and very loyal B2 E °

staff for their most valuable trust, support and contribution.

Dr. Richard Man Fai LEE HITEEFITHAAE
Executive Chairman & CEO EYEEL
Hong Kong, March 28, 2011 F#B - 20113 828H
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GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

SEMERE
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT B¥Tr AT BETr BET
Results E4
Turnover BERE 1,604,161 1,240,716 1,308,229 1,153,201 786,580
Porfit/(loss) from operations e Rr,/ (518) 45,509  (120,474)  (23,699) 4135 27,730
Finance costs BBER (10,228) (9,236) (8,298)  (14,355)  (11,381)
Other non-operating income HiFEE WA 9,273 — — 76021 28,624
Other non-operating expenses HIEE % (5,700)  (19,257)  (18,958)  (15,468)  (25,658)
Share of result of e —FE £ [F
a jointly controlled entity BRI EREE (335) (1,729 — — —
Share of results of associates N — (95) (18)  (1,169) (7,777
Profit/(loss) before tax BEAIEA (E8) 38,519 (150,791)  (50,973) 49,164 11,538
Income tax expenses FTERHAEY (3,034) (399) (8,079) (6,256)  (1,141)
Profit/(loss) for the year AEREF,/ (B#8) 35,485  (151,190)  (59,052) 42,908 10,397
Attributable to: A -
Owners of the Company Vi/NCIE7 YN 27,879  (141,225) (68,869) 35,677 7,114
Non-controlling interests FEIE R b = 7,606 (9,965) 9,817 7,231 3,283
35,485  (151,190)  (59,052) 42,908 10,397
Assets and liabilities EERARE
Total assets BWEFE 858,797 777877 864,775 800,723 721,686
Total liabilities BwEE (592,372) (558,544) (538,874) (397,869) (402,707)
Net assets BEFE 266,425 219,333 325901 402,854 318,979
Equity attributable to owners of AREHEBA
the Company ez 250,437 208,698 305,093 380,378 303,976
Non-controlling interests FEIE R b = 15,988 10,635 20,808 22,476 15,003
Total equity BRER 266,425 219333 325,901 402,854 318,979
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF

OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITIONS

EEENmMREERER

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Results of Operations

For the year ended December 31, 2010, the Group’s
turnover increased from HK$1,240.7 million to HK$1,604.2
million, representing a robust growth of 29.3%. In the wake
of the financial tsunami which faded away in 2009, we are
pleased to see that the consumer market bounced back
relatively quickly. The car division, our major business
segment, operating in both Hong Kong and Mainland China
(Dalian and Nanjing), had a satisfactory year in terms of
turnover growth and financial performance. Furthermore,
we succeeded in the turnaround of our fashion business,
namely our own men’s wear brand “V-one”, which has
shown great improvement and began to report profit in the
fourth quarter of 2010. We remain cautiously optimistic that
this growth momentum can be maintained for the years to
come, providing a solid platform for the Group to grow with
the market.

Gross profit margin for 2010 recorded a marked increase
0f 29.8% to 17.0% (2009: 13.1%). The increased turnover,
together with the refined margin, resulted in a significant
improvement of gross profit in 2010 by HK$110.0 million
or 67.8%, from HK$162.3 million in 2009 to HK$272.3
million in 2010.

During 2010, our other operating income amounted to
HK$26.1 million (2009: HK$5.9 million), including a gain
of HK$16.1 million arising from a waiver of debt granted by
a creditor.

Distribution costs in 2010 were reduced by 10.9% to
HK$91.4 million (2009: HK$102.6 million) whilst
administrative expenses were trimmed down by HK$21.9
million, a 11.7% decrease to HK$165.5 million from
HK$187.4 million last year, representing in aggregate a total
saving of HK$33.1 million in these two core expense
categories. Our adopted practice to review the performance
of our business units by way of variance analyses at monthly
intervals has proven to be a powerful and timely instrument
to enhance revenue and sharpen cost control in all
departments. Rigorous management discipline will be
sustained to ensure that continued cost savings be made
across the Group.

B #5AR R 7 A
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITIONS

BEEENWREEREAR

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Results of Operations (continued)

An impairment loss of HK$5.7 million (2009: HK$6.0
million) was made on our 10% investment in Digital Outdoor
Television (Hong Kong) Limited, based on professional
valuation.

Finance costs of HK$10.2 million were recorded in 2010
(2009: HK$9.2 million), representing a cost of 0.6% of sales
(2009: 0.7%) whilst a loss of HK$0.3 million (2009: HK$1.7
million) was booked being our share of result of a jointly
controlled entity.

During the year, the Group recorded a net gain on disposal
of subsidiaries amounting to HK$9.3 million (2009: nil).

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) is
pleased to report that the profit attributable to the owners of
the Company for the year amounted to HK$27.9 million
(2009: loss of HK$141.2 million), representing a strong
recovery from last year. We have shown marked
improvement in all key performance indices including
turnover, profit margin and net cash flow. Going forward,
our well-established corporate governance team, coupled
with our dynamic yet cost-conscious business team, will
continue developing a healthy business model designed to
bring economic benefits for the future development of the
Group.

Financial Condition and Capital Structure

The Group was financed by a combination of its equity
capital base, cash flow generated from operations and bank
borrowings. As usual, bank and other liabilities were being
met upon their maturities in the normal course of business.

Cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2010 were
HK$189.3 million (2009: HK$152.0 million). A net cash
inflow of HK$24.9 million (2009: net cash outflow of HK$6.1
million) was recorded, representing in aggregate funds
generated from operating, investing and financing activities
in the year.

Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited #1217
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF

OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITIONS
EEENmMREERERUBRRD M

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Financial Condition and Capital Structure
(continued)

The Group had total borrowings at December 31, 2010
amounting to HK$201.3 million (2009: HK$179.5 million).
The Group’s long term gearing ratio stood at 4.8% (2009:
3.0%), based on long term liabilities (excluding deferred
tax) of HK$11.9 million (2009: HK$6.3 million) and owners’
equity of HK$250.4 million (2009: HK$208.7 million). The
current ratio was 1.2 (2009: 1.1), based on current assets
of HK$685.4 million (2009: HK$627.9 million) and current
liabilities of HK$580.3 million (2009: HK$552.2 million).

The Group had trading facilities at December 31, 2010
amounting to HK$324.6 million (2009: HK$326.4 million)
of which HK$237.0 million (2009: HK$226.2 million) was
utilized.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group’s purchases are mainly conducted in Euro and
US Dollar while sales are mainly conducted in HK Dollar
and Renminbi. During the year, the Group entered into
several forward exchange contracts with its bankers in order
to hedge foreign currency transactions and stabilize
purchase cost. There were no outstanding foreign exchange
contracts at December 31, 2010 and 2009.

Pledge of Assets

Certain of the Group’s properties, inventories, cash deposits,
a motor yacht and all assets of a subsidiary were pledged at
year ended 2010 in an aggregate amount of HK$272.9
million (2009: HK$258.9 million) to secure loans and
facilities granted.

Capital Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

The Group had capital commitments of HK$12.6 million at
December 31, 2010 (2009: HK$0.8 million). The Group had
no material contingent liabilities at December 31, 2010 and
2009.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITIONS
BEEENWEEERERMBRRD M

BUSINESS REVIEW
Cars

The business consists mainly of the import, distribution and
after-sales service of Italian “Ferrari” and “Maserati” cars
and spare parts in Hong Kong and Macau. In Mainland
China, we operate “Ferrari” and “Maserati” car dealerships
in Dalian and Nanjing.

Compared to 2009, turnover increased 26.9% to HK$1,239
million as a result of the economic recovery. Car sales
continued to rise in both Hong Kong and China markets
and turnover from maintenance service also recorded an
encouraging increase.

For Ferrari, 2010 was the first full year of production of the
California GT and the Group delivered a total of 85 to
customers. Deliveries of Ferrari’s 12-cylinder Berlinetta
range, the 599 GTB Fiorano and 599 GTO, continued whilst
delivery of the 458 ltalia, the successor to the F430 series,
began in August. The order portfolio for the 458 Italia closed
at 327 at year end with an approximate four-year waiting
list. We are proud to continuously achieve a market share
of over 50% in both Sports and GT segments in Hong Kong.

Awareness of the Maserati brand achieved another boost in
Hong Kong in April due to the launch of the new two-door
convertible, the GranCabrio. Deliveries started during the
second quarter and 19 cars had been delivered to clients
by the end of the year. Demand for Maserati’'s GranTurismo,
GranTurismo S and GranTurismo S automatic remained high.
Meanwhile, more Quattroportes (Maserati’s four-door model)
were delivered during the year and the model continued to
be successful in the Hong Kong luxury sedan market.

Total workshop service turnover for the full year grew by
33% to HK$82.3 million as compared with 2009. This was
primarily due to an expansion of our service facilities in Hong
Kong, an increase in the Ferrari/Maserati pre-delivery
inspection business which we operate in Shanghai and the
introduction of a new car dealer management system-ADP.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF

OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITIONS

EEENmREERERMBARR D M

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Cars (continued)

Turnover of our used car business grew by 20% in 2010.
This was due to a combination of factors including the
opening of a dedicated used car showroom in Ap Lei Chau
in May and the recruitment of a team of used car sales
specialists.

Our dealership business in Dalian and Nanjing, which covers
the territories of five provinces, namely Liaoning, Jilin,
Heilongjiang, Jiangsu and Anhui, has developed well and
both turnover and financial performance continued to
improve satisfactorily. In anticipation of the pace of
expansion in this area, more resources would be allocated
to reap greater economic benefits from these dealerships.

Electrical Appliances

The business consists of marketing and distribution of a
wide range of consumer and commercial air-conditioning
and home appliances products, namely “MHI” (Mitsubishi
Heavy Industries of Japan), “Bodysonic” and “GREE”,
audio-visual products of “Rogers” and “Bodysonic” and
“Alpine” car electronics.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITIONS

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Electrical Appliances (continued)

After a difficult 2009, turnover in this segment recorded a
growth of 39.2%, from HK$177.2 million in 2009 increased
to HK$246.7 million in 2010. The restructuring and cost
optimization programs, started in 2009, has proven to be
successful and overall financial performance was greatly
improved.

Demand and sales of air-conditioning products and audio
visual products in Hong Kong remained strong throughout
the year with steady profit margins, leading to a good result
at year end.

Our electrical appliances business in Singapore and
Malaysia also recorded a significant growth in both turnover
and net profit in 2010. The success was mainly due to the
newly developed OEM car audio business and the
continuous steady growth of air-conditioning markets in
these regions.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF

OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITIONS
BEENRREEXRER MBS

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Fashion Apparels and Accessories

Subsequent to the implementation of operational efficiency
and cost optimization programs, the business performance
of our own men’s wear brand “V-one” steadily improved
during the year. Non-performing shops were closed and
headcounts were further trimmed. We focused on our sales
network and presence in Eastern China and more shops
were opened in new towns of Shanghai and adjacent second
tier cities. As a result of the above actions, the financial
performance and condition of V-one continued to improve
and expansion of this business is considered appropriate.
Accordingly, a new president of V-one was appointed in
December 2010 who has extensive experience in China’s
retail market and we are confident to achieve rapid growth
of the V-one business in the coming years.

Since the formation of a jointly controlled entity with the
Italian Binda Group in February 2010, our watch business
operated with good progress and in the right direction in
Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China. Wholesales in both
Hong Kong and Mainland China improved significantly in
the second half of year 2010, while business in Macau
continued to perform well due to the influx of travellers from
Mainland China.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITIONS
BEEENWEEERERMBRRD M

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Other Business

In addition to the above key businesses, the Group also
engages in the distribution of motor yachts in Hong Kong
and Mainland China. This includes the ltalian brand
“Pershing” and Taiwanese brand “Horizon”. The Group’s
Horizon yacht business in Mainland China was re-configured
to non-exclusive status in early 2010 with a sales point at
the Group’s Shenzhen office.

The yacht business in Hong Kong as well as Mainland China
has seen a gradual recovery during 2010 after the severe
downturn in 2009. One Horizon 97 yacht and one Pershing
50 yacht were delivered during 2010.

HUMAN RESOURCES

At the end of 2010, the total number of employees of the
Group, excluding associates, was 467 (2009: 561),
representing a 16.8% decrease in headcount. This is mainly
due to our exercise of streamlining of operations during the
year in our three core business segments.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF

OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITIONS
BEENMEECERBE RV DN

HUMAN RESOURCES (continued)

The management is committed to staff motivation, training
and development to ensure that the standard of our
employees remains stable and competitive in the
marketplace. Several leadership training seminars for our
managerial and supervisory staff were conducted during the
year to enhance their skills and spirits of co-operation. With
the continuous organizational improvements, led by our
capable management team, we are confident that our
employees will grow with the Company so as to bring
economic benefits to the Group in the years to come.

PROSPECTS

While the Group will continue to grow as one of the leading
lifestyle products distribution companies, our business is
moving forward steadily and healthily with great confidence
in the continuous improvement of the Asian economies for
the years to come.

Our order portfolio for “Ferrari” continues to grow healthily
with a lead time of up to four years, whilst the profile of
“Maserati” will continue to broaden in 2011. Both brands
are expected to introduce exciting new models in 2011 to
further expand their market dominance and reach for new
clients.

For the electrical appliances business, we will work closely
with our major suppliers such as “MHI” and “Apline” in
order to improve our market share and market positioning
through effective marketing and sales programs. We will
continue to explore development opportunities for our own
“Bodysonic” brand with new energy saving and green
technologies.

Our own men’s wear brand “V-one” has performed
particularly well in the last quarter of 2010. With such
momentum, we have now set a relatively long term target
for this business by which we foresee a significant
enhancement of both sales volume and profitability in the
next couple of years.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITIONS
BEEENmREERARVBRR DK

PROSPECTS (continued) B2 @)

In August 2010, the Company was
awarded “Character Company
Award 2010”7, an award which

o I 2
aims to recognize the outstanding " 2010/11
performance of corporations in six Carl ngcompany

dimensions. In March 2011. the CHARACTER COMPAHY Awarded by The Hong KODg Cczun/cﬂ of §/C_>Cla| Service
Company was awarded the Céring SifREmEs ARTERSE

Company Logo 2010/11, launched by the Hong Kong 72010987 = AR B)EMEE [2010FEEHE
Council of Social Service. The Caring Company Logo is HAmIEEAE| - ZBHEEEXRBLEERNSH
awarded to companies which demonstrate good corporate  HEZ£EHRIR - R2011F3 8 - ARBEEE
citizenship. It aims to promote corporate social responsibility Bt @RIEH S #H1T22010/11FERRER
through caring for community, employees and the \%‘%*Tuu HARBEEGIE TR
environment. Both the Company and our staff are very proud ~ ARBEZ ¥ BEFBEEE R - BEN
to receive these two honors. RIE - KMERESEHERE - ARFRET
HEBRZMERERRER

Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited #5217 (£8) BR 2 A 1
Annual Report 2010 % 9



20

EENEEEEAERN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Richard Man Fai LEE, BSB, MBA, DBA, aged 54, the
Executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, is the son of Mr. Wing Sum LEE, the former
Director and Honorary Chairman of the Company and Ms.
Kam Har YUE, a Non-executive Director and the elder
brother of Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE, an Executive Director of
the Company. He is the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
of China Premium Lifestyle Enterprise, Inc., an associated
company of the Group.

Dr. Lee is responsible for formulating the Group’s overall
strategic planning and business development. Dr. Lee has
31 years’ experience in marketing consumer products and
has been with the Group for 27 years. He has a bachelor’s
degree and a master’s degree in business administration
from the University of Minnesota.

In September 2006, Dr. Lee was bestowed the title of
“Commander of the Order of the Star of Italian Solidarity”.
In March 2009, Dr. Lee was awarded the 11th World
Outstanding Chinese Award and the Honorary Doctorate of
Business Administration from International American
University.

Jeff Man Bun LEE, BSc, MSc, University of Michigan, MSc,
Stanford University, aged 52, has been an Executive Director
of the Company since January 2002. He is the son of Mr.
Wing Sum LEE and Ms. Kam Har YUE and the younger
brother of Dr. Richard Man Fai LEE. He is responsible for
strategic planning and development of new projects of the
Group. Prior to joining the Group, he was a System Software
Specialist at the Research and Development Department of
Apple Computer International Limited for 5 years. He had
also been actively involved in the Group’s business from
1991 to 1997 prior to his current appointment.

Tik Tung WONG, FCCA, CPA (Practising), aged 54, has been
an Executive Director of the Company since June 2004 and
is the Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary, authorized
representative and a member of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. He is also the Chief Financial
Officer and Corporate Secretary of China Premium Lifestyle
Enterprise, Inc., an associated company of the Group. He
is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is an INED of
Chi Cheung Investment Company, Limited. Mr. Wong was
an INED of China Energy Development Holdings Limited
during the last three years.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

EENSEEBEASRN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Boon Seng TAN, M.A., Cambridge University, aged 55, has
been an INED of the Company since April 1999 and is a
member of the Audit Committee and the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Tan is the
chairman and managing director of Lee Hing Development
Limited and a non-executive director of Genting Hong Kong
Limited, both companies are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). He is also the executive director of IGB
Corporation Berhad, a company listed on the stock exchange
of Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia. He also holds directorships in
many other companies

Ying Kwan CHEUNG, FCCA, CPA, aged 51, has been an
INED of the Company since November 2005 and is the
Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company. He is the finance
manager of Carling Technology Limited and has over 24
years of experience in financial management for a number
of corporations and listed companies. He is a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He is an INED of Tian Shan
Development (Holding) Limited.

Peter Pi Tak YIN, BA, MBA, PhD, aged 57, was appointed
as an INED and a member of the Audit Committee of the
Company in September 2009. He is the Customer Service
Vice President of Federal Express Corporation now based
in Hong Kong. He has been with Federal Express for over
26 years with ample experience in operational management,
marketing and communications aspects and stationed in
Singapore, Japan and Memphis, Tennessee, U.S.A.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Kam Har YUE, aged 78, was involved in the policy making
of the Group from 1962 to December 1989. She has been
redesignated as a Non-executive Director of the Company
since then to scrutinise the performance of management of
the Company. She has over 36 years’ experience in trading
and distribution of consumer products. Ms. Yue is the
spouse of Mr. Wing Sum LEE, who is the former Director
and Honorary Chairman of the Company and the mother of
Dr. Richard Man Fai LEE and Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE, both of
whom are Executive Directors of the Company.
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EENEEEEAERN

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Herbert ADAMCZYK, aged 70, is the Managing Director of
Technorient Limited, a subsidiary of our Group, and the
Director and Chief Operating Officer of China Premium
Lifestyle Enterprise, Inc., an associated company of the
Group. He has 46 years’ experience in the automotive trade
in Hong Kong. He has a motor engineering background and
has been with the Technorient Group for 28 years. He is an
Executive Committee member of the Motor Traders
Association of Hong Kong.

John NEWMAN, aged 43, is the Deputy Managing Director
of Technorient Limited. He has 23 years’ experience with
blue chip sports and luxury car manufacturers and
importers, and was a director of a successful motor racing
team in Europe. He holds a Diploma in Business and
Finance, is a qualified pilot and a member of the Institute
of the Motor Industry in the UK. Experienced in sales,
marketing, distribution, dealer development, media
communications and customer relationship management,
he has been with the Group since 2005.

Powell Kwok Chuen CHEUNG, MBA, aged 47, is the Deputy
Director of the Group. He is also the directors of various
subsidiaries of the Group. He has 22 years’ sales and
marketing experience in both industrial and consumer
products. He has been with the Group for 19 years.

Terence Po Sheung WONG, aged 59, is the General Manager
of Human Resources and Administration Department and
|.T. Department of the Group. He has 40 years’ experience
in property management, distribution management,
after-sales services and logistics management. He had been
with the Group for 6 years from 1991 to 1997 prior to his
current appointment.

Kwang Liang CHIA, BSBA (Hons), aged 50, is the Director
and General Manager of the subsidiary companies of the
Group in Singapore. He also oversees the operation of the
companies of the Group in Malaysia. He has over 24 years’
corporate and financial management experience and has
been with the Group for 17 years. Prior to joining the Group,
he worked in KPMG Peat Marwick as an auditor for 5 years
and a multinational company for 3 years. He is also an officer
of the Singapore Arm Forces.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERS

The Directors present to shareholders this annual report
and audited financial statements for the financial year ended
December 31, 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company.

Its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the import,
marketing and distribution of cars, electrical appliances and
fashion apparels and accessories. The activities and other
particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note
49 to the financial statements.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Details of segmental information are set out in note 6 to the
financial statements.

GROUP RESULTS

The consolidated income statement is set out on page 52
and further analysis is given in the accompanying notes to
the financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend (2009: nil) for the year ended December 31, 2010.
No interim dividend was paid during the year (2009: nil).

GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
page 8.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ESERE

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 35 to the financial
statements. Information about the share options of the
Company and details of movements in the share options of
the Company during the year are set out in the “Share Option
Information” section in this Annual Report and in note 47
to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 57 to 58 of this
Annual Report and in note 36 to the financial statements
respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group and of the Company during the year are set out
in note 16 to the financial statements.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other
donations of HK$254,000 (2009: HK$803,000).

BORROWINGS

Details of the Group’s borrowings are set out in note 32 to
the financial statements. No interest was capitalised by the
Group during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for 51.2% of
the Group’s purchases during the year, 18.6% being
attributable to the largest supplier. The percentage of
turnover attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
is less than 30% during the year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

(continued)

As far as the Directors are aware, no Director of the
Company, their associates or any shareholder (who to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) has interest in the Group’s five
largest suppliers.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS'’
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There was no contract of significance between the Company
or one of its subsidiary companies, and a controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries for the year ended
December 31, 2010.

There was no contract of significance for the provision of
services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries for the year
ended December 31, 2010.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company who held office during the
year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors
Dr. Richard Man Fai LEE
(Executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE
Mr. Tik Tung WONG

Non-executive Director
Ms. Kam Har YUE

INEDs

Mr. Boon Seng TAN

Mr. Ying Kwan CHEUNG
Mr. Peter Pi Tak YIN
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DIRECTORS (continued)

In accordance with Bye-law No. 99 of the Bye-laws of the
Company, Messrs. Jeff Man Bun LEE and Tik Tung WONG
will retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting and, being eligible, shall offer themselves
for re-election.

The INEDs are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws. The Company
has received from each INED a confirmation of his
independence pursuant to the independence assessing
factors guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”). The Company considers the INEDs to be
independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who is proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting has an unexpired
service contract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Dr. Richard Man Fai LEE entered into a service agreement
with the Company for a term of 3 years commencing from
April 1, 2002 and the appointment continues thereafter
unless and until terminated by either party giving to the other
6 months’ notice in writing or pay-in-lieu.

Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE entered into a service agreement with
the Company for a term of 1 year commencing from January
21, 2002 and the appointment continues thereafter unless
and until terminated by either party giving to the other 3
months’ notice in writing or pay-in-lieu.

Save as disclosed, there is no other Director’s service
contract which is exempted under Rule 13.69 of the Listing
Rules or not determinable within one year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

At December 31, 2010, the interests and short positions of
each Director and chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
352 of the SFO; or are required, pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies,
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange are
as follows:

(a) Beneficial interests and short positions in the shares
of the Company at December 31, 2010:

ESRESER

R2010F12A31H * ARRZFEEREETT
BABRARBSRAERAER LB (EXREH
N EEER] ([FH KBS R ]) EXVER) 2 &
5 ARG MEEETREREESFMPE
&P 35216 BE AZ R - SiRIE ETHAF]
ERRTESRPIZETRIENSARR R

BTz EEmMORR T

(@)

M2010F12831H @ RARARIRMHZE
WERMKRE

Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each (“Share(s)”) (note 1)
SREERY%0.02TEERKRMD ((RA1) BE (M

Personal Family Corporate Total
Director interests interests interests interests
== & AR Rk = ARER R
Dr. Richard Man Fai LEE 279,718,625 — 582,801,420 862,520,045
et (note 2)
(B 7E2)
Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE 2,831,400 — 591,475,730 594,307,130
W E (notes 2 & 3)
(MiE2%3)
Mr. Tik Tung WONG 3,375,000 — — 3,375,000
ERER LA
Mr. Peter Pi Tak YIN 200 — — 200
FRELE
Ms. Kam Har YUE 31,258,295 — 582,801,420 614,059,715
ceBExt (note 2)
(BFEE2)
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ESERE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

(continued)

(b)

Notes:

1.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution duly passed by
shareholders of the Company at the special general
meeting held on February 12, 2010, each of the then
issued and unissued shares of HK$0.10 each in the
share capital of the Company was subdivided into 5
new ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each.

The 582,801,420 Shares are held by Modern Orbit
Limited, which is wholly owned by Cyber Tower (PTC)
Inc. (formerly known as Cyber Tower Inc.) as trustee
of The W S Lee Unit Trust. 99% of the units of The W
S Lee Unit Trust are held by a discretionary trust of
which Mr. Wing Sum LEE’s family members including
Ms. Kam Har YUE, Dr. Richard Man Fai LEE and Mr.
Jeff Man Bun LEE are the beneficiaries. The remaining
1% of the units of The W S Lee Unit Trust is held by
Skylink International Asset Corporation, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and owned
by Ms. Kam Har YUE, Dr. Richard Man Fai LEE and
Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE. All of Ms. Kam Har YUE, Dr.
Richard Man Fai LEE and Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE are
directors.

The 591,475,730 Shares included 8,674,310 Shares
which is held by Fisherman Enterprises Inc., a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and
wholly owned by Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE.

All interests in the Shares are long positions. None of

the Directors held any short position in the Shares.

Beneficial interests and short positions in underlying
shares of equity derivatives of the Company at
December 31, 2010 are disclosed in the section
headed “Share Option Information” of this Annual
Report.

BEECRSER B

(b)

—_

m
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#%582,801,4208% % 7 B8 Modern Orbit
Limited¥$ A ° Modern Orbit Limited
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Tower Inc.) fEA&The W S Lee Unit Trust
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERS

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

(continued)

(c) Beneficial interests and short positions in shares in
associated corporations at December 31, 2010:

Associated corporations in
which shares or equity

EEzESRTE @)

(c) M2010%F 128318 » RIEEHEE 2 IR M)
CESED AR

Number of shares
or amount of equity

interests held
or interested in

interests are held or interested BESEE Class and/or description of
Director BEQEERGD ZBRBEER shares/interests
Ex RAES 2 BB EE RAESHE R EEEHRHER
Ms. Kam Har YUE Rogers Entertainment 34,335 Non-voting deferred shares
REBEXT International Limited BERERRLR
EETREERARDR
Shinwa Engineering Company, 3,850,000 Non-voting deferred shares
Limited BEZERELER
EMIEBRAA
Wo Kee Hong Limited 8,900 Non-voting deferred shares
MR BEXEERAA (note 1) BERERRLR
(HE)
Wo Kee Services Limited 1 Non-voting deferred share
M BeERBER LA (note 2) BREERTR
(f5E2)
Notes: B 5T

1. The 8,900 shares include 8,500 shares held by Mr.
Wing Sum LEE, the spouse of Ms. Kam Har YUE.

2. The 1 share is held by Mr. Wing Sum LEE, the spouse
of Ms. Kam Har YUE.

All interests in the shares are long positions. None of
the Directors held any short position in the shares.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN ASSETS
AND/OR ARRANGEMENT

At December 31, 2010, save as those disclosed in “Directors’
Interests in Contracts” in this Directors’ Report, none of the
Directors had any other direct or indirect interest in any
assets which have been acquired or disposed of by or leased
to any members of the Group, or were proposed to be
acquired or disposed of by or leased to any member of the
Group.

Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited #5217 (£8) BR 2 A
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ESERE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN ASSETS
AND/OR ARRANGEMENT (continued)

At December 31, 2010, save as those disclosed in “Directors’
Interests in Contracts” in this Directors’ Report, there is no
other contract or arrangement subsisting in which a Director
was materially interested and which was significant in
relation to the business of the Group as a whole.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There was no contract of significance in relation to the Group
business, to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director had, whether directly or
indirectly, a material interest subsisting at the end of the
year or at any time during the year ended December 31,
2010.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors of the Company (other than INEDs) is
interested in any business apart from the Company’s
business, which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the Company’s business.

CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTE

Details of the convertible loan note issued by the Company
are shown in note 33 to the financial statements.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS

Save as disclosed below and in the section headed
“Directors’ Interests in Securities” in this Directors’ Report,
at December 31, 2010, so far as is known to the Directors,
no other person had, or was deemed or taken to have an
interest or short position of 5% or more of the interests in
the Shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO:

EEREECEGR HEH@®
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS'’ FTERERER @)
INTERESTS (continued)
Number of Approximate %
underlying shares of of the total
equity derivatives issued Shares
Shareholder Number of Shares HERASTETA HERITROAE
' i =] ZHEBRGOEE ZEBHE DL
Modern Orbit Limited 582,801,420 — 25.43%
(note 1)
(MF3E1)
Cyber Tower (PTC) Inc. 582,801,420 — 25.43%
(note 1)
(MF5ELD)
HSBC International Trustee 582,801,420 — 25.43%
Limited (notes 1 & 2)
GEIVE)
Mr.\Wing Sum LEE (note 3) 614,059,715 15,820,000 27.48%
TR (H5E3)
Ms. Yong YANG (note 4) 594,307,130 16,820,000 26.67%
okt (M 5E4)
Notes: B 5
1. The 582,801,420 Shares are held by Modern Orbit Limited 1. 7%582,801,4200% 8% {5 BaModern Orbit Limited

which is wholly owned by Cyber Tower (PTC) Inc. as trustee
of The W S Lee Unit Trust. 99% of the units of The W S Lee
Unit Trust are held by a discretionary trust of which Mr. Wing
Sum LEE’s family members including Ms. Kam Har YUE,
Dr. Richard Man Fai LEE and Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE are
among the beneficiaries. The remaining 1% of the units of
The W S Lee Unit Trust is held by Skylink International Asset
Corporation, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands and owned by Ms. Kam Har YUE, Dr. Richard Man
Fai LEE and Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE. All of Dr. Richard Man
Fai LEE, Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE and Ms. Kam Har YUE are
Directors of the Company. The 582,801,420 Shares held by
Modern Orbit Limited duplicates with each of the
582,801,420 Shares held by Cyber Tower (PTC) Inc., HSBC
International Trustee Limited, Mr. Wing Sum LEE, and Ms.
Yong YANG as set out in this section.

HSBC International Trustee Limited is the trustee of the
discretionary trust which holds 99% of the units of The W S
Lee Unit Trust.

Mr. Wing Sum LEE is the spouse of Ms. Kam Har YUE, a
non-executive Director of the Company.

Ms. Yong YANG is the spouse of Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE, an
executive Director of the Company.

78 > Modern Orbit Limited 1 Cyber Tower
(PTC) Inc.fEAThe W S Lee Unit TrustZ {55

ANEEYER - The WS Lee Unit Trustz99%
ESBNA—HEEERFEE  EFFX
REEZREKE (BEFBERSELL - F
XEBIETRENWSEE) RZERERIR T
A o The WS Lee Unit TrustEL 88 1% E £ B 7
F Skylink International Asset Corporation#F
B ZAARRBEZESHMKY - AR
SEZLT  FNEBLINEXWhREHS -

ENEEL FEXWERERREELTHAA
NATESE o fAModern Orbit Limited¥s 4 2
582,801,420/% i {5 5 5l B2 1 AR #819 Pr il 2
Cyber Tower (PTC) Inc. » HSBC International
Trustee Limited + ZEKFRICERIGIKZLTHE
2582,801,4200% % 17 & & -

HSBC International Trustee Limited 2% & The
WS Lee Unit Trust 99% £ & B fi 2 2155
ZXEFEAN °
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS (continued)

All interests in Shares and underlying shares of equity
derivatives of the Company are long positions. None of the
substantial shareholders held any short positions in the
Shares or underlying shares of equity derivatives of the
Company.

PUBLIC FLOAT

At the date of this Annual Report, based on information that
is publicly available to the Company, the Directors
acknowledge that more than 25% of the issued share capital
of the Company is held by the public.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

The Company and its subsidiaries have not repurchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s securities during
the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the laws in Bermuda although there
is no restriction against such rights under the laws in
Bermuda.

AUDITORS

The financial statements for the year were audited by HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng who will retire at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment. There is no change in auditors of the
Company in the preceding three years.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Dr. Richard Man Fai LEE
Executive Chairman & CEO

Hong Kong, March 28, 2011
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TRERHRE

Maintaining an effective and solid corporate governance
framework is one of the top priorities of the Company. This
includes informing our shareholders of our corporate
practices in our Annual Report. We have complied with all
the provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules throughout the year ended December 31,
2010, except for deviation from Code Provision A.2.1 which
is explained in the following relevant paragraphs.

The corporate governance principles of the Company
emphasize a quality board, sound internal control, and
transparency and accountability to all shareholders.

A. DIRECTORS
A.1 The Board

We are governed by the Board which assumes
the responsibility for leadership and control of
the Company. Our Directors are collectively
responsible for promoting the success of the
Company by directing and supervising the affairs
of the Company.

The Board meets regularly, normally four times
each year at approximately once every three
months and additional meetings will be arranged
if and when necessary. Notice of each regular
Board meeting will be given to all Directors at
least fourteen days before the meeting. Special
Board meetings will be held as and when
necessary. Matters on transactions where
Directors are considered having conflict of
interests or material interests will not be dealt
with by way of written resolutions and a separate
Board meeting shall be held where INEDs who
have no material interests shall be present in the
meeting. In addition, Directors considered having
conflict of interests or material interests in the
matters before the Board are required to declare
their interests and abstain from voting for the
relevant resolution.

REF— AR NIBEZ CEEARETIAA R
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXRERBME

A. DIRECTORS (continued)

A.1 The Board (continued)

Appropriate notices are given to all Directors for
attending regular Board meetings and other
meetings. A package containing agenda and all
the relevant information is normally despatched
to the Directors three days in advance of the
relevant meetings.

Board meetings involve the active participation,
either in person or through electronic means of
communication, of a majority of Directors. The
Company Secretary assists the Executive
Chairman in preparing the meeting agenda, and
each Director may request the inclusion of items
in the agenda. Directors are also consulted on
matters to be included in the agenda for all
regular Board meetings.

Minutes of the Board meetings are recorded in
detail and draft minutes are circulated to all
Directors for review and comment before being
approved by the Board immediately following the
meetings. All the minutes of the meetings are
properly kept by the Company Secretary and are
available for inspection by the Directors during
normal office hours.

A. EE»
Al ESE (%)
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TEE

ERHE

A. DIRECTORS (continued)

A.l

A.2

The Board (continued)

The Board met four times in 2010. The
attendance of individual Director at these Board
meetings is as below:

A. EE )
Al EE= (g
010FEEEBRITTI4NE S - &

EENREESFg R HEERN
T

Number of meeting EE Y8 4

Executive Directors: HITEE -

Dr. Richard Man Fai LEE gt 4/4 100%
Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE W E 4/4 100%
Mr. Tik Tung WONG SERE 5 4 474 100%
Non-executive Director: FHEHITESE -

Ms. Kam Har YUE ReBRL 0/4 0%
INEDs: BUFHITEF -

Mr. Boon Seng TAN BRI 2/4 50%
Mr. Ying Kwan CHEUNG ofk JE 3 o A 4/4 100%
Mr. Peter Pi Tak YIN FIEES A 3/4 75%
Average attendance rate T fE & 75%

The Company has also taken out appropriate
insurance cover for our Directors in respect of
legal actions taken against Directors and officers.
The Board reviews the extent of the insurance
cover every year.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates
that the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited #1217

RARBINMREEEREEEERR
NREE R BB EFEEET
BHRERE - EZ2TFRITRE
SAREE o

A2 EFERITHAR

>

e REVET AT AR EA2. TIEAR
= TRETRASNACEER
A ER R — ARKHRE

}

t'»

(@) BRAF
Annual Report 2010 %

35



36

ERERRE

A. DIRECTORS (continued)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

A.2 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

(continued)

Dr. Richard Man Fai LEE is the Executive
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. The Board considers that this structure
will not impair the balance of power and authority
between the Board and the management. This
is because the Board has adopted clear guideline
as to the power and authority of the Board and
the management. There is a guideline as to the
power and duties of Chief Executive Officer. The
details were set out fully in the corporate
governance report in the Company’s 2005 annual
report.

In addition, the Board which comprises
experienced and high caliber individuals meets
regularly to discuss issues and operation of the
Group. The Board believes that this structure is
conducive to strong and consistent leadership,
enabling the Group to make and implement
decisions promptly and efficiently.

As Executive Chairman of the Company,
Dr. Richard Man Fai LEE has to ensure that all
Directors are properly briefed on issues arising
at Board meetings and that Directors receive
adequate information, which must be complete
and reliable, in a timely manner.
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A. EE )
A3 EEEZHEK

A. DIRECTORS (continued)

A.3 Board Composition

Currently, the Board comprises seven Directors,
including three Executive Directors, one Non-
executive Director and three INEDs. The Listing
Rules require every listed issuer to have at least
three INEDs, at least one of whom must have
appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management
expertise. Mr. Ying Kwan CHEUNG, one of the
INEDs, is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Each of the three INEDs has
confirmed his independence in accordance with
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules annually.

Two of the three Executive Directors and the Non-
executive Director are family members. Dr.
Richard Man Fai LEE and Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE,
both of whom are Executive Directors, are the
sons of Ms. Kam Har YUE, a Non-executive
Director and brothers. Save as those disclosed
herein, Board members do not have any family,
financial or business relations with each other.

The biographies of our Directors are set out in
the “Directors and Senior Management Profiles”
section in this Annual Report. Details of the
biography of the Directors seeking re-election at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting to be
held on May 31, 2011 are set out in the circular
issued by the Company sent to our shareholders
together with this Annual Report. The Company
also maintains on its website, http://
www.wokeehong.com.hk, an updated biography
of the Directors.
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A. DIRECTORS (continued)

A.4 Appointments, re-election and removal

of Directors

Non-executive Directors of the Company are
appointed for a specific term of two years, subject
to re-election in accordance with the Bye-laws
of the Company. All Directors, including those
appointed for a fixed term, except for Dr. Richard
Man Fai LEE, the Executive Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, are subject to
the retirement by rotation provisions in the Bye-
laws of the Company. A Director appointed by
the Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
shall hold office until the next general meeting.

According to the Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited
Company Act, 1991, no director holding the
office of chairman or managing director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation as provided in
the Bye-laws of the Company. In order to comply
with Code Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code that
every director should be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years, Dr.
Richard Man Fai LEE, the Executive Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, sent
confirmation to the Company that he would
voluntarily retire from his directorship at future
annual general meetings of the Company at least
once every three years and, being eligible for re-
election, would offer himself for re-election at the
relevant general meetings.
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A. DIRECTORS (continued)

A.4 Appointments, re-election and removal

of Directors (continued)

The Board has not established a Nomination
Committee for reviewing new appointment of
Directors and senior executives and management
succession plan for Executive Directors and
senior executives. Any Director can nominate
potential Director candidate. The whole Board
undertakes the duties collectively of selection and
assessment to ensure all candidates to be
selected and appointed as a Director must be
able to meet the standards set out in Rules 3.08
and 3.09 of the Listing Rules. A candidate who
is to be appointed as an INED should also meet
the independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules.

A.5 Responsibilities of Directors

Each newly appointed Director is provided with
a package of orientation materials setting out the
required duties and responsibilities of Directors
under the Listing Rules and other relevant
statutory requirements of Hong Kong. Newly
appointed Directors are invited to attend a
briefing session on directors’ duties and
responsibilities under laws and regulations
conducted by legal professional. Our Directors
are kept informed on a regular basis on the latest
development of any latest changes to the
regulatory requirements. All our Directors are
encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development seminars and/or
courses to update their skills and knowledge on
the latest development or changes in the relevant
statutes, Listing Rules and corporate governance
practices.
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A. DIRECTORS (continued)

A.5 Responsibilities of Directors (continued)

A.6

The functions of Non-executive Directors have
included the functions as specified in Code
Provision A.5.2(a) to (d) of the CG Code except
for the Code Provision A.5.2(c) of the CG Code
to the extent that the Company does not have a
nomination committee.

The Company has adopted the standard set out
in Appendix 10 - Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”), to the Listing Rules, in relation
to the dealings in securities of the Company by
the Directors and employees of the Group. Having
made specific enquiry of all Directors, during the
year ended December 31, 2010, the Directors
have complied with the standard set out in the
Model Code.

Supply of and access to information

In respect of regular Board meetings, and so far
as practicable in all other cases, an agenda and
accompanying board papers are sent in full to
all Directors in a timely manner and at least three
days before the intended date of a Board
meeting, an Audit Committee meeting or a
Remuneration Committee meeting.

The Board and each Director have separate and
independent access to the Group’s senior
management. All Directors are entitled to have
access to board papers, minutes and related
materials.
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B. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND B. EERSHAEE AENE
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

B.1 The level and make-up of remuneration B.1 ¥ & i F MV K R AH AR

and disclosure

The Remuneration Committee was established
in accordance with the CG Code. The existing
members of the Remuneration Committee are Mr.
Boon Seng TAN, Mr. Ying Kwan CHEUNG, both
of whom are the INEDs and Mr. Tik Tung WONG,
an Executive Director. Mr. Boon Seng TAN is the
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The
terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are adopted with reference to the CG
Code, including the specific duties set out in
Code Provision B.1.3(a) to (f). During the year,
the Remuneration Committee did not hold any
physical meeting and all resolutions were
approved by means of written resolutions.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted a set
of policy and guidelines to govern its
administration in reviewing, considering and
fixing the remuneration packages and benefits
of Directors and senior management of the
Group. During the year 2010, the Remuneration
Committee had fixed the payment schedule of
non-executive Directors’ fee.

Full minutes of the Remuneration Committee
meetings are kept by the Company Secretary.
Draft and final versions of the minutes of the
Remuneration Committee meetings are sent to
all members of the Remuneration Committee for
comments and approval.
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C. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

C.1 Financial reporting

Management shall provide such explanation and
information to the Board as will enable the Board
to make an informed assessment of the financial
and other information put before the Board for
approval.

The Directors are responsible for overseeing all
financial aspects of the Company and for keeping
proper accounting records and preparing
accounts of each financial period, which give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and the results and cash flow for that
period. In preparing the accounts for the year
ended December 31, 2010, the Directors had:

— approved the adoption of all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
which are issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants;

— selected and applied consistently
appropriate accounting policies;

— made judgments and estimates that are
prudent and reasonable; and

— prepared the accounts on the on-going
concern basis.
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C. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT C.

(continued)

BERZE @)

C.1 Financial reporting (continued) C.1 B FS[E R (&)

The Board is accountable to its shareholders for
a clear and balanced assessment of the
Company’s financial position and prospects. In
this regard, the Directors are responsible for
presenting a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment to annual and interim reports, other
price-sensitive announcements and other
financial disclosures required under the Listing
Rules, and reports to regulators as well as to
information required to be disclosed pursuant to
statutory requirements. Financial results of the
Group are announced in a timely manner in
accordance with all statutory requirements,
particularly the timeframe stipulated in Rule
13.49(1) and (6) of the Listing Rules and the
Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing the financial statements of the Group.

The Group’s external auditors are HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng (the “Auditors”). The statement of
the Auditors about their reporting responsibilities
on the financial statements of the Group is set
out on pages 50 to 51 of this Annual Report.

For the year ended December 31, 2010, no
material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon
the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern was reported on by the Auditors.

During the year 2010, the Auditors have
performed audit and non-audit services and their
remuneration in respect of audit and non-audit
services is HK$650,000 and HK$148,000
respectively.
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C. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

(continued)

C.2 Internal controls

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control and
risk management system, which is designed to
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement of management
and financial information and records or against
financial losses or fraud.

The Board has established an on-going process
for identifying, evaluating and managing the
significant risks faced by the Group. The key
procedures that the Group has established and
implemented are summarised as follows:

—  Segregation of duties and functions of the
respective operational departments of the
Group;

— Monitoring the strategic plan and
performance;

— Designing an effective accounting and
information system;

— Reviewing systems and procedures to
identify, measure, manage and control risks
including reputation, legal, credit, market
and operational risks;

— Handling price-sensitive information by
setting out the procedures and policies;

— Updating the internal control manual when
there are changes to business environment
or regulatory guidelines;

— Reviewing by Audit Committee for the
report submitted directly from external
consultants; and

—  Following up with various departments to
ensure timely implementation of the
recommendations, and report the status to
the management periodically.
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C. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

(continued)

C.2 Internal controls (continued)

C.3

The Group is committed to maintaining and
upholding good corporate governance practices
and internal control system. The Group has
continued to engage external consultants to
conduct an annual review and make
recommendations for improvement and
strengthening of the internal control system. Such
review is conducted with reference to the
principles outlined in “Internal Control and Risk
Management - A Basic Framework” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. In respect of the year ended
31 December 2010, the Board considered the
internal control system effective and adequate.
No significant areas of concern which might
affect shareholders were identified.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on
December 31, 1998. The terms of reference of
the Audit Committee are reviewed annually and
have included the duties set out in Code Provision
C.3.3(a) to (n) of the CG Code. The existing
members of the Audit Committee comprise Mr.
Boon Seng TAN, Mr. Ying Kwan CHEUNG and
Mr. Peter Pi Tak YIN, all of whom are INEDs. Mr.
Ying Kwan CHEUNG is the Chairman of the Audit
Committee. Mr. Cheung, being a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and an associate member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, has the appropriate professional
qualification and experience in financial field.
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(continued)

C. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT C. BERZE®
C.3 Audit Committee (continued) C3 BREEEH)

During the year, the Audit Committee has FA - %%;,\ BRTIXRER
conducted three formal meetings and discharged %IEE TH ° 2010 EZE
its responsibilities. Attendance of individual =y ﬁ':z&f“fﬁu"l—
member at the Audit Committee meetings in
2010 is as below:
Number of meeting FERIH 3
Mr. Boon Seng TAN PR RE 2/3 67%
Mr. Ying Kwan CHEUNG B e Je0 56 A 3/3 100%
Mr. Peter Pi Tak YIN FiRELE 3/3 100%
Average attendance rate TR 89%

The principal duties of the Audit Committee
included reviewing the financial controls, internal
control and risk management system, annual
report and accounts, interim report and
accounts.

The following is a summary of the work performed
by the Audit Committee during the year 2010:

— met with the external auditors to discuss
the general scope of their audit work and
the matters related to the audit of the
financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2009;

— reviewed the audit issues raised by the
external auditors;

— considered and recommended to the Board
for adoption of new accounting standards;

— reviewed and recommended to the Board
for approval of the audit fee proposal for
the Group for 2009;
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C. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

(continued)
C.3 Audit Committee (continued)

— reviewed the audited accounts and final
results announcement for the year 2009;

— reviewed the interim report and the interim
results announcement for the six months
ended June 30, 2010;

— reviewed the effectiveness of internal
control system of the Group;

— reviewed and considered the report of the
annual internal control review of the Group;

— reviewed the non-audit services provided
by the Auditors and assess the independence
and objectivity of the Auditors in relation to
their provision of non-audit services;

— reviewed the related party transactions and
compliance of the relevant Listing Rules
and accounting policies in relation thereto;

—  reviewed the terms of reference of the Audit
Committee; and

— discussed the annual and interim budget
of the Group.

All issues raised by the Audit Committee have
been addressed by the management. The work
and findings of the Audit Committee have been
reported to the Board. During the year, no issue
that brought to the attention of the management
and the Board was of sufficient importance to
require disclosure in this Annual Report.
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C. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

(continued)

C.3

Audit Committee (continued)

Full minutes of the Audit Committee meetings
are kept by the Company Secretary. Draft and
final versions of the minutes of the Audit
Committee meetings are sent to all members of
the Audit Committee for comments and approval.
The interim and annual reports of the Company
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

D. DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

D.1

D.2

Management functions

The Board oversees the Company’s strategic
development and determines the objectives,
strategies and policies of the Group. It also
monitors and controls operating and financial
performance and sets appropriate policies for risk
management in pursuit of the Group’s strategic
objectives, and delegates the implementation of
strategies, and day-to-day operation of the Group
to the management. The Board is entrusted with
certain reserved powers which were fully
described in the corporate governance report in
the Company’s 2005 Annual Report.

Board committees

Apart from the Audit Committee (particulars are
disclosed under C.3) and the Remuneration
Committee (particulars are disclosed under B.1),
the Board has also established three other
committees of the Board, namely the Financial
Control Committee, the Executive Directors’
Committee and the Operation Review Committee.
The composition and functions of the respective
board committee were set out in the corporate
governance report in the Company’s 2005 Annual
Report.
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E. COMMUNICATION WITH E. ERERNVEE
SHAREHOLDERS

E.1 Effective communication E.l BEER

The Company follows the practice that at the
annual general meetings of the Company, a
separate resolution is proposed in respect of each
separate issue, including the re-election of
Directors. In every annual general meeting of the
Company, the Chairmen of the Audit Committee
and the Remuneration Committee or the
members of the respective committees or their
respective appointed delegates are present to
answer questions of shareholders.

E.2 Voting by poll

The Company informs shareholders of the
procedures for demanding a poll by incorporating
them in any circular for annual general meetings
and special general meetings, if any. In addition,
in every general meeting, the chairman of the
meeting provides an explanation of the detailed
procedures for conducting a poll at the
commencement of the meeting. The procedures
for conducting a poll were incorporated in the
circular for the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting.

RIBARRBZER  RARTF 2K
REFAREL  BsENEER
BERER  BREEEF R
ARRRERRBFAE L EX
ZEelFMNEES T FHERE
Bev B EMM s ERERK
BHE - AEIERREH 2 FE e

E.2 UREBRERARR

REBARBBRRBFAGHMR
KRG WA ZEFBEA - 15
MAZRKUEBRBRETARRZ
TRFF - RBAMERR - i N
RERAE L REXFREEHM
R ERBARRET ARRNF
AREF - AIRBRBIRESARRZ
EFEMARERFBFAG 2R

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors AEEE WD
Dr. Richard Man Fai LEE HITEEFTHAAE
Executive Chairman & CEO EVEEL

Hong Kong, March 28, 2011 &% - 2011 3H28H
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
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Bl % & 6 £ % 5

Hodgson Impey Cheng

HLB

Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 52 to 203, which comprise the consolidated and
company statements of financial position at December 31,
2010, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B 2B RS

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and
to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
of the Group at December 31, 2010 and of the Group’s profit
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, March 28, 2011
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

mEEmER
For the year ended December 31, 2010
BE20109128310 ILEE
2010 2009
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 BT T BT T
Turnover BER 5 1,604,161 1,240,716
Cost of sales SHE KA (1,331,869) (1,078,437)
Gross profit EF 272,292 162,279
Other operating income H At WA 7 26,126 5,932
Distribution costs o HA AR (91,432) (102,596)
Administrative expenses THE A (165,507) (187,439)
Fair value gains AWM
on investment properties NFEERE 15 320 740
Reversal of properties held for sale i {EHEWERER =
to net realisable value Al &R E 3,710 610
Profit/(loss) from operations wERR (8 8 45,509 (120,474)
Finance costs % ER 9 (10,228) (9,236)
Restructuring costs BHER 14 — (10,081)
Impairment on available-for-sale AHEESRE
financial assets BEZBE 26 (5,700) (6,000)
Impairment on goodwill EESNERE 18 — (3,176)
Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries & M & 2 7 2 F W &= 9,273 —
Share of results of associates FEAG B & R R FELE 21 — (95)
Share of result of FE(E — I EE S
a jointly controlled entity BREE 22 (335) (1,729)
Profit/(loss) before tax BRBATER S (BE) 38,519 (150,791)
Income tax expenses FrisfimMx 10 (3,034) (399)
Profit/(loss) for the year KEERR (EE) 35,485 (151,190)
Profit/(loss) attributable to: E&ER (Bi8) :
Owners of the Company PIN/NEIE7Z =N 27,879 (141,225)
Non-controlling interests FEVE R 7,606 (9,965)
35,485 (151,190)
Earnings/(loss) per share attributable Zx X T A A (G =
to the owners of the Company BREF, (EE)
— Basic — EK 11 1.22 centsfll  (8.81) centsfll
— Diluted — s 11 1.20 centsfll  (8.81) centsfll
The accompanying notes on pages 61 to 203 form an  REE1EFE203BE Z M ARFHBHRER 2T 0]
integral part of these financial statements. D EEBD o



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEZTHEBRE
For the year ended December 31, 2010
BE2010512831B L EE
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT ST I
Profit/(loss) for the year TEEERF, (BE) 35,485 (151,190)
Exchange differences on translation &GN EKEL R
of foreign operations fE X ZE& 3,011 487
Total comprehensive income AEEZEKRALLE
for the year 38,496 (150,703)
Total comprehensive EE2ZEBALLE :
income attributable to:
Owners of the Company PIN/NEIE7F =N 30,545 (140,530)
Non-controlling interests FEE AR HE 2 7,951 (10,173)
38,496 (150,703)
EF2038 2 M AR ®ET <A

The accompanying notes on pages 61 to 203 form an MRE6
integral part of these financial statements. 7 EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e AR R 3R

At December 31, 2010
20106 12A31H

31/12/10 31/12/09 01/01/09
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt BETT BETT BETT
(Restated) (Restated)
27 (Z5))
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties REME 15 3,000 17,740 17,000
Property, plant and equipment WE - BER&E 16 125,804 85,291 82,233
Prepaid lease payments ENBEEHE 17 1,486 1,509 1,546
Goodwill ﬁﬁi‘ 18 30,044 30,189 31,611
Interests in associates REE DR 2w 21 — = 95
Interest in a jointly controlled entity P — 2L [F %
Bl #ER 22 3,520 — —
Available-for-sale financial assets EPECEHEE 26 9,552 15,252 21,527
Deferred tax assets EIERBEE 34 — — 10
173,406 149981 154022
Current assets TBEE
[nventories Fg 23 192,730 221,825 234,664
Properties held for sale, BELENEL
at net realisable value R EE 25,470 21,760 21,150
Trade and other receivables BH5ERR
H i UL BR =X 24 213,807 182,877 248,852
Derivative financial instruments fTEERmMIA — — 98
Amounts due from associates R & A R IR 25 64,045 49,451 39,834
Amount due from JE Y — £ R
a jointly controlled entity A EBFE 25 — — 2,119
Other financial assets at fair HbAA ?ﬁ”ﬂ\?ﬁﬁ?’i
value through profit or loss LEBEE 27 17 10 6
Cash and cash equivalents RekHReEEEE 28 189,322 151,973 164,030
685,391 627,896 710,753
Current liabilities nBaE
Trade and other payables BHERK
H b ERER A 29 347,691 345,340 330,489
Bills payables ANES:S 25,588 32,080 14,383
Tax payables E&HE 2,542 205 2,418
Amount due to e —R £
a jointly controlled entity %‘J‘E‘%‘f%’l 25 2,585 — —
Amounts due to related companies B8 A RRE 30 441 959 944
Obligations under finance leases 1ERISzRE
— due within one year HERES 31 96 88 —
Borrowings TN 32 201,332 173,543 184,158
580,275 552,215 532,392
Net current assets RBEEFE 105,116 75,681 178,361
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBEE 278,522 225,662 332,383




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
mEMBERRE @

At December 31, 2010

720104124310
31/12/10 31/12/09 01/01/09
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
fiisx BETT BETT BETT
(Restated) (Restated)
(E3)) (Z3))
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Obligations under finance leases IFRI ME
— due after one year HERHK 31 240 308 —
Borrowings N 32 — 6,006 6,470
Convertible loan note RRERE 33 11,612 — —
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHBAR 34 245 15 12
12,097 6,329 6,482
Net assets EEFE 266,425 219,333 325,901
Capital and reserves EXRRE
Share capital A AR 35 45,838 45,013 29,403
Reserves fE 204,599 163,685 275,690
Equity attributable iN/NCIEZ 2D
to owners of the Company (iR 250,437 208,698 305,093
Non-controlling interests JE IR 15,988 10,635 20,808
Total equity BER 266,425 219,333 325,901

EF203B ZME/ARFBIHRERZTA]

The accompanying notes on pages 61 to 203 form an  R&6
integral part of these financial statements. 7 & F

The financial statements on pages 52 to 203 were approved R EE52E F203H 2 M RERLEETEH 2011
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on March ~ 3 A28 B #it & RIRE T2 W B T 7 ESEKEK

28, 2011 and are signed on its behalf by: BEEEHE
Director Director
o -
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BA 5 AR 2R

At December 31, 2010
20106 12A31H

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

31/12/10 31/12/09 01/01/09
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B E BT T BT BT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Mm% - BERSE 16 273 513 794
Investments in subsidiaries RtB AR 2 HE 20 267,051 266,243 266,213
267,324 266,756 267,007
Current assets RBEE
Trade and other receivables BHERREMERER 4,636 4,401 5,209
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEWHIB A RZRIE 25 67,866 80,751 60,216
Amounts due from associates e L Bl & /A B 008 25 — 197 197
Amount due from JE U — ) R
a jointly controlled entity BRXE 25 — — 195
Other financial assets at fair HEwAAFEFARR
value through profit or loss LEREE 27 17 10 6
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEER 30 32 315
72,549 85,391 66,138
Current liabilities hBaE
Trade and other payables BT R REMERNER 643 744 1,213
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE B B A B 5008 25 248,769 273,610 293,322
Amount due to a related company ER—E@EBARZRE 30 441 441 441
Financial guarantee contracts IBERELD 4,283 3,475 3,445
254,136 278,270 298,421
Net current liabilities REBEEFE (181,587)  (192,879)  (232,283)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBEE 85,737 73,877 34,724
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Convertible loan note TRBEHEE 33 11,612 — —
Deferred tax liabilities BIEMBAR 34 229 — —
11,841 — —
Net assets EEFE 73,896 73,877 34,724
Capital and reserves attributable to ~ A2Q T HH AEN
owners of the Company BEXARGE
Share capital AR A 35 45,838 45,013 29,403
Reserves At 36 28,058 28,864 5,321
Total equity MER 73,896 73,877 34,724

The financial statements on pages 52 to 203 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on March
28, 2011 and are signed on its behalf by:

Director

EF

56

RES2EE2038 2 B HERLEET 22011
FIA28H U ERIRETIE W R N ESRE
BESERE

Director

EF



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mERBREHR

For the year ended December 31, 2010

HZE2010F12A31H L FE
Attributable to owners of the Company
KAREEAEY
Equity (Accumulated
Capital Share component of losses)/ Non-
Share Share redemption options  Exchange convertible Other ~ Retained controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve  loan note reserve profits interests Total
TRRER
N e BER FE2 (RitER) /
REx  RGEE e RERE EXGE BExBf HtRf REBRT FeRER &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AETT AETr A%t A%Tr B%Trn AT B%Trn  A%Tr  B%Tr  ATx
(note)
(B )
At January 1, 2009 200951718 29,403 — 2,151 1,837 (4,185) — 151,236 124,651 20,808 325,901
Other comprehensive REFEM
income for the year 2AKA - - - = 695 - - — (208) 487
Loss for the year rEEER — — — — — — —  (141,225) (9,965)  (151,190)
Total comprehensive income  AEEZE
for the year oN:t-] — — — — 695 — —  (141,225)  (10,173)  (150,703)
Issue of shares ESLG) 15,000 25,648 — — — — — = = 40,648
Issue of shares upon RTEE RRE
exercise of share options BETRO 610 1,620 = (414) = = = = = 1,816
Issue of share options BIEREARE - — — 1,671 — — — — — 1,671
Lapse of share options BEARRERK — — — (465) — — = 465 — —
At December 31,2009 2009 12A31H
and January 1, 2010 %201061A18 45,013 27,268 2,151 2,629 (3,490) — 151,236 (16,109) 10,635 219,333
Other comprehensive REELM
income for the year 2AKA - - - - 2,666 - - - 345 3,011
Profit for the year REERM — — - - — - — 271879 7,606 35485
Total comprehensive income  AEE2E
for the year WABE - - - — 2,666 - — 27,879 7,951 38,496
Issue of shares upon RTEE RRE
exercise of share options BETRA 825 3,579 — (774) = = = = = 3,630
Issue of share options BTERRRE — - - 793 - - - — — 793
Lapse of share options BERRERK - - - (85) - - - 85 = —
Recognition of equity BRTERER
component of REERHH
convertible loan note — - - — — 1,251 — — — 1,251
Deferred tax liability arising ~ AJ2RERE
on convertible loan note EAZER
REGE - - - - - (278) - — - (278)
Changes in ownership WELRAZ
interests in subsidiaries BEERREY — — - - - - 5,798 - (2,5%) 3,200
At December 31, 2010 120105128318 45,838 30,847 2,151 2,563 (824) 973 157,034 11,855 15,988 266,425
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MEEZEBR®

For the year ended December 31, 2010
HZE2010F12A31R LFE

Included in the above is the Group’s share of post-acquisition

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)

ERBEAKEEEBE QR ZWBRRANE

accumulated losses of associates, as follows: B FBET
HK$'000
BT T
At January 1, 2009 R2009F 1A 1H (77,062)
Loss for the year KFEEEHE (95)
At December 31, 2009, 20094 12H31H -
January 1, 2010 2010F1H1H &
and December 31, 2010 20104 12A31H (77,157)
Note: The other reserve of the Group was transferred from the Bt : AREE 2 E b TR ER 200249 A 18H

share premium account pursuant to the capital re-
organisation on September 18, 2002 and the changes in
the Group’s ownership interests in its subsidiaries that do
not result in loss of control.

ETZBRAESHEEBRERMNEER  KAE
BREMBARZ EAEERES - MULE
B G B R KSR HIHE o



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

=AN A~ — |
GEBRERER
For the year ended December 31, 2010
#HZE2010612A318 1L E

2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT EEETF T
(Restated)
(&%)
Operating activities BEEK
Profit/(loss) before tax BrFL AT & A (E18) 38,519 (150,791)
Adjustments for: KUER AT FRE
Share of results of associates il NI ¥ — 95
Share of result of JE A — FE) L R4 )
a jointly controlled entity EREE SEE 1,729
Interest income B UA (2,094) (2,575)
Interest expenses B H 9,691 8,806
Finance lease charges MEHEER 12 5
Depreciation e 17,624 17,101
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments A & FOIE 38 39
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, LEWE BMEKEEREZ
plant and equipment (M=) &8 (1,596) 6,086
Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries kL= N e gy (9,273) —
Fair value gains on other financial EMARFEHFABRZZ
assets at fair value through profit or loss SREEAFEKE (7) (4)
Fair value losses on derivative PELRIANTE
financial instruments E518 — 98
Reversal of properties held RHEHEERD
for sale to net realisable value Z0]EIFE (3,710) (610)
Write down of inventories FEREZRA IR FE
to net realisable value 2,855 8,070
Fair value gains on investment properties &% & ¥ % A FEUK (320) (740)
Impairment on available-for-sale AHEESREERE
financial assets 5,700 6,000
Impairment on trade receivables 2 51T R EWRFRE 509 —
Impairment on goodwill EERE — 3,176
Share-based payment expenses B 3R 793 1,671
Operating cash flows before R EBESEHA 2

movements in working capital KEBVEHRE 59,076 (101,844)
Decrease in inventories FER A 19,413 4,828
(Increase)/decrease in trade B 5 1F R K B b fE U AR K

and other receivables (@) (33,661) 67,055
Increase in amounts due from associates & U Bk & /X &) ZRIE 1 N (14,594) (9,617)
Decrease in amount due from FEW — R EEH E S

a jointly controlled entity KIER — 2,119
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 15 2R K E b < BR FRIE AN 13,113 13,470
(Decrease)/increase in bills payables JEMZ4E ORid) /1) (6,492) 17,697
Decrease in amounts due to JE A~ RE B X B) FRIE L D

related companies (518) (3,252)
Increase in amount due to JE A5 — P HL R4

a jointly controlled entity FREFIEIE 9,533 —
Cash generated from/(used in) operations &&Ff18, (FiA) BE 45,870 (9,544)
Hong Kong profits tax paid 2 EBHEH — (2,364)
Overseas tax paid EEINEIR (530) (235)

(530) (2,599)

Net cash generated from/(used in) REEKRE (FTA)

operating activities HEFE 45,340 (12,143)

Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited #5217 (5£8) BR 2 A
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—PAN A o —1 .
GmEBREREXR®
For the year ended December 31, 2010
HZE2010F12A318LFE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
(Restated)
(E7%1)
Investing activities REE
Purchase of property, BEYE BEK
plant and equipment B (58,097) (28,661)
Proceeds from disposal of HEME - BE K
property, plant and equipment R FTIS RIE 1,887 2,520
Proceeds from disposal of HEAHHEEREE
available-for-sale financial assets P15 3K 18 — 275
Capital injection to a jointly controlled entity ;& A — & 2t [F) 3% | & B2 (6,000) —
Net cash inflow from disposal of subsidiaries & i B A 7118 & m AR 58 25,071 —
Net cash (outflow)/inflow WM B ARIRE
from acquisition of subsidiaries (M) mAEEE (700) 47
Interest received B U F B 749 2,575
Net cash used in investing activities REXKFTRARESRE (37,090) (23,244)
Financing activities g
New bank loans FEmRITER 589,371 656,929
New other loans FEHEMmER 5,904 13,834
New obligations under finance lease FEIREMEEER — 396
Proceed from issue of convertible loan note 217 AJ # L & AmTFFﬁH/AIE 13,000 —
Proceeds from issue of shares BITRMETE R — 42,000
Issuing expenses BT (435) (1,352)
Proceeds from exercise of share options 171 & Jc ;R A% #E 15 /78 3,630 1,816
Repayment of bank loans HEBIRITER (576,649) (671,638)
Repayment of other loans EEEMER (6,799) (3,884)
Repayment of obligations EEREHERR
under finance leases (91) =
Interest paid B F & (11,287) (8,806)
Finance lease charges paid ENRMEHEER (12) (5)
Net cash generated from financing activites BEXKFESRETH 16,632 29,290
Net increase/(decrease) in cash HeERBELEEEER
and cash equivalents i, GRd) BE 24,882 (6,097)
Cash and cash equivalents at January 1 R1B1AZ2RERBLEEEE 151,973 157,122
Effect of foreign currency INEER B E o B
exchange rate changes 4,087 948
Cash and cash equivalents R12A31HZ2RER
at December 31 BEEEHEHE 180,942 151,973
Analysis of the balances of cash RekREeEHEER
and cash equivalents RO
Being: Bl
Cash and cash equivalents HeMRLEEIER 189,322 151,973
Bank overdrafts RITEX (8,380) —
180,942 151,973

The accompany notes on pages 61 to 203 form an integral

part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HRR M

For the year ended December 31, 2010
HZE2010F12A31H L FE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is a public limited company incorporated
in Bermuda and its shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The address of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company is disclosed
in the corporate and investor information section of
the annual report.

The Company is a holding company with major
subsidiaries engaged in import, marketing, distribution
and after-sales service of high quality, branded
products serving customers in the Asian region and,
in particular, the markets of Mainland China, Hong
Kong, Macau, Singapore and Malaysia. The products
include principally cars and car accessories, motor
yachts, helicopters, premium fashion apparels and
accessories, air-conditioning and refrigeration
products, audio-visual equipment, car audio and
electronic products, other electronic and electrical
products and property investment.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company. These financial
statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the Board of Directors on March 28, 2011.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

The following new and revised Standards and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) have
been applied by the Group in the current year and
have affected the amounts reported in these
consolidated financial statements and/or disclosures
set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended December 31, 2010
HZE2010F12A318LFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) Business
Combinations

HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) has been applied in the
current year prospectively to business combinations
of which the acquisition date is on or after January 1,
2010 in accordance with the relevant transitional
provisions. Its application has affected the accounting
for business combinations in the current year.

The impact of the application of HKFRS 3 (as revised
in 2008) is as follows:

(i)

(ii)

HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) allows a choice
on a transaction-by-transaction basis for the
measurement of non-controlling interests at the
date of acquisition (previously referred to as
‘minority” interests) either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interests’ share of recognised
identifiable net assets of the acquiree.

HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) changes the
recognition and subsequent accounting
requirements for contingent consideration.
Previously contingent consideration was
recognised at the acquisition date only if payment
of the contingent consideration was probable and
it could be measured reliably; any subsequent
adjustments to the contingent consideration were
always made against the cost of the acquisition.
Under the revised Standard, contingent
consideration is measured at fair value at the
acquisition date; subsequent adjustments to the
consideration are recognised against the cost of
acquisition only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the
measurement period (a maximum of 12 months
from the acquisition date) about the fair value at
the acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability are recognised
in profit or loss.

2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended December 31, 2010
HZE2010F12A31H L FE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. FEAHIIEZBITEEBHBR

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) Business
Combinations (continued)

(iii) HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) requires the
recognition of a settlement gain or loss when the
business combination in effect settles a pre-
existing relationship between the Group and the
acquiree.

(iv) HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) requires
acquisition-related costs to be accounted for
separately from the business combination,
generally leading to those costs being recognised
as an expense in profit or loss as incurred,
whereas previously they were accounted for as
part of the cost of the acquisition.

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards

The amendments provide two exemptions when
adopting HKFRSs for the first time relating to oil and
gas assets, and the determination as to whether an
arrangement contains a lease.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment — Group Cash-settled Share-based
Payment Transactions

The amendments clarify the scope of HKFRS 2, as
well as the accounting for group cash-settled share-
based payment transactions in the separate (or
individual) financial statements of an entity receiving
the goods or services when another group entity or
shareholder has the obligation to settle the award.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations (as part of Improvements to
HKFRSs issued in 2009)

The amendments to HKFRS 5 clarify that the
disclosure requirements in HKFRSs other than HKFRS
5 do not apply to non-current assets (or disposal
groups) classified as held for sale or discontinued
operations unless those HKFRSs require (i) specific
disclosures in respect of non-current assets (or
disposal groups) classified as held for sale or
discontinued operations, or (ii) disclosures about
measurement of assets and liabilities within a disposal
group that are not within the scope of the measurement
requirement of HKFRS 5 and the disclosures are not
already provided in the consolidated financial
statements.

The amendments clarify that all the assets and
liabilities of a subsidiary should be classified as held
for sale when the Group is committed to a sale plan
involving loss of control of that subsidiary, regardless
of whether the Group will retain a non-controlling
interest in the subsidiary after the sale.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements (as part of
Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2009)

The amendments to HKAS 1 clarify that the potential
settlement of a liability by the issue of equity is not
relevant to its classification as current or non-current.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HRR M

For the year ended December 31, 2010
HZE2010F12A31H L FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 Statement of Cash
Flows (as part of Improvements to HKFRSs
issued in 2009)

The amendments to HKAS 7 specify that only
expenditures that result in a recognised asset in the
statement of financial position can be classified as
investing activities in the statement of cash flows. The
application of the amendments to HKAS 7 has resulted
in a change in the presentation of cash outflows in
respect of development costs that do not meet the
criteria in HKAS 38 Intangible Assets for capitalisation
as part of an internally generated intangible asset in
the consolidated statement of cash flows. This change
has been applied retrospectively.

Amendments to HKAS 17 Leases

As part of Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2009,
HKAS 17 Leases has been amended in relation to the
classification of leasehold land. Before the
amendments to HKAS 17, the Group was required to
classify leasehold land as operating leases and to
present leasehold land as prepaid lease payments in
the consolidated statement of financial position. The
amendments to HKAS 17 have removed such a
requirement. The amendments require that the
classification of leasehold land should be based on
the general principles set out in HKAS 17, that is,
whether or not substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of a leased asset have been
transferred to the lessee.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 17 Leases (continued)

In accordance with the transitional provision set out
in the amendments to HKAS 17, the Group reassessed
the classification of unexpired leasehold land at
January 1, 2010 based on information that existed at
the inception of the leases. Leasehold land that
qualifies for finance lease classification has been
reclassified from prepaid lease payments with the
carrying amounts of HK$25,818,000 and
HK$25,166,000 at January 1, 2009 and December
31, 2009 respectively being reclassified to property,
plant and equipment. Amortisation of prepaid lease
payments of HK$652,000 for the year 2009 has been
reclassified to depreciation of owned assets.

At December 31, 2010, leasehold land that qualifies
for finance lease classification with the carrying
amounts of HK$24,514,000 has been included in
property, plant and equipment. The application of the
amendments to HKAS 17 has had no impact on the
reported profit or loss for the current and prior years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended December 31, 2010
HZE2010F12A31H L FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2008) Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements

The application of HKAS 27 (as revised in 2008) has
resulted in changes in the Group’s accounting policies
for the Group’s changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries of the Group.

Specifically, the revised Standard has affected the
Group’s accounting policies regarding changes in the
Group’s ownership interests in its subsidiaries that do
not result in loss of control. In prior years, in the
absence of specific requirements in HKFRSs,
increases in interests in existing subsidiaries were
treated in the same manner as the acquisition of
subsidiaries, with goodwill or a bargain purchase gain
being recognised, when appropriate; for decreases in
interests in existing subsidiaries that did not involve a
loss of control, the difference between the
consideration received and the adjustment to the non-
controlling interests was recognised in profit or loss.
Under HKAS 27 (as revised in 2008), all such
increases or decreases are dealt with in equity, with
no impact on goodwill or profit or loss.

When control of a subsidiary is lost as a result of a
transaction, event or other circumstance, the revised
Standard requires the Group to derecognise all assets,
liabilities and non-controlling interests at their carrying
amounts and to recognise the fair value of the
consideration received. Any retained interest in the
former subsidiary is recognised at its fair value at the
date control is lost. The resulting difference is
recognised as a gain or loss in profit or loss.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2008) Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements
(continued)

These changes have been applied prospectively from
January 1, 2010 in accordance with the relevant
transitional provisions.

The application of the revised Standard has affected
the accounting for the Group’s acquisition and disposal
of part of its interest in Creative Pacific Limited and its
subsidiaries and increase its interest in Technorient
Limited and its subsidiaries in current year. The change
in policy has resulted in the total of HK$5,798,000 for
the aggregated consideration received of HK$3,200,000
and the non-controlling interests recognised of
HK$2,598,000 being recognised directly in equity,
instead of in profit or loss. Therefore, the change in
accounting policy has resulted in an increase in the
other reserve for the year of HK$5,798,000. In
addition, the cash consideration received and paid in
the current year of HK$3,900,000 and HK$700,000
has been included in cash flows from financing
activities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 3% ¥R AR Y R

For the year ended December 31, 2010
HZE2010F12A31H L FE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKAS 28 (as revised in 2008) Investments
in Associates

The principle adopted under HKAS 27 (as revised in
2008) (see above) that a loss of control is recognised
as a disposal and re-acquisition of any retained interest
at fair value is extended by consequential amendments
to HKAS 28. Therefore, when significant influence over
an associate is lost, the investor measures any
investment retained in the former associate at fair
value, with any consequential gain or loss recognised
in profit or loss. In addition, as part of Improvements
to HKFRSs issued in 2010, HKAS 28 (as revised in
2008) has been amended to clarify that the
consequential amendments to HKAS 28 in relation to
transactions where the investor loses significant
influence over an associate should be applied
prospectively. The Group has applied the amendments
to HKAS 28 (as revised in 2008) as part of
Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2010 in advance
of their effective dates (annual periods beginning on
or after July 1, 2010).

Amendments to HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
— Eligible Hedged ltems

The amendments provide clarification on two aspects
of hedge accounting: identifying inflation as a hedged
risk or portion, and hedging with options.

HK (IFRIC) — Int 17 Distributions of Non-
cash Assets to Owners

The Interpretation provides guidance on the
appropriate accounting treatment when an entity
distributes assets other than cash as dividends to its
shareholders.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HK (IFRIC) — Int 18 Transfers of Assets
from Customers

The Interpretation addresses the accounting by
recipients for transfers of property, plant and
equipment from ‘customers’ and concludes that when
the item of property, plant and equipment transferred
meets the definition of an asset from the perspective
of the recipient, the recipient should recognise the
asset at its fair value on the date of the transfer, with
the credit being recognised as revenue in accordance
with HKAS 18 Revenue.

HK-Int 5 Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification by the
Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause
(‘HK Int 5’) clarifies that term loans that include a
clause that gives the lender the unconditional right to
call the loans at any time (‘repayment on demand
clause’) should be classified by the borrower as current
liabilities. The Group has applied HK Int 5 for the first
time in the current year. HK Int 5 requires retrospective
application.

In order to comply with the requirements set out in
HK Int 5, the Group has changed its accounting policy
on classification of term loans with a repayment on
demand clause. In the past, the classification of such
term loans were determined based on the agreed
scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements. Under HK Int 5, term loans with a
repayment on demand clause are classified as current
liabilities.

2.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended December 31, 2010
HZE2010F12A31H L FE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. FEAHIIEZBITEEBHBR

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HK-Int 5 Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification by the
Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause (continued)

As a result, bank loans that contain a repayment on
demand clause with the aggregate carrying amounts
of HK$28,159,000 and HK$31,239,000 have been
reclassified from non-current liabilities to current
liabilities at December 31, 2009 and January 1, 2009
respectively. At December 31, 2010, bank loans (that
are repayable more than one year after the end of the
reporting period but contain a repayment on demand
clause) with the aggregate carrying amount of
HK$31,576,000 have been classified as current
liabilities. The application of HK Int 5 has had no
impact on the reported profit or loss for the current
and prior years.

Such term loans have been presented in the earliest
time band in the maturity analysis for financial liabilities
that reflects the remaining contractual maturities (see
note 32).

Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2009

Except for the amendments to HKFRS 5, HKAS 1,
HKAS 7 and HKAS 17 as described earlier, the
application of Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2009
has not had any material effect on amounts reported
in the consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Standards and Interpretations in issue but
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised Standards and Interpretations that have been
issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRSs (Amendments)  Improvements to
HKFRSs issued in 2010!

HKFRS 1 (Amendments) Limited Exemption from
Comparative HKFRS 7
Disclosures for
First-time Adopters?
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?®
HKAS 24
(as revised in 2009)
HKAS 32 (Amendments) Classification of
Rights Issues®
Prepayment of
a Minimum Funding
Requirement*

Related Party Disclosures*

HK (IFRIC) — Int 14
(Amendments)

HK (IFRIC) — Int 19 Extinguishing Financial

Liabilities with Equity

Instruments?

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
July 1, 2010 or January 1, 2011, as appropriate.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
July 1, 2010.

9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2013.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2011.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or

after February 1, 2010
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For the year ended December 31, 2010
#HZE2010612A318 1L E

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

2.

J?EFH¥)T AR ERYB®

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING S XEB ([BEAMKBHREER])
STANDARDS (“HKFRSSs”) (continued) ()

Standards and Interpretations in issue but
not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (as issued in
November 2009) introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (as revised in
November 2010) adds requirements for financial
liabilities and for derecognition.

Under HKFRS 9, all recognised financial assets that
are within the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement are subsequently
measured at either amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within a
business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding are generally measured
at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair values at the
end of subsequent accounting periods.

In relation to financial liabilities, the significant change
relates to financial liabilities that are designated as at
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fair value through profit or loss. Specifically, under ERBEBMBEREERESR - BLIETE
HKFRS 9, for financial liabilities that are designated E WE@JEE&E%@ SRIECERARE

as at fair value through profit or loss, the amount of
change in the fair value of the financial liability that is
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability
is presented in other comprehensive income, unless
the presentation of the effects of changes in the
liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in
profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a
financial liability’s credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Previously, under HKAS
39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value
of the financial liability designated as at fair value
through profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

Standards and Interpretations in issue but
not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after January 1, 2013, with earlier application
permitted.

The directors anticipate that HKFRS 9 that will be
adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the annual period beginning January
1, 2013 and that the application of the new Standard
may have a significant impact on amounts reported in
respect of the Groups’ financial assets. However, it is
not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that
effect until a detailed review has been completed.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 titled Disclosures —
Transfers of Financial Assets increase the disclosure
requirements for transactions involving transfers of
financial assets. These amendments are intended to
provide greater transparency around risk exposures
when a financial asset is transferred but the transferor
retains some level of continuing exposure in the asset.
The amendments also require disclosures where
transfers of financial assets are not evenly distributed
throughout the period.

The directors do not anticipate that these amendments
to HKFRS 7 will have a significant effect on the Group’s
disclosures regarding transfers of trade receivables
previously effected. However, if the Group enters into
other types of transfers of financial assets in the future,
disclosures regarding those transfers may be affected.

HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures (as revised in
2009) modifies the definition of a related party and
simplifies disclosures for government-related entities.
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For the year ended December 31, 2010
#HZE2010612A318 1L E

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Standards and Interpretations in issue but
not yet effective (continued)

The disclosure exemptions introduced in HKAS 24 (as
revised in 2009) do not affect the Group because the
Group is not a government-related entity. However,
disclosures regarding related party transactions and
balances in these consolidated financial statements
may be affected when the revised version of the
Standard is applied in future accounting periods
because some counterparties that did not previously
meet the definition of a related party may come within
the scope of the Standard.

The amendments to HKAS 32 titled Classification of
Rights Issues address the classification of certain rights
issues denominated in a foreign currency as either an
equity instrument or as a financial liability. To date,
the Group has not entered into any arrangements that
would fall within the scope of the amendments.
However, if the Group does enter into any rights issues
within the scope of the amendments in future
accounting periods, the amendments to HKAS 32 will
have an impact on the classification of those rights
issues.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 19 provides guidance regarding the
accounting for the extinguishment of a financial liability
by the issue of equity instruments. To date, the Group
has not entered into transactions of this nature.
However, if the Group does enter into any such
transactions in the future, HK(IFRIC)-Int 19 will affect
the required accounting. In particular, under
HK(IFRIC)-Int 19, equity instruments issued under
such arrangements will be measured at their fair value,
and any difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability extinguished and the fair value of
equity instruments issued will be recognised in profit
or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs, which term
collectively included Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations (the “Interpretations”)
issued by the HKICPA, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and the applicable disclosure requirements of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale
financial assets, financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss (including derivative
financial instruments) and investment properties,
which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgment in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to December 31 each year.
Control is achieved where the Company has the power
to govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
income statement from the effective date of acquisition
or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HRR M

For the year ended December 31, 2010
#HZE2010612A318 1L E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of
consolidated subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group’s equity therein. Non-controlling
interests in the net assets consist of the amount of
those interests at the date of the original business
combination and the minority interests’ share of
changes in equity since the date of the combination.
Prior to January 1, 2009, losses applicable to the non-
controlling interests in excess of the minority interests
in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the
interests of the Group except to the extent that the
minority interests has a binding obligation and is able
to make an additional investment to cover the losses.

Changes in the Group's ownership interests
in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries prior to January 1, 2010

Increases in interests in existing subsidiaries were
treated in the same manner as the acquisition of
subsidiaries, with goodwill or a bargain purchase gain
being recognised where appropriate. For decreases
in interests in subsidiaries, regardless of whether the
disposals would result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiaries, the difference between the
consideration received and the adjustment to the non-
controlling interests was recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests
in existing subsidiaries (continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries on or after January 1, 2010

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners
of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. Where
certain assets of the subsidiary are measured at
revalued amounts or fair values and the related
cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, the
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity are accounted for
as if the Company had directly disposed of the related
assets (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
directly to retained earnings). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition for subsequent accounting under
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement or, when applicable, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or a jointly
controlled entity.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
58 755 R 2% B &

For the year ended December 31, 2010
HZE2010F12A318LFE

FTESHEBE @)

AEBREWB LR 2 ERER

3¢ 42y /4=
m 2 B (8)

R2010F1 51 Az B A EBRBEEH
BAGZHEEREZEE

AEBRMBRAR 2 EERER LIRS
B BEHRERENZEFHBERRZ
ZHIRTIRAERR S - NEEZHE
m N IFERERREES TIARE - L
RERERHER R ZAMEESEE -
B EaeRED B RRER
FEZEBHERNEDRRER  LHEB
RARRFEBA -

HAEBAEENRH B AR Z ZHI%E - &
EMEAZEBRER NAME 2 288
HEBREAFERMEFMREREERF
BEMEGZMBARZEE (BERE
B) KRB BAREMIFERERS 2 RE R
HE - WZMBARETEERELS
BN FEFE - MAERE R W8
BEREME2EBAERIL Rt AE
@ APREREM 2 E R AR R5H
AEm TR BRBUARRCERE
HERBEEAR (NEHSBERRN
EREREREGN) - RAEEHES
BEMMBRRZEMREREATE
SRERBETERFIR &R TA
HERR M aT B | FE R R ARRR HR (F B IR HE
RZFE - 3 (WER) & RFERRE
ERAIHAFZEFERBZRERA



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HRR M

For the year ended December 31, 2010
#HZE2010612A318 1L E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Business combinations

Business combinations that took place prior to
January 1, 2010

The acquisition of businesses is accounted for using
the purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the
date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred
or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the
Group in exchange for control of the acquiree, plus
any costs directly attributable to the business
combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the
conditions for recognition under HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations are recognised at their fair values at the
acquisition date, except for non-current assets (or
disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations, which are
recognised and measured at fair value less costs to
sell.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an
asset and initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the cost of the business combination over the
Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised.
If, after reassessment, the Group’s interest in the net
fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the
business combination, the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree
is initially measured at the minority’s proportion of the
net fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Business combinations (continued)

Business combinations that took place prior to
January 1, 2010 (continued)

Contingent consideration was recognised, if and only
if, the contingent consideration was probable and could
be measured reliably. Subsequent adjustments to
contingent consideration were recognised against the
cost of the acquisition.

Business combinations achieved in stages were
accounted for as separate steps. Goodwill was
determined at each step. Any additional acquisition
did not affect the previously recognised goodwill.

Business combinations that took place on or after
January 1, 2010

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in
a business combination is measured at fair value,
which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date
fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HRR M

For the year ended December 31, 2010
HZE2010F12A31H L FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Business combinations that took place on or after
January 1, 2010 (continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value at the acquisition date, except that:

()

(ii)

(iii)

deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or
assets related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively;

liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment transactions of the acquiree or
the replacement of an acquiree’s share-based
payment transactions with share-based payment
transactions of the Group are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment
at the acquisition date; and

assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are measured in accordance with that
Standard.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Business combinations (continued)

Business combinations that took place on or after
January 1, 2010 (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after assessment, the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree
(if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit
or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liquidation may be initially measured either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made
on a transaction by- transaction basis. Other types of
non-controlling interests are measured at their fair
value or another measurement basis required by
another standard.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HRR M

For the year ended December 31, 2010
#HZE2010612A318 1L E

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FE=:HE®)
(continued)
Business combinations (continued) EESH @

Business combinations that took place on or after
January 1, 2010 (continued)

Where the consideration the Group transfers in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement,
the contingent consideration is measured at its
acquisition-date fair value and considered as part of
the consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with
the corresponding adjustments being made against
goodwill or gain on bargain purchase. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise from
additional information obtained during the
measurement period about facts and circumstances
that existed as of the acquisition date. Measurement
period does not exceed one year from the acquisition
date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that do not qualify
as measurement period adjustments depends on how
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset
or a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates in accordance with HKAS 39, or HKAS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Business combinations (continued)

Business combinations that took place on or after
January 1, 2010 (continued)

When a business combination is achieved in stages,
the Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition
date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains control),
and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the
acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have
previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where such
treatment would be appropriate if that interest were
disposed of.

Changes in the value of the previously held equity
interest recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity before the acquisition date
are reclassified to profit or loss when the Group obtains
control over the acquiree.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
during the measurement period (see above), or
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect
new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date
that, if known, would have affected the amounts
recognised as of that date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HRR M

For the year ended December 31, 2010
#HZE2010612A318 1L E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Investments in subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies generally
accompanying a shareholding of more than one half
of the voting rights. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether
the Group controls another entity.

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the
Company'’s statement of financial position at cost less
any identified impairment loss.

Investments in associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the
equity method, investments in associates are carried
in the consolidated statement of financial position
initially at cost as adjusted for the post-acquisition
changes in the Group’s share of the profit or loss and
of changes in equity of the associate, less any identified
impairment loss. When the Group’s share of losses of
an associate equals or exceeds its interest in that
associate (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, from part of the Group’s net investment
in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. An additional share of losses
is provided for and a liability is recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligation or made payments on behalf of that
associate.

FESITBE @)

RMBLAR2RE

B N AR AR SR B A R IR I EL B 7 Ko &
BRRY R BBFBREEZAA
NE(BRBFEREQRA) - BFHEALE
BREEF S KRR - §EZERE
EBFEATEX AT RN EERRE

B2 988
REZE -

M B A R Z 1B R AR E B RR
BEEBRINARRR ZFHRREKA °

REEQAR2RE

2

BEQREASEHEEERTENE
WESEHIE - B —RIFB20%E50%K%
REZRBRE -

BERNRZERE  BERABETAESR
RDAG BT ARAPTHRE - RIEHE
TR - R E QB 2 RE T TR
RERAMBARRKRTINER - LHAKE

DEZBMERB 2 BE N EREH 2 W
BRrEPIELFAE  ALBEERER

Bl BEER - EAKREDIEREZER
AZBREENHBEERZEE AR
ZHEm (A eRERRER - MY
ROEEE EERAKERZBERRZ
REFHE B0 - AIAKENBEE
RENEZE—FEBRE - BIMEZ
BRETLEEE  MEEENAKECDE
HORTE S HETE B ERRRZH L R RME
H A 5K E DR HERR o

Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited #5217 (5£8) BR 2 A

Annual Report 2010 4 %

85



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ke G

For the year ended December 31, 2010
HZE2010F12A318LFE

86

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Investments in associates (continued)

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate
recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as
goodwill. The goodwill is included within the carrying
amount of the investment and is assessed for
impairment as part of the investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of
the Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the relevant associate.

Jointly controlled entity

Joint venture arrangement that involves the
establishment of a separate entity in which venturers
have joint control over the economic activity of the
entity are referred to as jointly controlled entities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Jointly controlled entity (continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of a jointly
controlled entity are incorporated in the consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, investments in
jointly controlled entities are carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost as adjusted for
post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of net
assets of the jointly controlled entities, less any
identified impairment loss. When the Group’s share of
losses of a jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds
its interest in that jointly controlled entity (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the jointly
controlled entity), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. An additional share of losses
is provided for and a liability is recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of that jointly
controlled entity.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

When a group entity transacts with a jointly controlled
entity of the Group, profits or losses are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the jointly
controlled entity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to January 1,
2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of net assets and
operations of a subsidiary or a jointly controlled entity
for which the agreement date is before January 1, 2005
represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over
the Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the relevant subsidiary or the
relevant jointly controlled entity at the date of
acquisition.

For previously capitalised goodwill arising on
acquisitions of net assets and operations of
subsidiaries or a jointly controlled entity after January
1, 2001, the Group has discontinued amortisation from
January 1, 2005 onwards, and such goodwill (net of
cumulative amortisation at December 31, 2005) is
tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is
an indication that the cash generating unit to which
the goodwill relates may be impaired (see the
accounting policy below).

Goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after January
1, 2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary or a
jointly controlled entity (which is accounted for using
proportionate consolidation) for which the agreement
date is on or after January 1, 2005 represents the
excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the relevant
subsidiary or jointly controlled entity at the date of
acquisition. Such goodwill is carried at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after January
1, 2005 (continued)

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of a
subsidiary or a jointly controlled entity is presented
separately in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the acquisition. A cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, and whenever there is an indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an
acquisition in a financial year, the cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that financial year. When
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is
less than the carrying amount of the unit, the
impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and
then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the
basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly
in the consolidated income statement. An impairment
loss for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary or a jointly
controlled entity, the attributable amount of goodwill
capitalised is included in the determination of the
amount of profit or loss on disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and services
in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities.
Revenue is shown, net of returns, rebates and
discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group.
Revenue is recognised as follows:

Sale of goods is recognised when goods are delivered
and the significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the goods have passed to the buyer.

Maintenance services income is recognised when
services are rendered.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.

Rental income arising from operating leases is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the terms of
the relevant leases.

Commission income is recognised when the relevant
services are rendered.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar economic characteristics and are similar
in respect of the nature of products and services, the
nature of production processes, the type of class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share
a majority of these criteria.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases
are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recorded as receivables at the amount of the Group’s
net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is
allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a
constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net
investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
the consolidated income statement on a straight-line
basis over the terms of the relevant leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Leasing (continued)
The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially
recognised as assets of the Group at their fair value at
the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liabilities to the lessors are included in
the consolidated statement of financial position as a
finance lease obligations. Finance costs are charged
to the consolidated income statement over the terms
of the relevant leases so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance of
the obligations for each accounting period.

Rental payables under operating leases are charged
to the consolidated income statement on a straight-
line basis over the terms of the relevant leases. Benefits
received and receivable as an incentive to enter into
an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of
rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line
basis.

Leasehold land

When a lease includes both land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification of each
element as a finance or an operating lease separately
based on the assessment as to whether substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
each element have been transferred to the Group.
Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including
any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold
interests in the land element and building element of
the lease at the inception of the lease. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
land and building elements, the entire lease is generally
classified as a finance lease and accounted for as
property, plant and equipment.
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For the year ended December 31, 2010
#HZE2010612A318 1L E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Leasehold land (continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can
be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is
accounted for as an operating lease is presented as
“prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recorded in its functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of each reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the end of the reporting period. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise, except for exchange differences
arising on a monetary item that forms part of the
Group’s net investment in a foreign operation, in which
case, such exchange differences are recognised in
equity in the consolidated financial statements.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items carried at fair value are included
in profit or loss for the period except for differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in
respect of which gains and losses are recognised
directly in equity, in which cases, the exchange
differences are also recognised directly in equity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of each reporting period, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates
for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the year, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised as a separate component of equity (the
exchange reserve). Such exchange differences are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the
foreign operation is disposed of.

From January 1, 2010 onwards, on the disposal of a
foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s entire
interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, a disposal involving loss of joint control over
a jointly controlled entity that includes a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss. In addition, in relation to
a partial disposal that does not result in the Group
losing control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are reattributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in profit
or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial
disposals of associates or jointly controlled entities that
do not result in the Group losing significant influence
or joint control), the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to
profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign
operation on or after January 1, 2005 are treated as
assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of the reporting period. Exchange differences arising
are recognised in the exchange reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All borrowing costs are recognised as and included in
finance costs in the consolidated income statement in
the period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs
Payments to defined contribution retirement schemes

are charged as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as
reported in the consolidated income statement
because it excludes items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years, and it further
excludes items in the consolidated income statement
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or
recoverable on differences between the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investment in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged
or credited to profit or loss, except when it relates to
items that are charged or credited directly to equity,
in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in
equity.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes are stated at cost or fair
value less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment over their estimated
useful lives and after taking into account of their
estimated residual values, using the straight-line
method, at the following rates per annum:

Land held under Over the unexpired
medium-term lease term of lease
Buildings on land held under 2'2- 5%
medium-term lease
Leasehold improvements 20% or over the
lease term
Furniture, fixtures 10-20%
and equipment
Machinery and tools 20- 333%
Motor vehicles 20- 25%
Motor yacht 5%

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over
their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned
assets or, where shorter, the term of the relevant leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The land and buildings elements of a lease of land
and buildings are considered separately for the
purposes of lease classification, unless the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
land and buildings elements, in which case, the entire
lease is generally treated as a finance lease. To the
extent that the allocation of the lease payments
between the land and buildings elements can be made
reliably, the leasehold interests in land are reclassified
to prepaid lease payments under operating leases,
which are carried at cost and amortised over the lease
term on a straight-line basis. Alternatively, where the
allocation between the land and buildings elements
cannot be made reliably, the leasehold interests in land
continue to be accounted for as property, plant and
equipment.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item) is included in the consolidated
income statement in the year in which the item is
derecognised.

Investment properties

Investment properties are completed properties which
are held for their investment potential, any rental
income being negotiated at arm’s length. Investment
properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at fair value. Gains
and losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment property are included in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HRR M

For the year ended December 31, 2010
#HZE2010612A318 1L E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Investment properties (continued)

From January 1, 2009, investment properties under
construction have been accounted for in the same way
as completed investment properties. Specifically,
construction costs incurred for investment properties
under construction are capitalised as part of the
carrying amount of the investment properties under
construction. Investment properties under construction
are measured at fair value at the end of the reporting
period. Any difference between the fair value of the
investment properties under construction and their
carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise. Prior to January 1, 2009,
the leasehold land and building elements of investment
properties under construction were accounted
separately; the leasehold land element was accounted
for as an operating lease and the building element was
measured at cost less impairment losses, if any.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use or no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
consolidated income statement in the year in which
the item is derecognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the first-in,
first-out method. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less
applicable variable selling expenses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits
held at call with banks, cash investments with a
maturity of three months or less from date of
investment and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are
shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the
statement of financial position.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation as a result of a past event, and it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation. Provisions are measured at the directors’
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
obligation at the end of the reporting period, and are
discounted to present value where the effect is
material.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements. When a change
in the probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow
is probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HRR M

For the year ended December 31, 2010
HZE2010F12A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
on the statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. Financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of
the four categories, including financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and receivables,
held-to-maturity investments and available-for-sale
financial assets. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace. The
accounting policies adopted in respect of each
category of financial assets are set out below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of
allocating interest income over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts (including all fees on
points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments other than those financial assets
designated as at financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, of which interest income is included in
net gains or losses.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss has
two subcategories, including financial assets held for
trading and those designated as at fair value through
profit or loss on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

(a) it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near future; or

(b) it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

(c) it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HRR M

For the year ended December 31, 2010
HZE2010F12A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for
trading may be designated as at fair value through
profit or loss upon initial recognition if:

(a) such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

(b) the financial asset forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about the
grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

(c) it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

At the end of each reporting period subsequent to initial
recognition, financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are measured at fair value, with changes in fair
value recognised directly in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss includes any dividend or interest earned
on the financial assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. At the end of each
reporting period subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade and other receivables,
cash and cash equivalents, amounts due from
associates and amount due from a jointly controlled
entity) are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment losses
(see accounting policy in respect of impairment loss
on financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated or not classified as any of
the other categories (set out above). At the end of each
reporting period subsequent to initial recognition,
available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair
value. Changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the
heading of investments revaluation reserve, until the
financial asset is disposed of or is determined to be
impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the investment revaluation
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see accounting
policy in respect of impairment loss on financial assets
below).

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by
delivery of such unquoted equity instruments, they are
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses
at the end of each reporting period subsequent to initial
recognition (see accounting policy in respect of
impairment loss on financial assets below).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HRR M

For the year ended December 31, 2010
HZE2010F12A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting
period. Financial assets are impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been impacted.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of that
investment below its cost is considered to be objective
evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

(b) default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

(c) it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

(d) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s
past experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period of 7 to 90 days,
observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
and is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective
interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade receivables, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in profit or
loss. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HRR M

For the year ended December 31, 2010
#HZE2010612A318 1L E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity
investments will not be reversed in profit or loss in
subsequent periods. Any increase in fair value
subsequent to impairment loss is recognised directly
in equity. For available-for-sale debt investments,
impairment losses are subsequently reversed if an
increase in the fair value of the investment can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by
a group entity are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The Group’s financial
liabilities are generally classified into financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss and other financial
liabilities. The accounting policies adopted in respect
of financial liabilities and equity instruments are set
out below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis other than those financial liabilities designated
as at financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, of which the interest expense is included in net
gains or losses.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other
payables, bills payables, amount due to a jointly
controlled entity, amounts due to related companies,
borrowings and obligations under finance leases are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method.

Convertible loan note

Convertible loan note issued by the Company that
contain both financial liability and equity components
are classified separately into respective liability and
equity components on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HRR M

For the year ended December 31, 2010
#HZE2010612A318 1L E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Convertible loan note (continued)

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing market
interest rate of similar non-convertible debts. The
difference between the gross proceeds of the issue of
the convertible loan note and the fair value assigned
to the liability component, representing the embedded
call option for the holder to convert the loan note into
equity, is included in equity (equity component of
convertible loan note).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible loan note is carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The equity component,
representing the option to convert the liability
component into ordinary shares of the Company, will
remain in convertible loan note equity reserve until
the embedded option is exercised, which the
convertible loan note equity reserve and the carrying
amount of the liability component at the time of
conversion, is transferred to share capital and share
premium as consideration for the shares issued. Where
the option remains unexercised at the expiry date, the
balance stated in convertible loan note equity reserve
will be released to the accumulated losses. No gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or
expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible loan note are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation of
the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the
equity component are charged directly to equity.
Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability
portion and amortised over the period of the convertible
loan note using the effective interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end
of each reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the
derivative is designated and effective as a hedging
instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition
in profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge
relationship. The Group designates certain derivatives
as either hedges of the fair value of fixed-rate bank
borrowings (fair value hedges) and hedges of highly
probable forecast transactions for foreign currency
exposure (cash flow hedges), or hedges of net
investments in foreign operations.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the original or modified terms of a
debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract issued
by the Group and not designed as at fair value through
profit or loss is recognised initially at its fair value less
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
issue of the financial guarantee contract. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial
guarantee contact at the higher of: (i) the amount
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and (ii)
the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with
HKAS 18 Revenue.
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For the year ended December 31, 2010
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the
financial assets are transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of
a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised from the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid or payable
is recognised in profit or loss.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value.

Impairment

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets and
intangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss or the impairment loss recognised in
prior years is no longer exist or have decreased. If the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Impairment (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverse, the
carrying amount of the asset other than goodwill is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

For grants of share options which are conditional upon
satisfying specified vesting conditions, the fair value
of services received determined by reference to the
fair value of share options granted at the grant date is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, with a corresponding increase in equity (share
options reserve). The impact of the revision of the
original estimates during the vesting period, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss with a corresponding
adjustment to share options reserve.

For share options which are vested at the date of grant,
the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred
to retained profits.
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For the year ended December 31, 2010
#HZE2010612A318 1L E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Accounting for derivative financial
instruments and hedging activities

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the
date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at their fair value at the end
of each reporting period. The method of recognising
the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the
derivatives designated as a hedging instrument, and
if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Group
designates certain derivatives as either: (i) hedges of
the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities or a
firm commitment (fair value hedge); and (ii) hedges
of highly probable forecast transactions (cash flow
hedge).

The Group documents at the inception of the
transaction the relationship between hedging
instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking
various hedge transactions. The Group also documents
its assessment, both at the inception of the hedge and
on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that
are used in hedging transactions are highly effective
in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the
hedged items.

(i)  Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are
designated and qualify as fair value hedges are
recognised in the consolidated income statement
immediately, together with any changes in the
fair value of the hedged item that is attributable
to the hedged risk. The adjustment to the carrying
amount of the hedged item for which the effective
interest is used is amortised to profit or loss as
soon as an adjustment exists. The adjustment is
based on a recalculated effective interest rate at
the date the amortisation begins.
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For the year ended December 31, 2010
HZE2010F12A318LFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Accounting for derivative financial
instruments and hedging activities
(continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Fair value hedge (continued)

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the
Group revokes the hedge relationship, the
hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated,
or exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge
accounting.

Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value
of derivatives that are designated and qualify as
cash flow hedges are recognised in equity. The
gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is
recognised immediately in the consolidated
income statement.

Amounts accumulated in equity are recognised
in the consolidated income statement as the
underlying hedged items are recognised. When
a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when
a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing
in equity at that time remains in equity and is
recognised when the forecast transaction is
ultimately recognised in the consolidated income
statement. When a forecast transaction is no
longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or
loss that was reported in equity is immediately
transferred to the consolidated income
statement.

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge
accounting and those not designated as hedges

Changes in the fair value of any derivative
instruments that do not qualify for hedge
accounting and those not designated as hedges
are recognised immediately in the consolidated
income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HRR M

For the year ended December 31, 2010
HZE2010F12A31H L FE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, management is required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Provision for impairment loss on trade and
other receivables

The provision for impairment loss on trade and other
receivables of the Group is based on the evaluation of
collectability and aging analysis of accounts and on
management’s judgment. A considerable amount of
judgment is required in assessing the ultimate
realisation of these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
account. If the financial conditions of the debtors were
to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability
to make payments, additional allowances may be
required.
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116

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Provision for obsolete inventories

The management of the Group reviews an aging
analysis at the end of each reporting period, and makes
provision for obsolete and slow-moving inventory items.
The management estimates the net realisable value
for such finished goods based primarily on the latest
invoice prices and current market conditions. The
Group carries out an inventory review on a product-
by-product basis at the end of each reporting period
and makes provision for obsolete items.

Estimated impairment for goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated. The value
in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value. At December 31, 2010,
the carrying amount of goodwill was HK$30,044,000
(2009: HK$30,189,000). Details of the recoverable
amount calculation are disclosed in note 18.

Fair value of derivatives and other financial
instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation technigues. The Group uses its judgment to
select a variety of methods and make assumptions that
are mainly based on market conditions existing at the
end of each reporting period.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS 4. FARE:tHE REE4TAE
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION ERZE @)
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Income taxes Frig %

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous REBERRZ BEERBMFTEN
jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in ET2HEREMERBEAELEE
determining the worldwide provision for income taxes. FIE o MR ERTRR YL 40 8%
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is TR FAHEEERNELEEFEARNZ
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, HIBRE EH % -

such differences will accordingly be adjusted in the
relevant tax account in the year in which such
determination is made.

5. TURNOVER 5. &HH

2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BET T

Sales of goods to customers, HEBRTER -
less returns and discounts R R B &340 1,504,832 1,162,548
Maintenance service income REHBRE WA 98,995 77,431
Rental income e WA 334 737
1,604,161 1,240,716

Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited #5217 (5£8) BR 2 A
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has reporting segments into three operating
divisions: cars, electrical appliances and fashion
apparels and accessories. These divisions are the basis
on which the Group reports its segment information.
The segmentations are based on the information about
the operation of the Group that management uses to
make decisions and regularly review by the chief
operating decision maker for the purpose of allocating
resources to segments and assessing their
performance.

The three operating and reportable segments are as
follows:

Cars Trading of cars and related
accessories and provision
of car repairing services

Distribution of
air-conditioning products,
audio-visual equipment,
car audio and other
electrical appliances

Electrical appliances

Fashion apparels and  Distribution and retail of
accessories fashion apparels and
accessories

In addition, other unreportable segment (motor yachts
and property investment) are aggregated and
presented as “Others”.
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B Z2010F 128310 L FE
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. 7EER®
Segment revenue and results DEWEKFEE
2010
Fashion
Electrical apparels and
Cars appliances accessories Others Eliminations Consolidated
AE B BEREH Hit B HeEKR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT #B%Tn #B%Tn BE%Tn BE%Txn
Turnover EEH
External sales INERSHE W aa 1,239,043 246,662 53,839 64,617 — 1,604,161
Inter-segment sales $%BEERR 155 122 — — (277) —
Total turnover EEBE 1,239,198 246,784 53,839 64,617 (277) 1,604,161

Inter-segment sales are #7527 HHE
charged at arm’s length R E & B U

Results £
Segment results NEEE 35,637 13,398 271 4,243 — 53,549
Interest income FEWA 2,094
Unallocated other AABEHEAM

operating income EWRA 16,085
Unallocated corporate K2R

expenses i (26,219)
Profit from operations 4 & & 7l 45,509
Finance costs BBER (10,228)
Impairment on HEESH

available-for-sale BEZRE

financial assets (5,700)
Net gain on disposal of ~HEMBLEZ

subsidiaries Fias 9,273
Share of result of a JEAG — A R R 1

jointly controlled entity ~ Bf2E4& — — (335) — — (335)
Profit before tax BR 4RI B A 38,519
Income tax expenses PSR FA% (3,034)
Profit for the year AEERF 35,485

Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited #5217 (5£8) BR 2 A
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#2010 12 A31A 1L F /2

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. 7 EER @
Segment assets and liabilities PHEEEREE
2010

Fashion

Electrical apparels and

Cars appliances accessories

AE EX RERERH
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BT BT E¥Tn

Others Consolidated

Bt &KBEE&AE
HK$'000  HK$'000
BT BETR

Consolidated statement of #& BB MR K
finacial position

Assets BE

Segment assets NBREE 408,382 95,812 62,289
Unallocated corporate ADEAREE

assets

Consolidated total assets 4R & B AE

Liabilities af&
Segment liabilities NEEE 302,913 52,092 15,430
Unallocated corporate APBERATEE
liabilities
Consolidated RARaff
total liabilities

120

43,954 610,437
248,360

858,797

3,747 374,182

218,190

592,372
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BE2010512831B L EE
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. 7EEXR®
Other segment information Hth o BER
2010
Fashion
Electrical apparels and
Cars appliances accessories Others Unallocated Consolidated
AE EX REREMH Hitr *78 HKEKA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BYTrn B%Tx BTz B¥Tr B¥Tx
Other information Hrgp
Capital expenditures BAYH 24,691 729 2,269 — 30,408 58,097
Depreciation nE 11,954 536 1,271 213 3,650 17,624
Amortisation of prepaid ~ FEFTHE
lease payments HIBE — — — 25 13 38
Fair value gains on REMEZ
investment properties  AFEKE — — — 320 — 320
Reversal of RELENE
properties held Bozmg
for sale to net BEE
realisable value — — — 3,710 — 3,710
Gain/(loss) on disposal (&Y - BE
of property, plant Rtz
and equipment Wi/ (B8 11 (2) (106) — 1,693 1,596
Impairment on AHHESHEEL
available-for-sale WIE
financial assets — — — — 5,700 5,700

Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited #5217 (5£8) BR 2 A
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For the year ended December 31, 2010
BE20109128310 ILEE
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. PEEXR®
Segment revenue and results DEREREE
2009
Fashion
Electrical apparels and
Cars appliances accessories Others Eliminations Consolidated
AE EX BRREL Hith K HEKE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BETT BMTr BT B%Tx AETT BETxn
Turnover EEH
External sales INERSHE Wias 976,356 177,193 70,598 16,569 — 1,240,716
Inter-segment sales £¥BHBEE RS — 2,184 32 — (2,216) —
Total turnover EE AT 976,356 179,377 70,630 16,569 (2,216) 1,240,716
Inter-segment sales are #7457 H#HE
charged at arm’s length 1% 1E & {(BH& 4R
Results £
Segment results GECEY (48,461) (2017)  (24,959)  (20,882) —  (96,319)
Interest income S WA 2,575
Unallocated corporate RO A
expenses S (26,730)
Loss from operations K=y 5 (120,474)
Finance costs B%ER (9,236)
Restructuring costs BHER (10,081)
Impairment on HEESHEEY
available-for-sale ERE]
financial assets (6,000)
Impairment on goodwill  EEJE — — (3,176) — — (3,176)
Share of results of i AN
associates — — — (95) = (95)
Share of result of a FE 1 — ) E R A%
jointly controlled entity B EE — — (1,729) — — (1,729)
Loss before tax BRI A 1B (150,791)
Income tax expenses IS HRIX (399)
Loss for the year AEEER (151,190)
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B Z2010F 128310 L FE
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. 7EEXR®
Segment assets and liabilities PTREERERE
2009
Fashion
Electrical apparels and
Cars  appliances accessories Others Consolidated
e 5 REREMH Hit  &&%KA

HK$'000 ~ HK$000  HK$'000  HK$O000  HK$'000
ARTT BRIt ABTT  BARTn AR

Consolidated statement of FARBBRRR
financial position

Assets BE
Segment assets NHEE 341,693 74,891 79,249 81,410 577,243
Unallocated corporate ADEAREE

assets 200,634
Consolidated total assets RABEE 777,877
Liabilities &
Segment liabilities SEAE 260,019 39,877 32,328 22,507 354,731
Unallocated corporate APBEARIAE

liabilities 203,813
Consolidated total liabilities RewaE 558,544

Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited #5217 (5£8) BR 2 A
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HZE2010F12A318LFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6.

Other segment information (restated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TEER @)

Hitn B|EH (EF)

2009
Fashion
Electrical apparels and
Cars appliances accessories Others Unallocated Consolidated
B B KR RECH Hity *HE KFEKRE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BETT BT AETr A%Tr AT A%Trx
Other information Hirg g
Capital expenditures BARY 23,429 1,218 1,579 81 2,354 28,661
Depreciation nE 10,620 482 2,334 257 3,408 17,101
Amortisation of prepaid RN E
lease payments SB# — — 12 27 = 39
Fair value gains on BREMEL
investment properties AT EM — — — 740 — 740
Reversal of RFELEME
properties held BozEmg
for sale to net BFE
realisable value — — — 610 — 610
Gain/(loss) on disposal  (HEWE - KR
of property, plant B
and equipment Wi/ (BE) (2,433) 159 (3,834) (93) 115 (6,086)
Impairment on AHHEEHEEL
available-for-sale RE
financial assets — — — — 6,000 6,000

Segment results represent the profit/(loss) generated
by each segment without allocation of finance costs,
restructuring costs, impairment on available-for-sale
financial assets, impairment on goodwill, share of
results of associates, share of result of a jointly
controlled entity and income tax expenses. This is the
measure reported to the chief operating decision maker
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment
of segment measurement.

SELEERE S ERELZ B
18) TRENBER  SARM - T
HESREE 2R - HERE - S
BAAREE - WG PRSI RS
EETFEHEY W NAEEY B
LEREERERAER BT B ERS
THREHEFR -
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For the year ended December 31, 2010
HZE2010F12A31H L FE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

For the purpose of monitoring segment performance
and allocating resource between segment:

— all assets are allocated to reportable segment
other than corporate assets and available-for-sale
financial assets;

— all liabilities are allocated to reportable segment
other than corporate liabilities.

Information about major customers

No turnover from major customers contributing over
10% of total sales of the Group for both years.

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are mainly located in Hong
Kong, Singapore, Malaysia, Mainland China and
Macau. The following table provides an analysis of the
Group’s turnover by geographical market, irrespective
of the origin of the goods/services:

TEER @

BRTERIBERARRSBRIEE
Vo

— RBRARNEERAHLESREE

Sy FRBEEEBDEEARED

#8

— BRRBAGEN - EREHSRERE

A E S -
FEEFER

RREFERN  BEXATERP2EXE
BHAAKEBHEZ210% -

h & &

AEBZEBETEZDOHREE - F
¥ BRED - REAM R - TR
BEMEOMASE 2 LXE (THmA
m/ R 2 REH) -

Turnover by
geographical market

WERSIEEER
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Hong Kong BB 1,174,696 957,668
Singapore rns 95,563 72,828
Malaysia Bk 51,697 31,294
Mainland China R A 273,658 170,663
Macau il 8,547 8,263
1,604,161 1,240,716

Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited #5217 (5£8) BR 2 A
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For the year ended December 31, 2010
HZE2010F12A31R LFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical information (continued)

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of
non-current assets (excluding deferred tax assets and
derivative financial instrument) analysed by the
geographical area in which the assets are located:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TEER @)
hEE R (8

REEMEES T ZIERBDEE (T8
RECHBEBEERTESRIE) 2R@E
B :

Carrying amount of
non-current assets
RBEEZREE
31/12/10 31/12/09 01/01/09
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BET T BETT ABETr
(Restated)  (Restated)

(E%)) (E%1))
Hong Kong &8 112,539 71,417 65,619
Singapore Fonig 1,048 1,002 359
Malaysia i 518 249 239
Mainland China H I A 49,749 62,013 66,268
Macau S P — 48 —

163,854 134,729 132,485

7. OTHER OPERATING INCOME HapgEzWA

2010 2009

HK$’000 HK$'000

BET T ok

Commission income EE N 5,990 2,808

Interest income A B U A 2,094 2,575

Exchange gain, net PE 5 F Wz — 266
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - BE KK

plant and equipment Z W E 1,596 —

Waiver of other payable e H A RS AR X 16,085 —

Sundry income I A 361 283

26,126 5,932
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For the year ended December 31, 2010
HZE2010F12A31H L FE

8. PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS 8. RERBF A (&HE)
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
(Restated)
(&%)
Profit/(loss) from operations KERT, (B18) Bk -
has been arrived
at after charging:
Auditors’ remuneration % B R B & 780 867
Cost of inventories recognised BERARI ZFENKA
as expenses (included write-down (BREFEEREZNEHE
of inventories to net realisable B 2,855,000
value of HK$2,855,000 (20094 : B 8,070,0007T))
(2009: HK$8,070,000)) 1,331,869 1,078,437

Amortisation of AT E R
prepaid lease payments 38 39

Depreciation of: E -

Owned assets EEEE 17,447 17,043

Assets held under BMEREEE

finance leases 177 58

Staff costs, including EBERAK - B

Directors’ emoluments SEe 105,358 107,681
Operating lease rental R REFZ

in respect of land KERERS

and buildings:

Minimum lease payments xEHE 36,815 51,635

Contingent rentals NS 554 1,202
Share-based payment expenses I3 15 2 BH 32 793 1,671
Exchange loss, net P& R B8 687 —

Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited #5217 (5£8) BR 2 A
Annual Report 2010 4 %
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For the year ended December 31, 2010
HZE2010F12A31R LFE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9. FINANCE COSTS 9. MIKEH
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Interest expenses on: FEZER :
Bank loans, trust receipts SERNEHEEZIRITER
loans and overdrafts wholly ERUBEEREES
repayable within five years 7,551 7,117
Bank loans wholly repayable SFBREHEEBZFEITER
after five years — 799
Other loans wholly repayable SERNEEHEEZEMER
within five years 1,644 890
Effective interest expense MR ERERZ
on convertible loan note ;E%ﬁﬂ/%iﬁ 496 —
9,691 8,806
Finance lease charges MEHEER 12 5
Bank charges IRITE A 525 425
10,228 9,236
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For the year ended December 31, 2010

BZE20106128310 L4
10. INCOME TAX EXPENSES 10. FREHA X
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the BEANESHRIIBEAFERBEBEEL L
estimated assessable profit arising in Hong Kong for fhErER R BRI 16.5%:TH -
the year.
Outside Hong Kong taxation is calculated at the rates BEANIINRIEDRESBaEEE B
prevailing in the respective jurisdictions. TREE -
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BET T
Current tax: RNEERIE :
Hong Kong 55 2,461 —
Outside Hong Kong BB AN 622 386
3,083 386
Deferred tax: (note 34) BIERIE - (Ki3E34)
Hong Kong BB (49) —
Outside Hong Kong FB LA — 13
(49) 13
Income tax expenses attributable 2N &) & E & A 7
to the Company FEMRET BRI X
and its subsidiaries 3,034 399

Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited #5217 (5£8) BR 2 A ]2
Annual Report 2010 4 % 9
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For the year ended December 31, 2010
HZE2010F12A318LFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

The tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. RS BiBA > (&)

REEHBRAIATEBRBENART, (&

profit/(loss) before tax as follows: B)HERWT :
2010 2009
HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
BT BT

Profit/(loss) before tax BB ATAF (E8) 38,519 (150,791)
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits BEBFGHRE

tax rate of 16.5% 16.5% 6,356 16.5 (24,881) (16.5)
Tax effect of share of result of FEfE—FREREH T

a jointly controlled entity XE/NBEE 55 0.1 285 0.2
Tax effect of expenses that are not  BLEL 75 B 89 A] 3108

deductible for tax purposes ALz BBTE 33,925 88.1 38,709 25.7
Tax effect of income that BRBENERTRN

are not taxable for tax purposes w2 (37,632) (97.7) (31,661) (21.0)
Under provision in respect of INEEETREE

prior year (431) (1.1) 208 0.1
Utilisation of deferred tax assets ~ EVF LRI A THRZ

previously not recognised ERERBEE — — (553) (0.3)
Utilisation of tax losses BALAARTHERL

previously not recognised HIEEE (2,985) (7.7) — —
Tax effect of tax losses AT HE WJFRIE BEz

not recognised b 3=2 3,124 8.1 19,922 13.2
Effect of different tax rates of REAE /ﬂg BEE 2

subsidiaries and associates (R EPNETS Q- NE]

operating in other jurisdictions MM EzZE 622 1.6 (1,630) (1.1)
Tax expense and effective tax REEHIERT

rate for the year Ko 78 JUH & 3,034 7.9 399 0.3
There was no share of tax attributable to associates at 20104 KX 2009 12 A31 8 » WEE(L

December 31, 2010 and 2009.

B RAlZEETA -
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For the year ended December 31, 2010

BZ20105 12831 B ILEE

11. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 11. 8REF  (B1ER)
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings/(loss) AKREERE ANBOERER LB ERF
per share attributable to owners of the Company is J(B18) iR TH8UEsTE -

based on the following data:

2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Earnings/(loss) B (E#8)
Earnings/(loss) for the purpose of FA{Est E & AXEA
basic and diluted RESERF, (E18)
earnings/(loss) per share ZBH, (&E) 27,879 (141,225)
2010 2009
Number of Number of
Shares Shares
BRE R ’HEE
Number of shares BB
Weighted average number of REsTESRER
ordinary shares for the ar,/ (E#8)
purpose of basic earnings/(loss) 5 A N
per share T 2,281,284,495 1,603,184,015
Effect of dilutive potential BEEELBER L
ordinary shares:
Share options granted RARIBEEEE
by the Company R HE 34,269,923 =
Weighted average number of RIEtE BiREE
ordinary shares for the AR,/ (B 2 EEk
purpose of diluted InkE 9
earnings/(loss) per share 2,315,554,418 1,603,184,015
Diluted loss per share for the year ended December HZE2000F 12831 B It FE 2 TFREE
31, 2009 were the same as the basic loss per share. BEEGRENGERE - ARART
The Company’s outstanding share options were not ZARITHRBARREEERBELE -
included in the calculation of diluted loss per share Htst EREEEER - AAFZK
because the effects of the Company’s outstanding TEEERREYESETAN

share options were anti-dilutive.

Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited #5217 (5£8) BR 2 A 131
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For the year ended December 31, 2010
HE20106128318 ILEE
12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 12. EENEEEE
EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) ESENE
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the ENSENGESEAZHE M
Directors were as follows: T
2010
Other emoluments
Hitt &
Performance  Retirement
Salaries related benefit
and other incentive scheme
benefits payments contributions Total
Fees Fek HEKXRE  BAREFR emoluments
1e HiER HEz%s rEzHX WemeE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT B¥Tn B%Tn B%Tn  B%Trn
Executive Directors HTES
Richard Man Fai LEE g — 2,533 — 12 2,545
Jeff Man Bun LEE N — - — - —
Tik Tung WONG TR — 1,008 — 12 1,020
— 3,541 — 24 3,565
Non-executive Director ~ FHTES
Kam Har YUE REE 34 — — = 34
Independent BUFHTES
Non-executive Directors
Boon Seng TAN B £ 90 — — — 90
Ying Kwan CHEUNG o & 35 90 - — - 90
Peter Pi Tak YIN FRE 90 — — — 90
270 — — — 270
Total k) 304 3,541 — 24 3,869
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12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 12. EREEME @
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) EEBE (B
2009

Other emoluments

H it &
Performance  Retirement
Salaries related benefit
and other incentive scheme
benefits payments contributions Total

Fees ek HEBERR  EMHKEF  emoluments
we  HeRER HBEcRE HEzER #Hesm
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AETT AT BT A%Tr AETx

Executive Directors BITEE
Richard Man Fai LEE ENE — 1,329 1,056 12 2,397
Jeff Man Bun LEE FXH — — — — —
Tik Tung WONG TIRE — 889 13 12 914
Waison Chit Sing HUI TR
(resigned on (72009
July 1, 2009) 7A1B &) — 479 6 6 491
— 2,697 1,075 30 3,802
Non-executive Director ~ FHTEE
Kam Har YUE REE 34 — — = 34
Independent BYEHTES
Non-executive Directors
Raymond Cho Min LEE &R
(resigned on (720094
June 3, 2009) 6A3HEHT) 38 — — — 38
Boon Seng TAN B & 90 — — = 90
Ying Kwan CHEUNG o JE 90 — — — 90
Peter Pi Tak YIN FRE
(appointed on (720094
September 2, 2009) QR2HEZRT) 30 — = — 30
248 — — — 248
Total k) 282 2,697 1,075 30 4,084

Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited #5217 (5£8) BR 2 A
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12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

The performance related incentive payments are
determined as a percentage of the turnover or
the profit after tax of the Group.

There was no arrangement under which a
Director waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the years ended December
31, 2010 and 2009.

During the years ended December 31, 2010 and
2009, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
the Directors as an inducement to join, or upon
joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of
office.

Employees’ emoluments

During the year, the five highest paid individuals
included one Director (2009: one Director),
details of whose emoluments are set out in note
12(a) above. The emoluments of the remaining
highest paid individuals were as follows:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. EEREEME @)

(a)

EEME (@

HEBRI|AE 2 B2 TRIBEAS
Bz e XBARBRANZETE
DHEE -

THEREMEZSREEZ2010F K
2009F12A31 AL FEHRKAE
METAHE -

B E2010%F k2009124 31H I1E
FE  AEEVEREENEMA
M (ERIMAREE 2SR
BRARME -

EEME

TR SuUFMERRALT MUK
BE= (2009 : IUEF) @ e
AE T EXHIFE12() NI - 8
THHERSALZHMESWT ¢

2010 2009

HK$’000 HK$'000

BET T BET T

Salaries and other benefits e kEMmET 6,927 9,045
Retirement benefits RIKEFEIZZ

scheme contributions HR 28 35

6,955 9,080
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BE2010512831B L EE
12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 12. EEREEME ®
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(b) Employees’ emoluments (continued) (b) EEME (B
The emoluments of the remaining highest paid RTIMEEHE e AL
individuals fell within the following bands: FEWT :
2010 2009
Number of Number of
employees employees
BEEAY EE AZ
HK$1,000,001-HK$1,500,000 /& #1,000,0017C
- 75 #1,500,0007T — 2
HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000 7% #1,500,0017T
— /& ¥ 2,000,000 4 _
HK$2,500,001-HK$3,000,000 % #2 500,001
- 7% 3,000,0007T — 1
HK$4,500,001-HK$5,000,000 & #¥4,500,0017T
— 75 #5,000,0007T — 1
4 4
During the years ended December 31, 2010 and HZE2010%F K2009F 12 A31H 1t
2009, no emoluments were paid by the Group to FE AEEVEMFESHEST
the non-director, highest paid employees as an BESZEABE  (EAMAKRSE
inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, B 7 B sk BERL RS (E -
or as compensation for loss of office.
13. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME 13. R K@ R+ E
The Group operates a mandatory provident fund AEEBREBEENBRARIMEAERKE
(“MPF”) scheme for all qualifying employees of its THRy—ERGIERES ([RES])F
Hong Kong subsidiaries. The assets of the scheme are g ZATEZEEBRGEREARBIRA
held separately from those of the Group in funds under SEEECESREBRES - RAFE
the control of trustees. The retirement benefit cost MEBEaREHBRERAENER BB
charged to the consolidated income statement during 1,836,0007T (20094 : ##2,181,000
the year amounted to HK$1,836,000 (2009: 7T) - BRI AEBRRES GROIEE
HK$2,181,000), which represents contributions paid or LEEEZES 2 ETREAER -
payable to the fund by the Group at the rates specified
in the MPF Ordinance.
For subsidiaries other than in Hong Kong, contributions ZERBABUINCZHBRAT » NEEFTE
are made to the defined contribution schemes by the R HETEELN o R THIR B @Rl L
Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes at B2 FrEIA BT L REL - XFE
the relevant jurisdiction. The contributions made by BB B RBIIEL 2 HR BB
subsidiaries other than in Hong Kong during the year 3,319,0007t (20094 : & #3,216,000

amounted to HK$3,319,000 (2009: HK$3,216,000). JT) °

Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited #5217 (5£8) BR 2 A 1
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14. RESTRUCTURING COSTS 14. EAHEH
HZE2009F 12831 ILEE - AEEM
RETTEBEARE - EEERAAE
WS EBBRIBAMIBBAER - UK
BOAREBNLEERY - REXKER
2| - HE2009F12831HILFE - &
FTHEWZLETEINREREAHNER
1F - WEABE10,081,000TH EHE

During the year ended December 31, 2009, the Group
embarked on a business restructuring plan as a cost
cutting measure to scale down the non-performing
businesses and to alleviate the operating expenses of
the Group. Pursuant to the business restructuring plan,
certain tenancy agreements and employment contracts
of certain staff were terminated and the relevant

136

severance payment of HK$10,081,000 was incurred e
as restructuring costs for the year ended December
31, 20009.
15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. REW
Investment
properties
outside Hong
Kong held
under medium-
term leases
EEBUIIE
BEPHEY
BEZREWME
HK$’000
BT T
The Group KEH
Fair value ANSHIE]
At January 1, 2009 M2009F1A1H 17,000
Increase in fair value recognised WA BERRERZ
in the consolidated income statement NY{EE N 740
At December 31, 2009 and January 1, 2010 M2009% 12 A31H
K&2010F1A 1R 17,740
Disposal of subsidiaries & B8 A R (15,060)
Increase in fair value recognised REREERRERLZ
in consolidated income statement DB N 320
At December 31, 2010 M2010F12A31H 3,000
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For the year ended December 31, 2010
HZE2010F12A31H L FE

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 15. REW = @)

The investment properties of the Group were revalued
by Raffles Appraisals Limited, independent qualified
professional valuers. Raffles Appraisals Limited is the
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Valuers, and
has appropriate qualifications and recent experiences
in the valuation of similar properties in relevant
locations. The valuation, which conforms to
International Valuation Standards, was arrived by
reference to an open market, existing use basis.

The Group’s investment properties are measured using
the fair value model.

The investment properties of the Group are rented out
or available for rent under operating leases purpose,
further summary details of which are included in note
40.

At December 31, 2010, the Group had not pledged
investment properties to secure facilities granted to
the Group (2009: HK$15,060,000) (note 43).

AEBEBREME BB F XA EMHHE
AHEBERAREITERN - HAFTHER
REAR/BAGHEMHESE - EHERML
EHNFREVMXEETHAEREERK
MEARE B - R MAER A BRMGEEL
TR ARMIERIRGERELEET -

AEEREMFEAER R FEEA

=
E°

AEECHEEKEEFEERRZRE
MEABKEHE  EEMERNE—F
FHIEE I FE40

MR20105 12831 H » AREEI EEKIFR
EME  BEUARTAEBZEEEE
1R (20094 : B #15,060,0007T) (M3E
43) o

Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited #5217 (5£8) BR 2 A
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EZE2010F12A31H IEFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. M5 - MERRE

Leasehold
land in
Hong Kong
under medium  Buildings Furniture,
term lease outside Buildings in fixtures and
EE#RE HongKong Hong Kong  Leasehold equipment  Machinery Motor Motor
PEHRY EEEUS EE# improvements M andtools  vehicles yacht Total
REZIh BEZBT RAZET DXL RERRE HERIA RE KEBEE ag
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK§O00  HK$000  HK§O00  HK$000  HK$O00
AUTT  AETn  EETn AT AT B¥Tr  AETr BT BETr
The Group (Restated) A58 (E5)
Cost RAE
At January 1, 2009 #R2009%1A1R 26,090 899 2,087 56,362 36,150 9,586 11,961 17,636 160,771
Exchange difference ERER - 1 - 103 499 302 25 — 930
Acquisition of a subsidiary KB —FIHBAF) - — — = 18 = = = 18
Additions RE = — — 14,899 5478 5,675 2,609 - 28,661
Disposals HE = — — (9,623) (2,527) (1,219) (3,908) — (17,277)
At December 31, 2009 20095124318
and January 1, 2010 R&20101A1H 26,090 900 2,087 61,741 39,618 14,344 10,687 17,636 173,103
Exchange difference ERZESR — 8 - 884 291 158 224 — 1,565
Additions NE 16,036 - 12,994 2,512 5,164 2,070 19,321 - 58,097
Disposal of subsidiaries ~ HEHBAT - - - (39) (310) - — = (349)
Disposals HE - — - (928)  (16,399) (804) (3,241) = (21,372)
At December 31, 2010 120105127318 42,126 908 15,081 64,170 28,364 15,768 26,991 17,636 211,044
Accumulated depreciation Z3f {7 &
At January 1, 2009 200951718 272 26 52 32,862 29,340 7216 7,006 1,764 78,538
Exchange difference ERER — — — 45 483 298 19 = 845
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE—EKBAF = = — — 12 — — = 12
Provided for the year REEHE 652 23 52 9379 2,831 1,412 1,870 882 17,101
Eliminated upon disposals & B # — - — (3,740) (1,687) (991) (2,266) — (8,684)
At December 31, 2009 2009128318
and January 1, 2010 R&201061A1R 924 49 104 38,546 30,979 7,935 6,629 2,646 87,812
Exchange difference EiZS — — = 635 216 63 140 = 1,054
Provided for the year REEHE 786 2 160 7,778 3,229 1,994 2,771 882 17,624
Disposal of subsidiaries ~ HEMBAA — - - (12) (157) - — — (169)
Eliminated upon disposals & B i — - - (928)  (16,305) (802)  (3,046) —  (21,081)
At December 31, 2010 R2010%12A318 1,710 73 264 46,019 17,962 9,190 6,494 3,528 85,240
Net book values R FE
At December 31, 2010 20105127318 40,416 835 14,817 18,151 10,402 6,578 20,497 14,108 125,804
At December 31, 2009 20095124318 25,166 851 1,983 23,195 8,639 6,409 4,058 14,990 85,291
At January 1, 2009 R2009%1A1H 25,818 873 2,035 23,500 6,810 2,370 4,955 15,872 82,233
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16.¥Y¥ - BRENRZE @)

(continued)

201012 A31H - REEUKREES
40,416,000t (20094 : B
25,166,0007T) < E L4 - LA KEREE
DRI AERE14,817,0007T (20094 : A
1,983,0007T) K 7% 14,108,0007T (2009
£ 1 J#14,990,0007T) 2 18T KB it

The Group had pledged leasehold land with a carrying
amount of HK$40,416,000 (2009: HK$25,166,000),
buildings and motor yacht with a carrying amount of
HK$14,817,000 (2009: HK$1,983,000) and
HK$14,108,000 respectively (2009: HK$14,990,000)
to secure facilities granted to the Group at December

31, 2010 (note 43).

RIERER  BEURRTAEBEZEE
PEfR (f15E43) -

Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold equipment Motor
improvements &R vehicles Total
MERE RERFE AE HE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETF T BT BT
The Company YNNG
Cost BAE
At January 1, 2009, R2009F1A1H
December 31, 2009 20094 12A31H
and January 1, 2010 K 2010F1A1H 6,459 14,137 1,000 21,596
Disposals HE — (13,048) — (13,048)
At December 31, 2010 201012 A31H 6,459 1,089 1,000 8,548
Accumulated depreciation R E
At January 1, 2009 72009F1A1H 6,293 13,509 1,000 20,802
Provided for the year REEHE 43 238 — 281
At December 31, 2009 7200912 A31H
and January 1, 2010 20101418 6,336 13,747 1,000 21,083
Provided for the year AFEHE 43 197 — 240
Eliminated upon disposals 5 R 3 3 — (13,048) — (13,048)
At December 31, 2010 7201012 A31H 6,379 896 1,000 8,275
Net book values REFE
At December 31, 2010 7201012 A31H 80 193 — 273
At December 31, 2009 7200912 A31H 123 390 — 513
At January 1, 2009 720091 H1H 166 628 — 794
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17. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ke G

For the year ended December 31, 2010
HZE2010F12A318LFE

17. A HEERE

The Group EH
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
(Restated)
(E7)
Cost RAE
At January 1 M1A1H 1,621 1,619
Exchange difference &R E%RR 16 2
At December 31 MR12A31H 1,637 1,621
Accumulated amortisation - §l
At January 1 R1A18 78 39
Charge for the year KEEZH 38 39
At December 31 H12A31H 116 78
Net book value REFE
At December 31 MN12H31H 1,521 1,543
The Group’s prepaid lease AEEZBENHEERBERRE
payments comprise:
Land outside Hong Kong under £ &B AIMEE
medium term lease FRHEARR AR 2 i 1,521 1,543
Analysed for reporting purposes as: #L R B B D41 A
Current assets (included in trade  REIEE Gt AE S EEK
and other receivables) N H A UK BR 70) 35 34
Non-current assets IERBEE 1,486 1,509
1,521 1,543




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R B
For the year ended December 31, 2010
BE2010512831B L EE
18. GOODWILL 18. &
Total
Wi
HK$'000
PEEEF T
The Group KEH
Cost RAE
At January 1, 2009 R2009%F1H1H 31,729
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi kg — I B A A 1,728
At December 31, 2009 and January 1, 2010 R2009F12H31H
K2010F1H1H 33,457
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 38(a)) HE—MH B AR A (H5E38()) (145)
At December 31, 2010 R2010F12H31H 33,312
Accumulated impairment 2R E
At January 1, 2009 2009 1H1H 118
Exchange difference PE =58 (26)
Impairment loss EEE 3,176
At December 31, 2009, January 1, 2010 20094 12A31H -
and December 31, 2010 2010%1H1H
K2010%12831H 3,268
Carrying value BREE
At December 31, 2010 720104 12A31H 30,044
At December 31, 2009 2009412 A31H 30,189
During the year ended December 31, 2010, the Group BZE2010F12A31 B ILEE - AEFET
assessed the recoverable amount of goodwill HEAEEFRE R EFHE 2 GE
associated with the Group’s fashion apparels and Z AT E B EE o BRI MR A S 2 AT
accessories business. The recoverable amount of the ElEBEI2EGFAEBEMTME - EEA
fashion apparels and accessories operations was BRAPEAZHBEERRETF16.24%
assessed by reference to value in use. A discount factor (20094 : B 16.52%) °
of 16.24% per annum (2009: 16.52% per annum)
was applied in the value in use model.
Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill BB BRI B E BB ER T REL o

are disclosed in note 19.
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19.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON
GOODWILL

Goodwill has been allocated for impairment testing
purposes to the cash-generating units including
fashion apparels and accessories.

The recoverable amount of this cash-generating unit
is determined based on a value in use calculation
which uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by the directors covering a five-year
period, and a discount rate of 16.24% per annum
(2009: 16.52% per annum).

Cash flow projections during the budget period are
based on the same expected gross margins and raw
materials price inflation throughout the budget period.
The cash flows beyond that five-year period have been
extrapolated using a steady 7% per annum growth rate
which is the projected long-term average growth rate
for fashion apparels and accessories market. The
directors believe that any reasonably possible change
in the key assumptions on which the recoverable
amount is based would not cause the carrying amount
of the unit to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount
of the cash generating unit.

The key assumptions used in the value in use
calculations for fashion apparels and accessories cash
generating units are as follows:

Budgeted market share Average market share in
the period immediately
before the budget period.
The values assigned to
the assumption reflect
past experience, which is
consistent with the
directors’ plans for
focusing operations in
these markets.

Average gross margins
achieved in the period
immediately before the
budgeted period.

Budgeted gross margin

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19. & ZRERH

BREARNS AR RERS

ELEN - BREEREM -
ReELBM Z KRB SEIKE IR

FREETEET - ;fTERAZEER
SBRADNERESHAEZ —EFRBAF
ZWETBE  REF16.24% (20094
HFF16.52%) I =K o

BEHRN R RERARERES
A Z BRTEEN X LR FHERBR
KitE - ZhFHMRZASRECKA
7% 2 IBEF IR TR - ZFRERRRD
R RECE M5 BRI R B9 K
R -EEMRE EtEATRESEZE
ZREMOBR2EMSEAIEES - &
TeEYRATELEMNZREAEBLE
EE{EE:E R

EREREMHReELEMLERER
T%ZEKF“WT

mizhaxE B EHR 2 B
REHETHBHEA
Ko ERRZER
R BERBBAT
ey WEHEEH
ERZEM B 2K
B E B/ —

o

BEERN =X SR 78 E W A1 A

FTER1S 2 F5EF

_?_ o
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For the year ended December 31, 2010

#E20104 12831 A L4
20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 20. ARMIB AR 2 RE
The Company
P NN
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BEET T
Unlisted shares, at cost EIBERD © KANE 293,504 293,504
Less: Impairment loss recognised & : B R Z BEEIE (30,736) (30,736)
262,768 262,768
Financial guarantee contract B HER A Y 4,283 3,475
267,051 266,243
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at ARABIR2010F12A31H 2 = EHTE R
December 31, 2010 are shown in note 49. A B RS A KT FE49 o
21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 21. RBtE AR 2=
The Group
rEH
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Share of net assets of associates ~ JE{G B & A A& & FE
(note (b)) (F$5E (b)) — —

Notes: Mot -

(@) On July 16, 2010, EBFEFHESBR AT, an (a) M2010F7H16H @ REBEZ B E N A
associated company of the Group, has been LEFRNESEARARERELEMT
deregistered pursuant to the approval of /& L& PTTIRE B B 2 HE /& B s o
THERER.
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Notes: (continued)

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 21.

(b)  The summarised financial information in respect of
the Group’s associates is set out below:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REEE R B 2 B ()

BeE - ()

(b) AEEBEARNZMBEMMEMNT

2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Total assets BEE 20,121 32,349
Total liabilities AR (67,063) (55,525)
Net liabilities BEFE (46,942) (23,176)
Group’s share of net assets of AEBEGEERRZ
associates BEFE — —
Turnover B 1 10,135
Loss for the year RFEEEE (14,116) (29,764)
Group’s share of results of AEBEE(RHE QA
associates for the year RFEEEE — (95)
Group’s share of other REEE (G E QT
comprehensive income of RNEFEEMEEBA
associates for the year — —
Market value of listed securities A R {EZ 5T E 5,703 37,448

Particulars of the Group’s principal associates at
December 31, 2010 are shown in note 50.

AREBR2010F12A31H 2 TEHZE N

A B R FI SR FE50



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 S 2% MY =

For the year ended December 31, 2010

B Z2010F 128310 L FE
22. INTEREST IN A JOINTLY 22. R—EHREEZEFER 2 ER
CONTROLLED ENTITY
The Group
rEE
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Unlisted investment REMHE 3,855 —
Share of result of B —EHEEEHEREE
a jointly controlled entity (335) —
3,520 —
Notes: B&E
(a) Particulars of the Group’s jointly controlled entity at (a) BBEAEER2010612A318 2 &R
December 31, 2010 is as follows: I EEFENT
Percentage
of equity
Particulars attributable to
Place of of issued share the Group
Name of entity incorporation capital rEEERL Principal activities
BERER 118 K 3L 3t 2 ERITRAFE REFIL TEER
Binda WKH Hong Kong 12,000,000 shares 50 Distribution and retail
(Greater China) of HK$1 each of fashion accessories
Limited
REXRBERAA B8 SREBESE 50 PHRTER AL
Va3
12,000,0008%

Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited #5217 (5£8) BR 2 A
Annual Report 2010 4 % ]45



R E Lk

For the year ended December 31, 2010
HZE2010F12A31R LFE

22. INTEREST IN A JOINTLY 22.
CONTROLLED ENTITY (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b) The summarised financial information in respect of
the Group’s jointly controlled entity which is accounted
for using equity method of accounting is set out below:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R—EHEEGERzES
()
it ()

(b) FEFAEDSEAFEZAKERR
RHERZHMETBERIIIMT

2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Total assets BEE 15,600 —
Total liabilities FCY=Ri (8,554) —
Net assets BEFE 7,046 —
Group’s share of net assets of A& B E(F— KR
a jointly controlled entity THEREEFE 3,523 —
Turnover EER 24,038 —
Loss for the year RFEEEE (670) —
Group’s share of result of AEEEG—HERZES
a jointly controlled entity ERAFEZEE
for the year (335) (1,729)
Group’s share of other ANEE B e AL — R A REH
comprehensive income of ERAFEZ2HMEEKA

a jointly controlled entity
for the year
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23. INVENTORIES 23. 78
The Group
rEH
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Finished goods BURL & 168,785 197,606
Spare parts = 23,945 24219
192,730 221,825
Included in the above figure are finished goods of it & E R 2 B ¥ 49, 237,0007T (2009
HK$49,237,000 (2009: HK$48,440,000) which have F : B#548,440,00070) Z R M 0 WA
been pledged as security for bank loans (note 43). ESRITE R 2 R (MI7E43)
24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 24. ES R K HAEUWERF
The Group
rEE
31/12/10 31/12/09 01/01/09
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BEET T BETT
(Restated)  (Restated)
(E7%) (E7%)
Trade receivables B 5 R B WBR X 114,136 78,878 128,366
Less: allowance for doubtful debts o REREE (1,229) (2,465) (1,604)
Total trade receivables, B 5 1 2R pE W BR FOR
net of allowance for doubtful debts REERERE 112,907 76,413 126,762
Deposits, prepayments HEASEINES
and other receivables Ko H A 8 L BR 5K 100,900 106,464 122,090

213,807 182,877 248,852
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24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
58 755 R 2% B &

For the year ended December 31, 2010
HZE2010F12A318LFE

24. B 5 E R R H Ath B W AR =X ()

RI|BEHR - B 5 EREBBERFORR R

net for allowance of doubtful debts at the end of the B RRITHOT
reporting period:
The Group
AEE
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BETFIT
Within 30 days 30KA 74,835 56,834
31 to 60 days 31 XE60X 24,004 10,000
61 to 90 days 61 R E90K 9,301 2,752
91 days to 1 year 91KE1IF 2,987 4815
Over 1 year 1FE A 1,780 2,012
Total @zt 112,907 76,413

The Group allows an average credit period of 7 to 90
days to its customers.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses
credit scoring system to assess the potential customer’s
credit quality and defines credit limits by customer.
Limits and scoring attributed to customers are reviewed
twice a year. Approximately 96% (2009: 91%) of the
trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired
have the best credit scoring attributable under the
credit scoring system used by the Group.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance were
debtors with a carrying amount of HK$4,767,000
(2009: HK$6,827,000) which are past due at the
reporting date for which the Group has not provided
for impairment loss. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

AEBGETEPFHIREIORZEE
5 -

RERETAHELH ARBERBEER
AOBEHEEEREFZEEERRR
EEBEFPZEERE - BEFZRBER
ADBFRIMR - REBFAERZIE
Bt GIES - YEBHITEREZE
5 1 3 & Y5 B 50 EL AP 4996 % (20094
91%) hwRBEEND

AEB B ERBURERBREREE
B #4,767,0007T (20094 : B ¥
6,827,0007T) 2 MR R © X BN
STEHEEE - MAKE L &R ES
BIERE - AEEYLEZ T HERMET
BEREAm -
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For the year ended December 31, 2010

BZE20106128310 L4
24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 24 EZFREHMEWR (&)
(continued)
Ageing of trade receivables which are past CEHBEEREZE ST RER
due but not impaired R Z R
The Group
rEH
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
91 days to 1 year 9I1KELIF 2,987 4,815
Over 1 year 1F 0 E 1,780 2,012
Total et 4,767 6,827
Movement in the allowance for doubtful R B2
debts
The Group
TEH
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Balance at beginning of the year R F#) 2 &8k 2,465 1,604
Impairment losses recognised BLFE WK BR I RR 2
on receivables BB EE 509 2,163
Amounts recovered FAWEZ &
during the year (1,745) (1,302)
Balance at end of the year AR 1,229 2,465
Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are REBREBEAEENRBECE ST RER
individually impaired trade receivables with a balance BR KA 8278 1 509,0007T (20094 :
of HK$509,000 (2009: HK$2,163,000) which were 2,163,0007T) © % RE&LEBE KA A]
past due and not recoverable. The impairment e - BERBREEERNZZFES T
recognised represented the carrying amount of these REWRR Z REE - MASEILERE
trade receivables and the Group does not hold any ZEEGMFEEMAETRR o

collateral over these balances.
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24,

25.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

Ageing of impaired trade receivables

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24. ESZ R KR HMEWRR (@)

EREE 5 EREWRNR 2 Rk

The Group
rEH

2010 2009

HK$’000 HK$'000

BE T T BT T

Within 30 days 30K A — 1,319
31 to 60 days 31RXE60K — —
61 to 90 days 61 XE90K — —
91 days to 1 year 91 KEIF 482 590
Over 1 year 1A F 747 556
Total FE 1,229 2,465

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO
ASSOCIATES/A JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITY/SUBSIDIARIES

The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and
have no fixed terms of repayment.

25. By ENEE AT, —EH
EEFIERE HE AR RE

ZERBAEE - 8 N E EER
H o
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For the year ended December 31, 2010

BZ20105 12831 B ILEE
26. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 26. fitHECSRMEE
ASSETS
The Group
KEH
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
At January 1 R1A1H 15,252 21,527
Disposals & — (275)
Impairment loss on AHEECeRmEE
available-for-sale B EE
financial assets (5,700) (6,000)
At December 31 MR12A31H 9,552 15,252
Available-for-sale financial AHEZ
assets comprise of: TREERRE
Unlisted securities: W|IREES
Debt securities without interest EFEREEE 2
and maturity date B E 5 252 252
Equity securities (note) RAZES () 9,300 15,000
9,552 15,252
Analysed for reporting purposes as: #t B %R B 8 M D47 &
Current assets MEEE — —
Non-current assets ERBEE 9,552 15,252
9,552 15,252
Note: Mot -

The unlisted equity securities are measured at fair value and
are classified as Level 3 fair value measurement. Fair value
is estimated using a discounted cash flow model. In
determining the fair value, a risk adjusted discount factor of
13.9% (2009: 10.6%) are used.

BIBEZRAELFDNEATFEMSE  E 5
HAF=ZEATEFE - 2FENFERITR
RenEENGEET - REEATER - FH
13.9% (20094 : 10.6%) 2 [# [% 78 & AL IR
$ o
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27.

28.

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

27.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Hib LA EFFABESNE R
BE

The Group and
the Company

EEBERARQT
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BET T
At January 1 MR1A18 10 6
Fair value gains on BEMARFEEGFAEREHN
other financial assets SREEZAFERT
at fair value through
profit or loss 7 4
At December 31 M®12A831H 17 10
Market value of listed securities: HBEESZHE :
Equity securities listed REBEE 2 BRAEFH
in Hong Kong 17 10

The carrying amounts of the above financial assets
were classified as held for trading.

All financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are stated at fair values. Fair values of the listed
investments are determined by reference to the quoted
market bid prices available on the Stock Exchange.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Bank balances are interest bearing at respective saving
deposits rate in Hong Kong, Mainland China, Singapore
and Malaysia, and the effective interest rate of the
Group’s bank balances ranged from 0.01% to 1.17%
(2009: 0.01% to 0.53%) per annum.

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group included currencies
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to
HK$43,823,000 (2009: HK$10,430,000) which is not
freely convertible into other currencies.

28.

tieREELFAMERRATHEER

=

PIBENARAFEFABRZ EREEDTZ
RFEIIR - BREEREZAFETZ
EHEMX ARz mSEABMERE

RekReEEHEE

SBITHEBTIERES - PRAM - 0
BEERAESBZREER KA X
B AEBERITEHRZERFENTF
B *0.01%%E1.17% (20094 : 0.01% =
0.53%) °

RBEHR  AEBZREMREEE
HEBEUAAREABEMATAIAMHN
mAHEMEEN T AE43,823,000
7 (20094 : 7 ¥10,430,0007T) °
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28. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 28. RERBEEEER )
(continued)
At December 31, 2010, bank balances amounts to MR2010%F12A31H8 @ SRITE&E 8B BE
HK$107,561,000 (2009: HK$114,565,000) have been 107,561,000 (20094 : & #¥&
pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the 114,565,0007T) EE AR EBER 2 IR
Group (note 43). The pledged bank deposits will be TRE 2 ARG (FI5E43) o R IRTT
released upon the settlement of relevant bank FRERABIRITERERERR - X
borrowings. The pledged bank balances carry interest EIRRITHEBRRFFNENTF0.05%%F
rate range from 0.05% to 0.65% (2009: 0.01% to 0.65% (20094 : 0.01%E1.45%) 51 8. °
1.45%) per annum.
29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 29. EZERRHEMENIERRMK
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables at RIERR - EHERENERRZRER
the end of the reporting period: DITWR -
The Group
rEH
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT TSI
Within 30 days 30K 58,495 28,575
31 to 60 days 31 XE60X 21,784 9,790
61 to 90 days 61K E90K 10,607 5,748
91 days to 1 year 91KE1F 5,760 9,468
Over 1 year 1FE A E 979 4,596
Total trade payables B 5 E R EN BRI AR 97,625 58,177
Customers’ deposits, accruals XFEle ENEBRAK
and other payables E b E AR 250,066 287,163
347,691 345,340
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EZE2010F12A31H IEFE

30. AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. B BAEE N B RRIA

COMPANIES
The Group The Company
r5%E PN

2010 2009 2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BB T BETT BETFT

Amounts repayable 1FRERBZE&H
within one year 441 959 441 441

The amounts included in the current liabilities are
unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no fixed
terms of repayment. The related companies are
controlled by certain Directors of the Company.

31. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE

BARBDREZ2BELN 28K
BEEERY - BB ARHARRET

B -

3. MEMEREK

LEASES
Minimum Present value of
lease payments minimum lease payments
REHEAR REHEANRRE
2010 2009 2010 2009
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BETT BETT BETT
The Group PiS-.
Amounts payable BEREEEZ
under finance leases: FET 2078 -
Within one year RIER 109 100 96 88
In the second FOFEELF
to fifth year inclusive 274 350 240 308
383 450 336 396
Less: Future finance charges W RRBEER (47) (54) — —
Present value of lease obligations T EEHKIEE 336 39 336 396
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31. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE 31. MERESK »
LEASES (continued)

Analysed as: DTN -

Present value of
minimum lease payments

BEAEARAE
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Amounts due within one year IR RB B EIET
shown under current liabilities 1FAEH 25 96 38
Amounts due after one year 1F&BBr S8 240 308
336 396
For the year ended December 31, 2010, the average HZE2010F 12831 B ILEE - THER
effective borrowing rate was 5.06% per annum (2009: EEHN R AFFE5.06% (20094 : FF|
5.06% per annum). Interest rates are fixed at the *&506%) ' FIREALBEEE - FTB
contract date. All leases were on a fixed repayment HEUTHERAEERTEF KRN
basis and no arrangement had been entered into for ENRELLZH - AREZBERER
contingent rental payments. The Group’s obligations BHEEEE L EER -

under finance leases were secured by the charge over
the leased assets.
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32. BORROWINGS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32. EX

The Group
PN |
31/12/10 31/12/09 01/01/09
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BETT BB T
(Restated)  (Restated)
(E%)) (E%))
Bank overdrafts RITEX 8,380 = 6,908
Bank loans RITEK 180,041 166,192 180,336
Other loans (note) H A &K (B E) 12,911 13,357 3,384
201,332 179,549 190,628
Secured (note 43) BHEM (P 5E43) 173,290 148,913 176,885
Unsecured 4 4K 1 28,042 30,636 13,743
201,332 179,549 190,628
Carrying amount repayable: EXEREE :
Within one year 1F R 169,756 145,384 152,919
More than one year, 1F A E
but not exceeding two years BNBE2F 7,764 7,752 4,921
More than two years, 2F LA F
but not exceeding five years BB E 8,073 11,031 12,641
More than five years 5 E 15,739 15,382 20,147
201,332 179,549 190,628
Carrying amount of bank loans that WIERME AR —F
are not repayable within one year AEEEEHEEETEK
from the end of the reporting period EEBGERZBRITERZ
but contain a repayment on demand FEEGIRABAEE
clause (shown under current liabilities) HT) (31,576) (28,159) (31,239)
169,756 151,390 159,389
Less: Amounts due within one year B AR RBaE
shown under current liabilities HT1FAEIH
FES3RIB (169,756) (145,384) (152,919)
Amounts due after one year 15 1% B HA < 5008 — 6,006 6,470
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32. BORROWINGS (continued) 32. EXR @)

The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also
equal to contracted interest rates) on the Group’s
borrowings are as follows:

AEBERZERNEREE (FEREH
REME) T :

2010 2009

Effective interest rate: ERFE
Variable-rate borrowings FEEX

The Group’s borrowings that are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency are set
out below:

1.80% — 9.05% 1.40% — 19.20%

WA E R EZAEBERZT
LI

RMB’000 EUR'000 MYR’000 SGD’000 UsD’000

3 03
AR¥TRT ®ratx B%¥Tx Trx X£Txn
At December 31, 2010 R2010F12H31H 37,471 — 3,122 642 835
At December 31, 2009 R2009%12A31H 16,347 2,232 2,701 130 293
At January 1, 2009 R2009F1A1H 6,100 633 1,722 1,345 997

During the year, the Group obtained new bank
borrowings in the amount of HK$603,654,000 (2009:
HK$656,929,000). The borrowings bear interest at
market rates and the proceeds were used to finance
the working capital.

The fair values of the Group’s borrowings at December
31, 2010 approximate to the corresponding carrying

FR - ANEEESSFEB603,654,000
7T (20094 : #B#656,929,0007T) 2 ik
BITER - ZBEFATHEN RS -
FISRIERIEEEES ZRE -

REBERN2010F12A318 2 AFE
EREIREEAEE ©

amounts.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2010F12A31H ILEE
32. BORROWINGS (continued) 32. EXR @)
Note: Bt -
The Group
AEH
31/12/10 31/12/09 01/01/09
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T
Other loan — secured (note a) B ER—FIRKTF (Hita) — 2,000 —
Other loan — unsecured (note b) HAth B 3% — SR (T 7 D) 12,912 11,357 3,384
12,912 13,357 3,384

33.

a)  The other loan is a short-terms borrowing which is
secured, bear interest at 10% per annum and
repayable within one year.

b) The other loan is a short-terms borrowing which is
unsecured, bear interest at 7.0% to 19.2% per annum
and repayable within one year.

CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTE

On June 4, 2010, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with Tanrich Capital Limited (the “Placing
Agent”), pursuant to which the Placing Agent has
conditionally agreed to act as placing agent, on a best
effort basis, for the purpose of arranging subscribers
who are third parties independent of the Company and
its connected persons to subscribe for the convertible
loan note to be issued by the Company with an
aggregate principal amount of up to HK$25,000,000.
The convertible loan note bear interest at 4% per
annum, mature on the second anniversary of the date
of issue and are convertible into new ordinary shares
of HK$0.02 each at the initial conversion price of
HK$0.16 each. On August 6, 2010, the Company and
the Placing Agent agreed to place the convertible loan
note in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$13,000,000 to Mr. Kwok Chung SIU, an
independent third party of the Company and its
connected persons, and the Company would not
proceed with the placing of the remaining aggregate
principal amount of the convertible bonds. The placing
was completed on August 12, 2010.

33.

a) ZEEHMERRAEMR  BEFNEI0%
AEER—FREREZEHMER -

by RMEEMERA/EBER  REFNX
7.0%E19.2%t BERR—FREEZE

TRREMRER

R2010F684H » AARIEIBUTMER
RARN(REREBDIILEESHE @ B
It RERRE EARERE) BKMHR
ERBHEELHEREA BILRAQF]
REBEBALTZEZR) RBARRET
BT AL RERS A7 25,000,0007T
A RBEREE - AIRRERERIR
FFRA%GTE - RETRBRIE A
FRH CAZROTBRRESREE
0.16tEE R AT REEEK0.027T 2
LBAT - K20108F6H » A AR ER
ERBEREEESEACHRBABE
13,000,000t 2 AJ A ERZIRE TER
WAL BIRARBIREBEALZE
=F) MARRTSEEEITRE T
ReRE2AIBRES RBEFER
20108 F 128 525K °
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33. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTE (continued)

The convertible loan note contains two components,
liability and equity components. The equity component
is presented in equity heading “Equity component of
convertible loan note”. The effective interest rate of
the liability component is 11.77%. At December 31,
2010, the fair value of the convertible loan note was

HK$12,053,000.

33.TEAREREE »®

75 ¥12,053,0007T °

AR ERZEEEMERD
BEREDRAD - BRI N[AREE
REB2ERBDIET 24

DR

Fa =

EWEY o8
EH D 2 EBRFRAE11.77% ° B20104F
12A318 @ AR EREB 2 AFEAL

HK$’'000

BET T

Proceeds of issue BITATSsIE 13,000

Transaction cost R G KA (435)

Equity component i (1,251)

Liability component at date of issue REBEITRHZEBEIHS 11,314
Interest expense calculated REBRREIL77%:1E

at an effective interest rate of 11.77% FERAX 496

Interest payable FEBF B (198)

Liability component at December 31, 2010 201012831 2 EEHD 11,612
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34. DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS)/

LIABILITIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. EEBIBE (BE) B

The Group REE
Convertible  Accelerated
loan note tax Tax
AR depreciation losses Total
ERERE MERERE HIEFE gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BEF T BT BT
At January 1, 2009 M2009F1H1H — 12 (10) 2
Charged to consolidated income  RERGFABRER
statement for the year k& — 3 10 13
At December 31, 2009 M2009%F12A31H
and January 1, 2010 K2010F1A1H — 15 — 15
Exchange difference fE L EH — 1 — 1
Recognised directly in equity BEENERER 278 — — 278
Credited to consolidated income st AFRLGEABRR
statement for the year (49) — — (49)
At December 31, 2010 M2010F12H31H 229 16 — 245
The Company ¥iNNE]
Convertible
loan note
GIE: Y3
BERE
HK$'000
BT T
At January 1, 2010 MR2010F1H1H —
Recognised directly in equity BEERERER 278
Credited to income statement STAFEARIEERK
for the year (49)
At December 31, 2010 201012831 H 229
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax TR BREENCEERIBLESR D
balances for financial reporting purposes: o
The Group The Company
rEE b NG|
2010 2009 2010 2009
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BET T BET T BET T
Deferred tax liabilities ERTIBRE 245 15 229 —




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt 75 3R 3R B &
For the year ended December 31, 2010
BE2010512831B L EE
34. DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS)/ 34 EEHIE (BE) BB W@
LIABILITIES (continued)
At December 31, 2010, the Group has unused tax 20101283118 - AEEAHIEKHEA
losses of HK$778,799,000 (2009: HK$1,205,811,000) BENzZABDAMNEBEBEREBEE
available for offset against future profits. No deferred 778,799,0007C (20094 : B #&
tax asset has been recognised in respect of the 1,205,811,0007T) ° A KRBEIHFT H
remaining amount of HK$778,799,000 (2009: BArs W ERBRBEE
HK$1,205,811,000) due to the unpredictability of 778,799,0007t (20094 : B
future profit streams. The tax losses may be carried 1,205,811,0007T) #E R iR E WL TH & EE ©
forward either 5 years or indefinitely. HMIEBE AE AT ERPEE -
35. SHARE CAPITAL 35. k&
Number of shares  Nominal value
RHEAR HE
HK$'000
BT TT
Authorised: EERA
At January 1, 2009, R2009F1H1H »
December 31, 2009 2009412 A318 &
and January 1, 2010 of 20101 H1H
HK$0.10 each FRREEBE0.107T 3,500,000,000 350,000
Effect of Share Sub-Division bkt iid -2
(note c) (Bt zEc) 14,000,000,000 -
At December 31, 2010 of 2010412 A31H
HK$0.02 each BREERK0.027T 17,500,000,000 350,000

Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited #5217 (5£8) BR 2 A
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35. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. B4 (&)

Number of shares

Nominal value

BHEE R
HK$'000
BET T
Issued and fully paid: ERTRBERA :
At January 1, 2009 of MR2009F 1 H1H
HK$0.10 each FREEEEE0.107T 294,027,710 29,403
Issue of shares (note a) BT (Mdska) 100,000,000 10,000
Issue of shares (note b) BT (M sEDb) 50,000,000 5,000
Issue of shares under exercise of AT B SR
share options (note 47) 2 1TAR 0 (B 5E47) 6,098,000 610
At December 31, 2009 2009 12AH31H
and January 1, 2010 of &2010F1A1H
HK$0.10 each S EESEE0.10T 450,125,710 45,013
Issue of shares under exercise of AT B SR
share options (note 47) 21Tk (fF5E47) 4,390,000 439
Effects of Share Sub-Division (note c) A& {7 #f 48 = 52 28 (Bt 3Ec) 1,818,062,840 —

Issue of shares under exercise of

RITEE TR

share options (note 47) mEITRR D (B aE47) 19,300,000 386
At December 31, 2010 of M2010%12A31H

HK$0.02 each FREES®0.027T 2,291,878,550 45,838
Notes: B&E -

(a)

(b)

Pursuant to a resolution passed by the independent
shareholders of the Company at a special general
meeting held on August 6, 2009, 100,000,000 new
shares of HK$0.10 each were issued at a placing price
of HK$0.28 each to six independent third parties. The
gross proceed of approximately HK$28,000,000 is
intended to be used as general working capital. The
placing was completed on October 30, 2009.

Pursuant to a resolution passed by the shareholders
of the Company at a special general meeting held on
August 6, 2009, 50,000,000 new shares of HK$0.10
each were issued at a subscription price of HK$0.28
each to Dr. Richard Man Fai LEE, the Executive
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
The gross proceed of approximately HK$14,000,000
is intended to be used as general working capital. The
subscription was completed on October 30, 2009.

Pursuant to a resolution passed by the shareholders
of the Company at a special general meeting held on
February 12, 2010, each issued and unissued share
of HK$0.10 each of the Company was subdivided into
5 shares of HK$0.02 each (the “Share Sub-Division”).

All the shares issued during the year rank pari passu
with the then issued shares in all respects.

(a)

(b)

(c)

BIEA R A B IR 7 2009F8 A6 H
BIIZREEFRAS LBBZ —TBRE
R REEESREE0.28TM6%TE
37 8 = %£77100,000,0000% & I = &
0. 10T ZHTA% » FTS FRIBARBHE
#28,000,000C#EIE—REEES -
B &£ R 20094 10 H30H 526 °

B AR AL E R 20098 A6 H 217
ZHREBHASG EBBZ —TERER
RREESTRBY0.28TTH AR RIHIT
ETREFRTHREAHEZS BB %17
50,000,000/ F X EEE#0.107T 2 $7
B o FT15 FRIE4AFE )% 14,000,0000T
RAE—REEELES - REN2009F
10A 308 &K °

BIEAR T RER201056E2 A 123 8217
ZRERAS ERBZIRER - AR
AEFIRTFREESE0.10T 2B 31T
N AR B 1T R AD 3 48 A SRS B AR T (B 75 B
0.027T 2 B fn ([R&(pHr4d)) o

FAMBEETROES THEERD
BOIZBNEBERSHA -
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36. RESERVES 36. Bt
The Company NN
Equity
component
Capital Share of convertible
redemption options loan note
Share reserve reseve  ARKREFR  Contributed  Accumulated
premium EXERE BER 2B surplus losses Total
RAEE i RERE EnHa BABH ZiER &it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETL BETL BETTL BETTL BETL BETL BETIL
At January 1, 2009 R2009F1A1H — 2,151 1,837 — 46,397 (45,064) 5,321
Issue of shares BI1RH 25,648 — — — — — 25,648
Issue of shares upon B LR E
exercise of R
share options Bkt 1,620 = (414) = = = 1,206
Issue of share options (7B L AR E — = 1,671 = = = 1,671
Lapse of share options B & BRRERN - - (465) — - 465 =
Loss for the year FRER — — — — — (4,982) (4,982)
At December 31, 2009 12009F 124318
and January 1, 2010 R2010%1A18 27,268 2,151 2,629 - 46,397 (49,581) 28,864
Issue of shares upon WNELARE
exercise of - adi
share options BIRH 3,579 — (774) — — — 2,805
Issue of share options FIRARKE - — 793 — — — 793
Recognition of A
equity component of BEHEEL
convertible loan note Eadn - - - 1,251 - — 1,251
Deferred tax liability TRREFEE
arising on convertible EECEL
loan note HERE - - - (278) - - (278)
Lapse of share options B L RBRERN — - (85) — — 85 —
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - (5,377) (5,377)
At December 31, 2010 20106128318 30,847 2,151 2,563 973 46,397 (54,873) 28,058
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36.

37.

RESERVES (continued)

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the Company can make a distribution out
of contributed surplus. However, the Company cannot
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out
of contributed surplus if:

(a) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to
pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital and share premium
accounts.

At December 31, 2010, the Company did not have
distributable reserves available for distribution (2009:
Nil).

CHANGES IN OWNERSHIP
INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

During the year, the Group acquired and disposed part
of its interest in Creative Pacific Limited and its
subsidiaries (“Creative Pacific”) and increased its
interest in Technorient Limited and its subsidiaries
(“Technorient”).

The Group disposed an aggregate 9% interest in
Creative Pacific in current year for the cash
consideration received and paid of HK$3,900,000 and
HK$700,000 respectively, decreasing its ownership
from 60% to 51%. The Group recognised an increase
in non-controlling interest at HK$1,402,000 and an
increase in other reserve of HK$1,798,000.

The Group’s interest in Technorient was increased by
4.9% in current year, increasing its ownership from
70.5% to 75.4%. The Group recognised a decrease
in non-controlling interest at HK$4,000,000 and an
increase in other reserve of HK$4,000,000.

36.

37.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ER-RE)

RIBERZEIBIFRARDE (BER]) » &
REIZABBRBAME DR © AT >
RARBENATNER T EIR KR IR
B I ARRIEE DK

(a) BEFHMNARREIMHEER
BE %X

(b) HEEZAERELKEAMENRES
EREDETRAERMDEERZ
A -

201012 H318 » RARW A S
k% #5 (20094 : &) -

!

AR 2 RSB

FA - AEEUBREEERBBNH
SERERRAREMB QR ([FHH
o)) 2B R - RSB MERBI R A

RABRAENBAR ([B%]) 2 #as

AEE  AEBEHERFHSEHEO%Z
B BEREEMNBEEREDRABE
3,900,0007T K i #700,0007T * < E
ERERE0%EES1% - ANEBRERIER
AR A 2542 N8 5 1,402,0007T 2 H A
1N ¥ 1,798,0007T °

RNEE  AEERB T 2 =L N
4.9%  SHBEEBEMBTIO5%HEE
75.4% o NE BRI RAE R DB
4,000,0007T K& E o {3 45 12 0 8 ¥
4,000,0007T °
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38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 38. LEMEB QT

(@) On May 31, 2010, the Group disposed Mighty (a) M2010F5H31H » REFHER
Will International Limited and Sunny Villa AEEEEZEHREMBARILER
Holdings Limited, in-direct wholly owned BERARIRBEZERERAA °

subsidiaries of the Company.

HK$’000
BT T
Analysis of assets and liabilities KEPEHIEZ BE
over which control was lost: REEDW -
Investment properties "EMSE 15,060
Property, plant and equipment ) 121
Other receivables H b FEBR 5K 16
Cash and cash equivalents HekReFMEIEE 1
Other payables B4t FE SRR K (45)
Goodwill EES 145
Net assets disposed BELEEEFE 15,298
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries: {HEN B ARl 2 EE
Consideration received B RARE 12,768
Transaction costs R KA (222)
Net asset disposed BELEEEFE (15,298)
Loss on disposal HEEE (2,752)
Net cash inflow on disposal of HERBANRZ
subsidiaries: HERAFE :
Consideration received in RReMASEEBEEE 2
cash and cash equivalents EWRE 12,768
Transaction costs R G KA (222)
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed & : EHEZIRE RIS EEEE (1)
12,545
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38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

(b)

On June 6, 2010, the Group disposed Rogers
International Limited, an in-direct wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. HEMEB A T @)

(b)

201066 A6H » AEBHEAR
AR ERENBEAREELH
RBERRAA -

HK$’000
BT T
Analysis of asset and liability KEFES R EE
over which control was lost: REEDW -
Net asset disposed EHECZEESFE —
Gain on disposal of subsidiary: HER Bz MK
Consideration received B E 9,880
Net asset disposed BEHEEEFE —
Gain on disposal & e 9,880
Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiary: HENB ARz H2 RAFE -
Consideration received in NP RFSEBEIEE 2
cash and cash equivalents 2B 9,880
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed B EHECZRERRESEFEEBER —
9,880
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For the year ended December 31, 2010

BZE20106128310 L4
38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 38. HEMK B QR (&)

(continued)

(c) On January 25, 2010, Trendy Move International (c) M2010%F1H25H @ AR AR
Limited (“Trendy Move”), an in-direct wholly 2EBENBRARHREEREAREA
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a) (M8 82— i B KR B () B2 &
a share subscription agreement (the 7 #47Binda S.p.A. ([Bindal) 8132
“Subscription Agreement”) with Binda S.p.A. — RO RE HE ([REHZE]) -
(“Binda”), an lItalian fashion accessories Bt - BindaR ERBEREHABR
distributor, pursuant to which Binda agreed to NRI([FEH]) 2#FH D - RNRE
subscribe for new shares in Binda WKH (Greater HETEKE  BERBGHBRK
China) Limited (“Binda WKH?”). After completion Binda% 5|# B 50%#E = ©

of the Subscription Agreement, Binda WKH will
be owned as to 50% by Trendy Move and 50%

by Binda.
HK$’000
BET T
Analysis of assets and liabilities KEPEFIEZBEEREESN -
over which control was lost:
Property, plant and equipment W - BB REME 59
Inventories 3= 6,826
Trade and other receivables B 51 3R & H b fE W BR K 3,342
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFHEEHR 1,254
Trade and other payables B 5 1F R R E AR (8,823)
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries ANIEES N NGIE ¢ (6,948)
(4,290)
Retained interest in a R—EEREHEE
jointly controlled entity RE#ER 2,145
Net liabilities disposed EHEBEFE (2,145)
Gain on disposal of subsidiary: ‘HENB R R]Z Kz -
Consideration received B E —
Net liabilities disposed BEREaEFE 2,145
Gain on disposal & e 2,145
Net cash outflow on disposal of subsidiary: 1 EHE a2 B L7 HFE
Consideration received in RRERASEBEEE 2
cash and cash equivalents B E —
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed & : EHEZIRE MRS EEEA (1,254)
(1,254)

Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited #5217 (5£8) BR 2 A 1
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39. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the balances with related parties
disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, during
the year, the Group entered into the following
significant related party transactions:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. EHEAMALT 2T ER S

MBI EMEBDIRE 2 BHAL

YN - REERATERET TS
TRHALLS :

2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
IT consultancy fee received from B — & A T WENE A
a related party (a) BRI & (a) 215 192
Sales of goods to B8 T ALD) - () (e)
related parties (b), (c), (e) — 7,267
Purchases of goods from B—EEsAREBAEY
a related company 4,739 —
General services fee from B— MBI —MREE
a related company 994 —
Storage services fee from BB AR ZRETRES
a related company 373 —

(a)

(b)

On February 1, 2010, the independent consultancy
agreement entered into between Auto Italia Limited,
an indirect subsidiary of the Company, and Mr. Michael
ADAMCZYK, the son of Mr. Herbert ADAMCZYK who
is a director of Auto Italia Limited, in relation to the
provision of professional consulting services in the area
of information technology operation and organization
strategy was renewed for a term of one year
commencing on February 1, 2010 and terminating on
January 31, 2011 at a consultation fee of USD2,101
per month.

On March 5, 2009, Auto Sportiva Limited (“Auto
Sportiva”), an indirect subsidiary of the Company, as
seller, and Mr. Michael ADAMCZYK, the son of Mr.
Herbert ADAMCZYK who is a director of Auto Sportiva,
as buyer, had entered into a provisional sale and
purchase contract for the sale of a new unit of Fiat car
(Model: 2008 F500 Lounge 1.4 M/T) from Auto
Sportiva for a consideration of HK$139,800.

On September 15, 2009, Noble Brand Investments
Limited (“Noble Brand”), an indirect subsidiary of the
Company, as seller, and Mr. Herbert ADAMCZYK, a
director of Noble Brand, as buyer, had entered into a
Sales Contract for the sale of a unit of used 1998
Technomarine yacht from Noble Brand for a
consideration of HK$7,000,000.

(a) ARARZHEENBARREAERRAD
RIERETEGRAREEEEKILE
Z FMichael ADAMCZYK % A Fra] 37
BRAREEMBHEERBERKE 2 E
¥ B ARTS 2 38 B 5 :5 20104 2
A1HEE—F - B2010F2A1HRHA
WR201161 B31E &1 - BERIE AF
AZ%E4£2,1017T °

(b) M200943A5H @ AR A EEHE
REIBWRAEERAR ([BHRAHE] -
ERBER) HERAEEEEEMILE
2 FMichael ADAMCZYK% & (1EBE
R)EAUBREEERE  AERAED
E—®WaH 2 Fiat/RE (BU5 : 2008
F500 Lounge 1.4 M/T) - R{BABIE
139,8007T °

(c) M2009%F9A15H @ ATz EEHEB
RAARKBR AR ([HRIE] - 1EA
EH)BENMRKESEENEEERE
F)EIMEESL  ANRREE—5
#5589 1998 Technomarine#z i + A
B &7 % 7,000,0007T °
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39. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(d)

(e)

Pursuant to a resolution passed by the independent
shareholders of the Company at the special general
meeting of the Company held on August 6, 2009, the
subscription agreement dated July 1, 2009 entered
into between the Company and Dr. Richard Man Fai
LEE, the Executive Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company, in relation to the subscription
by Dr. Richard Man Fai LEE for up to 50,000,000 new
shares of the Company in three tranches of not less
than 15,000,000 new shares each at a price of
HK$0.28 per share, was approved. The subscription
of 50,000,000 new shares of the Company by Dr.
Richard Man Fai LEE was taken place on October 30,
2009.

The pricing of transactions regarding goods sold to
related parties were determined by the Directors on
the basis of estimated market value.

Compensation of key management
personnel

The remuneration of Directors and other members of

30.EHEMALT ZEERZ (&)

BRI AR RIS R R AR 2009F 8 A6H
BIIZARBRRENAS LBBZ —
BERBE - ARBIERPITERFRITRE
HEXEELHR2009E7A1BE A
MENEE T REREE028TTH =t
HIRABEET D HA15,000,00008 £ A% &
&% N2 7)50,000,0000% 37 B% ~ 2 EE 7
HEHE o FEEE T M20094 108
308 e A 2R 8 7 A 750,000,000 P8
% °

EETHMALZRGZEBIRES
BAETHEEE -

EEEEANB RN

AEERNEZREMEREEABZFH

key management during the year were as follows: Bz T -
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Fees we 304 282
Salaries and other benefits e RHMER 10,468 7,140
Performance related HEBRBEEFE RS
incentive payments — 3,293
Retirement benefit BRREFIEIE 2 HR
scheme contributions 52 53
Short-term employee EHEEEA
benefits 10,824 10,768

The remuneration of Directors and other members of
key management are determined by the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

E=NHMEEETE A S 2 Z B i 3B
ZEERBEAZKRANTRETE °
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40. OPERATING LEASE

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned, net of outgoings of
HK$73,000 (2009: HK$242,000) during the year was
HK$260,000 (2009: HK$495,000). The properties
held has committed tenants for the next year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants for the following future

minimum lease payments which fall due:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

0. BREHELH
REEHBHEA

AFENFHEHSWALHNGBEHES
73,0007T (20094 : /& #242,0007T) &
7 1260,0007T (20094 : &% 495,000
TO) e RMERR AR —FREAREME

R Bk - AEERBEEL 2R R
SERERRMT -

2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BETT

Within one year 1A 103 226
The Group as lessee REEABAHEA

2010 2009

HK$’000 HK$'000

BET T BT

Operating lease rental recognised $$F£,mATﬁ

in the consolidated income
statement for the year

SREHERZ

37,369 52,837

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments under non-cancellable operating leases,

which fall due as follows:

RBEHR  AERE AR EEH

BEAERERAWOT
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000

BB T BETT

Within one year 1F R 34,549 32,795

In the second F2FEEELF
to fifth year inclusive 67,590 60,981
After five years 5 A 31,539 —
133,678 93,776
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40. OPERATING LEASE (continued)

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable
by the Group for certain of its office premises, retail
shops and warehouse with lease terms between 2 to
10 years. The Group does not have an option to
purchase the lease asset at the expiry of the lease
period.

The above lease commitments only include
commitments for basic rentals, and do not include
commitments for additional rental payment (contingent
rents), if any, which are to be determined generally by
applying pre-determined percentages to future sales
less of the respective leases.

At December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company had
no significant commitments under non-cancellable
operating leases.

41. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

0. EFEMEZH®W

REMENFTEARERETHAE
X TEEHkERzENES  HE
I F2E105F « AEE W ENHE R
REEHEEEEEE -

FREEAEERREAES T
ENBEIINEE (NAER) (E) 2%
o —RIURKHEEBRRBBRESR
BELRTEADLETE °

F2010%F Kk2009F 12 A31H » AR AN
BERNAHEEEHEE 2 &ML -

41. EREIE

The Group
REH
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T ST I
Capital expenditure in respect of & 5] 491 18 R B 2
the acquisition of property, EEBEYE BE
plant and equipment R EART
contracted but not
provided for 12,615 828

At December 31, 2010, the Company had no other
significant commitments (2009: Nil).

201061231 H » RRETEEME
RAEHE (20094 : &) o
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42. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, the Group and the
Company had the following outstanding contingent
liabilities which are not provided for in the financial
statements in respect of banking facilities and other
facilities made available to subsidiaries:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42. FARBE

RIREEK - AKERARARKEL
A SR 17 5 B R Lt 35 B T AR A B A

MERBHBEZIAREBENT :
The Group The Company
e . P YN
2010 2009 2010 2009

HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
ARTT ATt  B%TR  A%TE

Guarantees given for banking FhBH B A B ERR

facilities made available RITIEE

to subsidiaries EHER
Guarantees given for other FhH B 2 7] R

facilities made available HiEE

to subsidiaries R R

— — 402,632 375,628

— — 26,922 25,318

- — 429,554 400,946
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BE2010512831B L EE
43. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 43. EEKH
The Group
rEH
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
(Restated)
(&%)
Deposits in bank |ITHFER 107,561 114,565
Inventories FE 49,237 48,440
Investment properties "B — 15,060
Properties held for sale FIER S 25,470 21,760
Property, plant and equipment:  ¥1% - B&E M&E :
Land and buildings T i RAETF 55,233 27,149
Motor yacht 1 B 1% i 14,108 14,990
Floating charges on all assets of —FEIf{B AR Z
a subsidiary FrEBE 2 FEEFT 21,307 16,905
272,916 258,869

44,

45,

The amount represents assets pledged to banks and
other licensed financial institutions to secure banking
facilities granted to the Group. The pledged assets will
be released upon the settlement of relevant bank
borrowings.

COMPARATIVE FINANCIAL
INFORMATION

Certain comparative figures have been restated to
conform with current year’s presentation.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
year.

44.

45.

SEDAKERIFRITEEMRRT
REMFFESRMEEBRIEMCEE - R
EREESNHERRTEREERRE

tE 8 Bt 1 & R
EFHBRUFESTINEREASFES
5% -

EXEBREE

AEEERAAR  ARREEEET
B LAESELEETY  FRNES

BILEHERAERBRRFNREAE
B AEEZEBREEEF -
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45. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt
(which includes borrowings, convertible loan note and
obligations under finance leases), cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves
and retained profits.

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratios at December 31, 2010 and
December 31, 2009 were as follows:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

45. EXEAREE (&)

AEBZEARBREAE (BREEER -
ABEERRELABEHEESS) R
KIReFEEEBANKRBEE ARG
Em (BREBETRA - FHRERER
) o

i

=}

It
_I

5 L=

\

M2010%12 A31H K2009412 A31H
ZEBEHRRMT :

2010 2009

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT T
Debt (note (a)) &I (%)) 213,280 179,945
Cash and cash equivalents ReMRLEEIER (189,322) (151,973)
Net debt B FE 23,958 27,972
Equity (note (b)) (b)) 250,437 208,698
Gearing ratio BELE 9.6% 13.4%
Notes: Bt -

(a)  Debt comprises long-term and short-term borrowings,
obligations under finance leases and convertible loan
note as detailed in notes 32, 31 and 33 respectively.

(b)  Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group.

(@) FEEREBERHNEHEER BEEER
BRI ERER - FE0 BIERH
5132~ 3133 -

(b) REBEEAREMEEANRMEE -
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 46. €@ T A
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) eI EDHE
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BET T BT
(Restated)
(7))
Financial assets cRMEE
Fair value through profit or loss & A F{EFF AR
— Held for trading — BIEEE 17 10
Derivative financial instruments 74 &g T A — —
Loans and receivables B3R R SR
(including cash (BREE2R
and cash equivalents) ReEMBEER) 454,968 375,600
Available-for-sale AHHESmEE
financial assets 9,552 15,252
Financial liabilities N =R
Amortised cost i E ) DN 589,585 558,324
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) E@EREEEZERBE
and policies
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of AEEESFEEERYZESH
financial risks: market risk (including currency Rk - misERR (B2EEERE -
risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit MERBEEMERRERR) - EH
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk R RomEN R o ANEE 2 B
management programme focuses on the RERTESEEmMMIS 2T
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks TERIME - W HS KRB RVE Al R AR
to minimise potential adverse effects on the SEMBRREL 2 TFZE o

Group’s financial performance.

Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited #5217 (5£8) BR 2 A 1
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

(i)

Market risk

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to
the financial risks of changes in foreign
exchange rates, interest rates and equity
prices. The Group enters into a variety of
derivative financial instruments to manage
its exposure to foreign currency risks,
including:

° forward foreign exchange contracts
are entered into in respect of highly
probable foreign currency forecast
sales to limit its exposure to exchange
rate risk in relation to foreign currency
denominated monetary items.

Market risk exposures are measured using
sensitivity analysis.

There has been no change to the Group’s
exposure to market risks or the manner in
which it manages and measures the risk.

Foreign currency risk management

Several subsidiaries of the Group have
foreign currency sales and purchases,
which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk. The management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arises.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

46. € T B (@)

(b)

TR E e EIE B R R BR

(%)

(i)

i % 2 B

AEBZEBEEME S RIE
R FIRERAERETS S
RUERS - AEBEI Y ZIEITE

TRITE  UWEEEFMmYEZ
SNEERR - HARBE

o ABFAEEAZINETE
HISH & 1 7] 3= HA SN E
BH - AEREAREE T

EH A BIASNE RELL
E¥IEE ZEXER

FrE % 2 3% Ak
}_\E_ *ﬁﬁn*i °

g {5 P BRS

AREFEE SRR HA
SEEE R ERRY HRY
Y -

SN [ B

RE B EE M B A B AN
TTHE LR - EAKEEY
HNESRB B TR FE L B PTIE 4
ZINERR - XEREFH
ZEEHERZINERR ©
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 46. €@ T B (49

(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) eREKREEBEREBEK
and policies (continued) (&)
(i)  Market risk (continued) (i) WHEERE (&)
Foreign currency risk management SR e B EE ()
(continued)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign AEBRERB BUINE BE
currency denominated monetary assets and UrE¥EEREEAGE KR
monetary liabilities at the reporting date are HEWT :
as follows:
Liabilities Assets
g BE
2010 2009 2010 2009

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT AE¥TT B%Tx BB T

usb %% 43,531 30,488 98,707 21,277
RMB ARE 79,320 59,297 145,455 102,542
EUR BT 25,400 59,479 20,922 2,090
JPY = 34 122 28 6
SGD 7 AN 15,975 10,436 40,278 33,169
MYD Bk 11,375 9,248 31,555 16,794
GBP HgE 4 77 399 17
THB Tk 9,510 — — —

Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited #5217 (5£8) BR 2 A
Annual Report 2010 4 % _Z 77



178

LR E e

For the year ended December 31, 2010
HZE2010F12A318LFE

46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

(i)

Market risk (continued)

Foreign currency risk management
(continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the effects
of fluctuation in USD, RMB, EUR, JPY,
SGD, MYD, GBP and THB.

The following table details the Group’s
sensitivity to a 5% increase and decrease
in the Hong Kong dollars against the
relevant foreign currencies. 5% is the
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary
items and foreign currency forward
contracts, and adjusts their translation at
the period end for a 5% change in foreign
currency rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes external loans as well as loans to
foreign operations within the Group where
the denomination of the loan is in a
currency other than the currency of the
lender or the borrower. A positive number
below indicates an increase in profit and
other equity where the Hong Kong dollars
strengthen 5% against the relevant
currency. For a 5% weakening of the Hong
Kong dollars against the relevant currency,
there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the profit and other equity, and
the balances below would be negative.
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46. R T B (@)

(b) E@EREEBEERBX

(%)

(i)

i 5 3 i (48)

SMNEERETE ()

BRRE D

AEEEEmEXE AR
% BT - BT RTINS
B RERTKRBHZF
gEIKD

TRAVREAEEHRNAET
SERINEER T IRES%
ZHREE - bR BAALEE
B ABERINERERFTAZ
BURE - WHREEEHER]
BERIREE) 2 FHE - BUIRRED
W BEAINESTE 2 WM ARFR
EBIHE RINEERMAH - I
AR R 8 B ELHA B DA Bk
Z5% B8 - GURE DT EIE
HBHONEFIAR T AEBA 250
REBZER  MERZEE
REERRET 28%E - T7
EHRRETHLERINE HIR
BT R5% - UBANRE
RN © w78 T3 ARSI
BHIRAB TR 5% @ & H
B N B b a3 Ak AR 5 K AR
RezFE - M NEREER
BEe



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 3% ¥R AR Y R

For the year ended December 31, 2010
HZE2010F12A31H L FE

46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

46. @ T H @)

(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) 2REMEEBEZERBER
and policies (continued) (&)
(i)  Market risk (continued) (i) WHEERE (&)
Foreign currency risk management SN R B B HE (B
(continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued) BRE AT (88)
Impact of USD Impact of RMB
EX A % AR¥ZE
2010 2009 2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BETT BT
Profit or loss (note) &7 E 18 (Fii5E) 2,759 461 3,307 2,162
Impact of EUR Impact of JPY
Brz®g AEZ¥E
2010 2009 2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BRI BETT
Profit or loss (note) &Ik &1 (P 3F) 224 2,869 = 6
Impact of SGD Impact of MYD
FmEMEE - d 2
2010 2009 2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT ok e
Profit or loss (note)  Z2F|sk E518 (Ff =) 1,215 1,137 1,009 377
Impact of THB Impact of GBP
R EE REZY
2010 2009 2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BETR BT
Profit or loss (note) & F| &8 (M) 476 — 20 3

Note:

This is mainly attributable to the exposure
outstanding on receivables and payables
denominated in respective currencies at the end
of the reporting period.

BsE

TERENEEARE ABEE
BREMZ BRRENERERDA
[Tk e e
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

(i)

Market risk (continued)
Interest rate risk management

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk
relates primarily to variable-rate borrowings
(note 32). It is the Group’s policy to keep
its borrowings at floating rate of interests
so as to minimise the fair value interest rate
risk.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on
financial assets and financial liabilities are
detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group’s cash flow
interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on
the fluctuation of HIBOR arising from the
Group’s Hong Kong dollar denominated
borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to
interest rates for both derivatives and non-
derivative instruments at the end of the
reporting period. For variable-rate
borrowings, the analysis is prepared
assuming the amount of liability
outstanding at the end of the reporting
period was outstanding for the whole year.
A 50 basis point increase or decrease in
HIBOR is used when reporting interest rate
risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.
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TRlEEEIEEE
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 46. R T A (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) EmEKREEEERBE
and policies (continued) (&)
(i) Market risk (continued) (i) FEER ()
Interest rate risk management (continued) T & 2 b2 & FE (48)
Sensitivity analysis (continued) BRE DT (8B)

If interest rates had been 50 basis points
higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s profit for the year
ended December 31, 2010 would
decrease/increase by HK$101,000 (2009:
HK$90,000). This is mainly attributable to
the Group’s exposure to interest rates on
its variable rate borrowings.

The Group’s sensitivity to interest rates has
increased during the current period mainly
due to the increase in variable rate
borrowings.

Other price risks

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its investment in listed equity
securities. The management manages this
exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risk and return
profiles. The Group’s equity price risk is
mainly concentrated on equity securities
operating in logistics, manufacturing and
trading sectors quoted in the Stock
Exchange. In addition, the Group has
monitor the price risk and will consider
hedging the risk exposure should the need
arise.

fisf 7 =38 0, 2 50 & &
B MATE A EE AT
B BIAEEREZE2010F
12A31IBLFEZRFIES
A ANE#101,0007T
(20094 : & ¥90,0007T) °
FTERRAEEREYEEE
BEZAERBATE -

AREERAHRRERF R 2 8
RE LT T2AENIEEE
SEANFTER

E A (B 152 Bz

AEEBBN ETRAFSZ
REMEERABERERR - &
HE SR AR R K& E
WMo WEHEMERZRAR
rEBZBRAEREAREES
B R FTRE 2 S
BLERE HITERRINRAE
o It - AEEE ERER
FEfg - WERBERERZEREY
@ﬁ%ﬂh°
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives

and policies (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Market risk (continued)
Other price risks (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity
price risk at the reporting date.

If equity prices had been 5% higher/lower,
the Group’s profit for the year ended
December 31, 2010 would increase/
decrease by HK$900 (2009: HK$500). This
is mainly due to the changes in fair value
of other financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss.

The Group’s sensitivity to equity prices has
not changed significantly from prior year.

Credit risk

At December 31, 2010, the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk which will
cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties and financial guarantees
provided by the Group is arising from:

° the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated
in the consolidated statement of
financial position; and

° the amount of contingent liabilities in
relation to the financial guarantees
provided by the Group as disclosed
in note 42.
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 46. €@t T B (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) EmEKREEEERBE

and policies (continued) (&)

(ii) Credit risk (continued) (i) EERERE (E)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade
debt and debt investments at the end of
each reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited
because the counterparties are banks with
high credit ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies.

Other than concentration of credit risk on
liquid funds which are deposited with
several banks with high credit ratings, the
Group does not have any other significant
concentration of credit risk. Trade
receivables consist of a large number of
customers, spread across diverse industries
and geographical areas.

Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited #5217
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

(iii) Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk
management rests with the board of
directors, which has built an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the
management of the Group’s short, medium
and long-term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The Group
manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate reserves, banking facilities and
reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously
monitoring forecast and actual cash flows
and matching the maturity profiles of
financial assets and liabilities.

At December 31, 2010, the Group has
available unutilised overdrafts and short
and medium term bank loan facilities of
HK$12,137,000 (2009: HK$10,379,000) and
HK$93,557,000 (2009: HK$118,001,000)
respectively.

The following tables detail the Group’s
remaining contractual maturity for its
financial liabilities which are included in the
maturity analysis provided internally to the
key management personnel for the purpose
of managing liquidity risk. For non-
derivative financial liabilities, the tables
reflect the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date
on which the Group can be required to pay.
The tables include both interest and
principal cash flows.

For derivative instruments settle on a net
basis, undiscounted net cash outflows are
presented. Whereas they require gross
settlement, the undiscounted gross
outflows on these derivatives are shown in
the table.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

46. € R T B (&)

(b)

TREREREEERBE

€-)

(iii) HEE L EE

nBETRRERE&REE
REFEAE MEFETER
YREZRBE SRR EER
B UEEAKREZEH - $
HERARERRBESER
TR - AEEBBERTRR
B RITEERREEERE
TR
SEERRANERRSRE

Uk zhieREENSRAE

MERREE SRR

ZEHHAFRES -

M2010F 128318 * A& E
BERBAELT R EIEAH
RITEE D RIE% 12,137,000
7T (20094 : #&#10,379,000
7T) R A& #93,557,0007T
(20094F : % ¥ 118,001,000

Ji)

TRFAVAEEEREBE R
ZEFRZE
FIARAERRE 2EE A BIRH
FEERDECARAZ S
HBERDAT - BLIITES AR
F ZEMRRRIBEA
SEBERERZ &KF AHm

TEA2HABR -

Ems
BEZIFFRASRE -

MR BRENERAEZRER

=
EZ ©

AFEREEGE AT A
MmE @ @HHFTRFRER

c ERBRBREER  ZF
ITHETAZ SRR LAEE

ERAZS -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 S 2% MY =

For the year ended December 31, 2010
HZE2010F12A31H L FE

46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 46. €@ T &

L (%)

cREMREEEENBEER
(&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives (b)

and policies (continued)
(i) "BELEBREE (&)

(iii) Liquidity risk management (continued)

At December 31, 2010 M2010F12H31H

Weighted
average Total
effective undiscounted Total
interest rate Within 2to Over cash flows carrying
mEFH lyear  5years  Syears ¥FHEEBE  amount
EES 15 225%  S5ENE  RELE REAR
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
BT B¥Tn BT BETn AT
Non-derivative FTEERAE
financial liabilities
Trade and BHARREM
other payables JEfTIRSN — 347,691 - — 347,691 347,691
Bills payables ENZEE — 250588 - — 25588 25,588
Obligation under RERERH
finance leases 5.06 96 240 — 336 336
Amount due to a jointly JER — £
controlled entity EEIE = 2,585 — = 2,585 2,585
Amounts due to JEfT B A RIS0E
related companies — 441 — — 441 441
Convertible loan note ~ TRREHE 11.77 — 12,763 — 12,763 11612
Borrowings EX 4.00 201,332 — — 201,332 201,332
577,733 13,003 — 590,736 589,585
Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited #5217 (5£8) BR 2 A
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

(iii) Liquidity risk management (continued)

At December 31, 2009 (Restated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

46. £R T B (®)

(b) TREREEBRBERBEX

(%)

(iii) RBELEBEE (&)

MN20094F 12 A31R (F731))

Weighted
average Total
effective undiscounted Total
interest rate Within 210 QOver  cash flows carrying
MEFH 1 year 5 years Syears FHEEE amount
B A= B3 225 BENE  RELE EBELE
%  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
AT A%Tn AT AE%Tr  A%Trx
Non-derivative FTEERAE
financial liabilities
Trade and BHERREA
other payables FEFTERSR — 345340 = — 345340 345340
Bills payables FApES — 32,080 = — 3080 32,080
Obligation under BERERY
finance leases 5.06 88 308 — 39 39
Amounts due to ERERARNE
related companies — 959 — — 959 959
Borrowings BX 471 173543 2,012 3994 179549 179,549
552,010 2,320 3994 558324 558324
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follows:

(i) the fair value of financial assets and
financial liabilities (including derivative
instruments) with standard terms and
conditions and traded on active liquid
markets are determined with reference to
quoted market bid prices and ask prices
respectively; and

(ii)  the fair value of other financial assets and
financial liabilities (including derivative
instruments) are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models
based on discounted cash flow analysis
using prices or rates from observable
current market transactions as input. For
an option-based derivative, the fair value
is estimated using option pricing model (for
example, the Black-Scholes option pricing
model).

The directors consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

46. €@ T A

(c)

L (58)

TRTREZAFE

TREERERABZIAFEEZ
ATHAERE :

0]

(ii)

B ER RAGIAEE B
AMSEECeREERSR
aEEETEIR) 2AFE
Rl2EmEHsBAE
&Eﬁﬁﬁ#iv&

NI}
N

m
&
J55)

HtemEEREREBE (R
EOTETR) 2 R FETIRIE
—RRERREBER - BRI
RN REDTMETE @ LfE
AREABRRETNERHZ
BRI ABUR - 5
BITRBAE RER 2 OTET
AmME » RFELERELR
BEEBEN (Plnfa e o
FRHEERBETEEN)
&t o

EERREEUBHRRACHLE
REERTRAGBEMEREQF
RSk
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

Fair value of financial instruments
(continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of
financial instruments that are measured
subsequent to initial recognition at fair value,
grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree
to which the fair value is observable:

— Level 1 fair value measurements are those
derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities;

— Level 2 fair value measurements are those
derived from inputs other than quoted
prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices); and

— Level 3 fair value measurements are those
derived from valuation techniques that
include inputs for the asset or liability that
are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).
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46. R T B (@)

(c)

TR T A2 NFE @

REEMBRRRFERZ X FE

TRABE R FEENRERZE
ZEBTADN  IHREBEAFEZ
ABRREERRAR=—EER

— FEfRzAFEFEEHE

Rz BEEXREMILERT S
WECRERHEB) AFE

— FERZAFEFEERE
EXREEE BMER) M
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(c)

46. @ T H @)

Fair value of financial instruments c) EMIEBEZAFE®E

(continued)

REGEHBRRRFERZ 2 FE
it & (%)

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
(continued)

December 31, 2010

2010512H31H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FE1BHK FE2B &K EIBRK Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BET T BET T BET T
Financial assets EREE
Other financial assets HMAAFE
at fair value through STABEM
profit or loss PREE 17 = = 17
Available-for-sale THEECEREE
financial assets
Unlisted equity securities B Z RAE S — — 9,300 9,300
Total Bt 17 — 9,300 9,317
December 31, 2009
2009 12A31H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EIEBR B2 FIER =X
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT BT T BT T
Financial assets EREE
Other financial assets HEip AN FEERTA
at fair value through BRNeREE
profit or loss 10 — — 10
Available-for-sale MHEECSHEE
financial assets
Unlisted equity securities ~ EEFRE Z BRANEE — — 15,000 15,000
Total Bt 10 — 15,000 15,010

AREZWEEERBE2EH 2
W% -

There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2
in the current year.

Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited #5217 (5£8) BR 2 A
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Fair value of financial instruments
(continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value
measurements of financial assets

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended December 31, 2010
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46. € T B (@)

(c) TWMITHEZAFE®

FIERETHMEEL FEAEZY
3

Unquoted equity investments

On August 23, 2001, the Stock Exchange has
announced amendments to Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules, which has come into effect on September 1,
2001. In compliance with the amendments to the
Listing Rules and the announcement of the Stock
Exchange, the Company adopted a new share option
scheme (“2002 Scheme”) and terminated the share
option scheme, which was adopted pursuant to a
resolution passed on June 28, 2001, on May 30, 2002
pursuant to a resolution passed on that date. The
purpose of the 2002 Scheme is to provide incentives
or rewards to participants for their contribution to the
Group and enable the Group to recruit and retain high
calibre employees and attract human resources that
are valuable to the Group and any company in which
the Group holds any equity interest. The 2002 Scheme
will expire on the 10th anniversary of date of adoption.

EEEIRARE

2010 2009

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Opening balance FHEH 15,000 21,000
Gains or losses RTHIEERERZEE

recognised in:
— profit or loss — 8% (5,700) (6,000)
Closing balance R AR 9,300 15,000
47. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 47. B R RRESE

MR20016F8A23H @ BMRXFTEMIEE] £
MIFANFEL7Z W R2001F98 1 H#EA
e BHFE EMHRABIIRBRAMZA
AR » AR FIN2002495 8 30 H R4
BRI ([2002F5T8]))
MR R Z BB 2 RE R L 1IEF 2001
F6H28H BBRRREMN 2 BERIXE
FTE] o 2002F 51 8| B fE st B sk S R ) X
SEBEFEMZ2EAL  RARFERE
B RERGEEEHR BT - WRS|IE
£2A7%$%&Eﬂ$%%ﬁﬁ
AR D= < A BRIVEL B RE o 20024 5
2 B M E BT FEI0RF Em -
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BE2010512831B L EE
47. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 47. B R AR ET S (@)

Under the 2002 Scheme, the Board may at their BIE2002F 58] - EFSAMBEARAER

discretion grants options to the following participants BANF - ERB AR RERAE B

of the Company, its subsidiaries and any company in BEMBROERZ ARIBBZIATRE

which the Group holds any equity interest, to subscribe ATHREEBLRRE - UREAQEMR

for shares in the Company: 7 :

1. eligible employees, including Directors; or 1. AEWREE BRERES X

2. suppliers or customers; or 2. HEEXER %

3. any person or entity that provides research, 3. REMAR AZEEMRTSEZ
development or other technological support; or ERIALHAT 5 3

4. shareholders; or 4. PBRE ;=K

5. employees, partners or directors of any business 5. FREBEEAN - 6ELEEE
partners, joint venture partners, financial advisers A - SRR ROEEERE 2 A E
and legal advisers. B ABALES -

Options granted to a Director, chief executive or REBEARBRETARRAES 217

substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of their BAESFTERRABESTBEZIHEA

respective associates must be approved by the INEDs T MAKAKQRBIYIFERITES (T8

of the Company (excluding any INED who is the FERR BERAZEMBLIERITES)

grantee). HEHE o

Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited #5217 (5£8) BR 2 A
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47. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the 2002 Scheme and any other
share option schemes is not permitted to exceed 30%
of the issued share capital of the Company from time
to time. Subject to the above rule, the total number of
shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the 2002 Scheme and any other share option
schemes must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company at the adoption
date of the 2002 Scheme without prior approval from
the Company’s shareholders. Pursuant to an ordinary
resolution passed by the Company’s shareholder at
the special general meeting held on April 30, 2008,
the scheme limit of the 2002 Scheme was refreshed
so that the total number of shares of the Company
which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the 2002 Scheme must not exceed
10% of the issued share capital of the Company at
April 30, 2008. Options granted prior to April 30, 2008
under the 2002 Scheme were not counted for the
purpose of calculating the refreshed scheme limit of
the 2002 Scheme.

The number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted to any participant in any one year is not
permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any point of time, without prior approval
from the Company’s shareholders. Options granted to
a substantial shareholder, or an INED of the Company
or any of their respective associates under the 2002
Scheme and any other share option schemes in any
one year in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s issued
share capital or with a value, based on the closing
price of the shares of the Company at the date of each
grant, in excess of HK$5 million must be approved in
advance by the Company’s shareholders.
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47. B R RBRERTE ()

12 20024F 51 & o (E ] H b8 S5 SR LR R
A REZEERBRES R 2 KRR
B AXTHEBEEARATRHERETR
ARZ230% ° Bx LR RIGN - RGN R
AR F R AL - 1R20024 51 & M AEAA
H @R SRR 2 B RK
B R BINEE - a KA EHBERR
BIRBRAN20025F 5t 81 AR BITRAZ
10% ° RIBEAR 2 FARE 200844 A 30
RBETZRREINAE LEEZ —RE
BIRFER 20025 & 25T & EREK
B LBEATTR20025 & #5HX H 2 8
ST R T A] B 1T 2 AN B R AR BT
JSEBBARNFN2008F4A30BEHE
BITRAR210% ° RETH20025F 51 & 2
KRBT & ERRET - 70200854 A30H
Al E R IR20024F 51 &% th 2 18 5t R HE
TEFTEEA -

RGN DR RERIE - WMEMLE
AEMSEA TR 2 BERBRES R
Z 8B NS BB AR R AR R
ZBEETIRM Z1% o ERI1FRE2002
Fat &) M AR B ST R RT Sl [A A
NEIBREERR - BIYIFATEERE
EXREZHBBALTRLELRIRE -
BBARREBHITRAO0.1% » HILE L
EHARRBRMOKTEFEBEER
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47. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 47. BEARET 8 (=

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of
the date of grant upon payment of HK$1 per each
grant of options. The exercise period of the share
options granted under the 2002 Scheme shall be
determined by the Board when such options are
granted, provided that such period shall not end later
than 6 years from the date of grant. The subscription
price is determined by the Board and will not be less
than the higher of the closing price of the Company’s
shares on the date of grant, or the average closing
price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant, or the
nominal value of a Company’s share.

For the year ended December 31, 2010, the numbers
of share options granted and exercised were
17,000,000 and 41,250,000% respectively (2009:
23,100,000 and 6,098,000 respectively).

At December 31, 2010, the number of shares in
respect of which options had been granted and
remained outstanding under the 2002 Scheme was
95,140,000% (2009: 24,538,000) representing 4.15%
(2009: 5.45%) of the issued share capital of the
Company at that date.

SEATRERIR TELERBEE B

FEFF28H A R E L RAAE - WARNE
MEERBERANEBITIEARE -
RIF2002F 51 IR 2 BERBIEZTT
EHRNRESAESTERTE @ ETFE
REZSRORTELARERRES
ZE6FREM - RNABBEHEETER
EERBETRERTI=EP2&
2E  RREAHAR Tﬂxfﬁﬂ’ﬂﬁlﬁ
B REERLDBHASERZAEAR
7 1) Y T B (AR ?&FJ?EI#&EEFJT%T
FERE)  HARRKRMNEE

HZE2010F12A31BHIEFERA - ?‘%&

TEZELERBREEHE 55 A
17,000,0004% }41,250,0004%* (2009
#F 55 /423,100,0008% %6,098,000
i) °

201012 A318 - EREIE2002F 5+
B3R e 1M R T TIE 2 1B ST R AE 2 AR ID X
B /&95,140,000/%* (20094F : 24,538,000
BB  EARRAREBRZEBITRAZ
4.15% (20094 : 5.45%) °
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47. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 47. B RESE ()

194

The fair value of the options granted in 2007, 2009
and 2010 measured at the date of grant on June 11,
2007, August 9, 2007, September 25, 2007, June 12,
2009, November 11, 2009 and July 7, 2010 were
approximately HK$172,000, HK$322,000,
HK$1,659,000, HK$1,493,000, HK$178,000 and
HK$793,000 respectively and it had been expensed
as share-based payments during 2007, 2009 and
2010. Options were priced using the Binomial or Black-
Scholes models. The following significant assumptions
were used to derive the fair value using the Binomial
or Black-Scholes option pricing models at the dates of
grant:

AR B EI2007F6 A11H ~ 200748 A
9H - 2007498250 - 200956AH12
H - 2009511 A11H &2010%7 A7t
H 220074 - 20094 K 2010F & HEL
RRENRFED RIH AEE172,000
JC ~ B #322,0007T * B ¥ 1,659,000
JT ~ 78 1,493,0007T * 78 #178,0007T
N &#793,000t © MZEFLBER
20074 ~ 20094F N 20104 & A FI1E AR
BAEERNRZAL - BERRETE
AZEAKB IR « FRITEXNEE -
LTARBREBHER-EAKAN
T ATRETELRBRECEENGTER

FEAZENBRK :

June 11,  August 9, September 25, June 12, November 11, July 7,

2007 2007 2007 2009 2009 2010

Date of share options granted 2007% 2007% 2007% 2009% 2009% 2010%
RUBEARERS 6A11H 8A9H 9A25H 68128 11A11H 7A7H
Granted date share price (HK$) ~ RHBHzBRHER(EET) 080 1.23 0.97 0.295 0.78 0.135
Exercise price (HK$) 7B (B%T) 1.00 1.278 1.044 0.295 0.78 0.15
Expected volatility (%) B E (%) 83.12 102.30 113.75 111.88 107.30 88.14
Contractual option life (years) & HBLDREFH (F) 6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00
Dividend yield (%) REE (%) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Risk-free interest rate (%) EERFIE (%) 4,088 3.920 3.791 2.493 1.842 1.735

Where relevant, the expected life used in the model
has been adjusted, based on management’s best
estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise
restrictions (including the probability of meeting market
conditions attached to the option), and behavioural
considerations. The expected volatility is based on the
historical share price volatility.

In 2010, the weighted average share price at the share
price at the date of exercise price for share options
exercised during the year was HK$0.182.

FEEABLT  ERBEEE 2 REMR
AtmARZEAAER 2 BHFEH - U
RRT A EEE - ITERS (BEESEE
RBAEFMI TS IR AT BRI R1TRE
BREzZE - RHREERE LK
EREMAE °

R2010%F - TEBRLRBEE B 2B
Z I BB BB #E0.1827T ©
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#HZE2010612A31HIEFE

47. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The options outstanding at December 31, 2010 had
the weighted average exercise price of HK$0.75 (2009:
HK$0.75) and weighted average remaining contractual

life of 4.53 years (2009: 4.53 years).

The following table discloses details and movements
of the Company’s share options granted under the

47. B ERARETE @

2010512 A31 B A AR T{E & R AE
Z It 19772 (E AB#0.757T (20099
: /8#%0.757T) - MAINEFHERTEHF

H A4 534 (20094 : 4.534) o

TREBENREFA - ARERIZFE200245 51
FRETRE (BRES) B 2BER

2002 Scheme held by employees (including Directors) PR R 2 515 ¢
during the year:
2010
Exercise price
i%E
Outstanding at Outstanding at
January 1, December 31, Before After
2010 Granted Exercised Lapsed  Adjustment 2010* adjustment* adjustment
R2010% during during during during  }2010% REM EES Y
Date of grant 1A1R the year the year the year the year* 12A31R Exercisable period HK$ HKS
RiHAH HRATE  FARE ERfifE ERAN  FANER HAGE  AREH BET BB
June 11, 2007 660,000 — (294,000)* — 1,464,000 1,830,000 June 11,2007 - 0.8333 0.1667
June 10, 2013
2007%6A11A 20074564118
F201356A108
August 9, 2007 624,000 — (180,000 (180,000 1,776,000 2,040,000  August9, 2007 - 1.0650 0.2130
August 8, 2013
200768A9H 200748A9A
F201358A8H
September 25, 2007 7,064,000 — (1,376,000 (1,620,000 22,752,000 26,520,000  September 25,2007 -  0.8700 0.1740
(300,000)% September 24, 2013
200749A25A 20074597 25H
Z2013F9A248
June 12, 2009 15,190,000 — (2,390,000 (1,500,000 51,200,000 43,500,000  June 12, 2009 - 0.2950 0.0590
(19,000,000) June 11, 2015
2009%6A12A 2009567 12A
22015564118
November 11, 2009 1,000,000 = (150,000)* — 3400000 4,250,000  November 11,2009 - 0.7800 0.1560
November 10, 2015
2009F11 7118 2009F11A11R
Z2015%11410A
July 7, 2010 — 17,000,000 — — — 17,000,000  July7,2011- 0.1500
July 6, 2017
201067R78 2011%7R78
E201747A6R
Grand Total 24,538,000 17,000,000  (4,390,000)* (3,300,000)* 80,592,000 95,140,000
& (19,300,000}

Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited #5217 (5£8) BR 2 A
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Date of grant
RHAH
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47. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Granted
during
the year
EREH

47. BEFA R ESTE @)

Exercisable period

s

Exercise

price
e
HK$
BT

June 11, 2007
2007E6A118

August 9, 2007
200748A9H

September 25, 2007
2007897258

June 12, 2009
200956712

November 11, 2009
200951178118

22,100,000

1,000,000

June 11, 2007 - June 10, 2013
20076118 %2013%6410A

August 9, 2007 - August 8, 2013
2007E8R9H 220133 A8H

September 25, 2007 - September 24, 2013
200797258 £ 201397 24A

June 12, 2009 - June 11, 2015
2009564 12AF201556A11H

November 11, 2009 - November 10, 2015
2009F11A11BZ2015%117108

0.8333

1.0650

0.8700

0.2950

0.7800

Grand Total
@it

23,100,000
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HZE2010F12A31H L FE
47. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 47. B ERARET & (@)
Details of the share options held by the Directors RSB AEEFE B LRREFS
included in the above table are as follows: m
2010
Exercise price
e
Outstanding at Outstanding at
January 1, December 31, Before After
2010 Granted Exercised Lapsed  Adjustment 2010* adjustment* adjustment
H20105 during during during during 120105 BEH BEH
Date of grant 1A1R the year the year the year the year* 12A31R Exercisable period HK$ HK$
Rt A W AT ERRM ERfTR EREY  FANERY  HAGRY  ORE BT RETL
June 11, 2007 540,000 — (264,000)* — 1,104,000 1,380,000  June 11,2007 - 0.8333 0.1667
June 10, 2013
2007%6A11A 2007567118
Z22013%6A108
September 25, 2007 4,200,000 — — — 16,800,000 21,000,000  September 25,2007~ 08700 0.1740
September 24, 2013
2007%9A25A 2007594 25H
Z2013F9A824R
June 12, 2009 12,200,000 —  (1,800,000)* — 41,600,000 42,500,000  June 12,2009 - 0.2950 0.0590
(9,500,000)* June 11, 2015
2009%6A12A 2009564128
E2015%6A11R
November 11, 2009 500,000 — — — 2,000,000 2500000  November 11,2009 - 0.7800 0.1560
November 10, 2015
2009F11A118 2009€11A11R
Z2015%11A10A
July 7, 2010 — 10,500,000 — — — 10,500,000  July7,2011- 0.1500
July 6, 2017
201057R7R 201147878
E2017%7R6R
Grand Total 17,440,000 10,500,000  (2,064,000)* — 61,504,000 77,880,000
&z (9,500,000)*

Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited #5217 (5£8) BR 2 A
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HZFE2010412A31H (L
47. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 47. B R R ETE )
2009
Outstanding Outstanding
at January 1, at December 31, Exercise
2009 Granted Exercised Lapsed 2009 price
120095 during during during 120095 e
Date of grant 1A1R the year the year the year 12A318  Exercisable period HK$
RHAH MATTE EREH ERfE ERER MATE  TEH BET
June 11, 2007 600,000 — — (60,000) 540,000 June 11, 2007 - June 10, 2013 0.8333
2007E6A118 20076/ 118 Z2013F6 7108
September 25, 2007 5,244,000 — —  (1,044,0000 4,200,000  September 25, 2007 - September 24, 2013 0.8700
2007%9R 258 20079 25H £ 2013497 24A
June 12, 2009 — 12,200,000 — — 12,200,000  June 12,2009 -June 11, 2015 0.2950
2009F6 7128 200967 1282015564 11H
November 11, 2009 — 500,000 — — 500,000 November 11, 2009 - November 10, 2015 0.7800
2009%11A811H 200911 81182201511 8108
Grand Total 5,844,000 12,700,000 —  (1,104,0000 17,440,000
@it
& Before adjustment for the share subdivision which was * ARFL201052 A 17 B &K 2 B p il
effective on February 17, 2010. HFAE -
#  After adjustment for the share subdivision which was #  EH2010F28 178 Ak 2 BRMH T
effective on February 17, 2010. HAE -
48. DIVIDEND 48. R E
No dividend was paid or proposed for 2010 and 2009, 20104 K 20094F £ (£ )R B sk itk
nor has any dividend been proposed since the end of AR E - BFRERBINEE KR
the reporting period. IR B o
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B Z2010F 128310 L FE
49. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 49. T EMWEB R A
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are ARRIEEMBRARIZFHBUOT ¢
as follows:
Percentage
of equity Issued and
Place of interest fully paid
incorporation/ attributable share capital or
registration to the Group registered capital
Name of subsidiaries R/ rEEELE2 EBRORAR Principal activities
i) PNCECE aEff it B RERDL RA M E A TEXRH
Direct Subsidiary
EENBAR
Wo Kee Hong (B.V.1.) British Virgin 100 30,000 shares of Investment holding
Limited Islands US$0.01 each RE R
RERLHE BREEX£001TZ
f%173.30,0008%
Indirect Subsidiaries
BERELR
Auto ltalia Limited Hong Kong 754 10,000 shares of Trading of cars and
REAEERAA BB HK$10 each related accessories
SREEERIOTL and provision of car
F% 17 10,0008% repairing services
BEREREMEY
R AERERTE
Common Joy Limited Hong Kong 100 1 share of Property holding
EEERAR e HK$1 each MERE
BREEBSITL
Rfn 18%
Dalian Auto ltalia Car Mainland China 75.4 Registered and Trading of cars
Trading Co., Ltd. R i fully paid capital of BEAE
REREAEES RMB5,000,000
ARAT AfMkEHREAR
AR #5,000,00075
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49. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ke G

For the year ended December 31, 2010
HZE2010F12A318LFE

49. T EM B QR (@)

Percentage
of equity Issued and
Place of interest fully paid
incorporation/ attributable share capital or
registration to the Group registered capital
Name of subsidiaries R/ rEEELE2 BRIRAR Principal activities
WEARERE 1 it B RERAL BRA R E A TEXR
Indirect Subsidiaries (continued)
BENELE (8)
Italian Motors Hong Kong 75.4 60,000 shares of Investment holding
(Sales & Service) BB HK$10 each BEER
Limited BREEESIOTZ
B AERRAR 7 1760,0008%
Noble Brand Hong Kong 90.0 1 share of HK$1 each Trading of yachts and
Investments Limited e SREGEERITL accessories
NEEERA A B1n 1% BB KA
Rise Champ Limited Hong Kong 100 1 share of HK$1 each Property holding
BB BREGBEELIT NERR
Bin 18k
Technorient Limited Hong Kong 75.4 461,687 shares of Investment holding
LN BB HK$100 each REZER
BREEAKL00TZ
B 1n 461,687
Wo Kee Administration Hong Kong 100 1 share of HK$1 each Treasury and
Limited BB SREBEE%ITL administration
M EBERRA 15 1% EBERITBER



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B HRR M

For the year ended December 31, 2010
HZE2010F12A31H L FE

49. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 49. T EME 2 A (5

Percentage
of equity Issued and
Place of interest fully paid
incorporation/ attributable share capital or
registration to the Group registered capital
Name of subsidiaries Bt/ rEEELE: EBROREE Principal activities
WEARER at fi it B RERDL R AN 2 1 A TEXHR
Indirect Subsidiaries (continued)
BEMELR (8)
Wo Kee Hong Singapore 100 4,500,000 ordinary Distribution of home
Distribution Pte Ltd i shares of S$1 each audio and car audio
BREEFMEELTZ  equipment and
Ti@AR1H4,500,0008  accessories
PHXAEER
BB EEM RELH
Wo Kee Hong Malaysia 100 1,000,000 ordinary Distribution of audio-
Electronics Sdn Bhd SXRAD shares of RM$1 each equipment
BREES®IT DT ERE
TR 17 1,000,0008%
Wo Kee Hong Finance Hong Kong 100 2 shares of HK$1 each  Finance and money
Limited e SREGEEKITL lending
NEEXHMBERAR Bfn 28k BBRESE
Wo Kee Hong Limited Hong Kong 100 10,000 non-voting Distribution of air-
N BXARRA £ deferred shares of conditioning
HK$1,000 each and products,
2 ordinary shares of audio-visual
HK$1,000 each equipment,
SREBEEKL000T2  caraudio and
ERERETKR M other electrical
10,000k k. R AEE appliances
7 #1,0007T 2 AHERER  ¥E
Eamkin 2k RE-A E%%

EiE

g}n
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49. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

49. T EM B QR (@)

Percentage
of equity Issued and
Place of interest fully paid
incorporation/ attributable share capital or
registration to the Group registered capital
Name of subsidiaries R/ rEEELE2 BRIRAR Principal activities
WELAREHR o fff it B BEEA R A i & A TEER
Indirect Subsidiaries (continued)
BENELE (8)
Wo Kee Hong Singapore 94.8 6,200,000 shares of Distribution of
Marketing Pte Ltd 3N S$1 each air-conditioning
SREEFMEEIT  products
1 176,200,000 DIEERER
Wo Kee Hong Trading Malaysia 100 5,100,000 ordinary Distribution of audio-
Sdn Bhd BRED shares of RM$1 each visual equipment
SREESEITZ DT ER
38 M 175,100,0008%
LEFB SR Mainland China 51.0 Registered and fully paid  Distribution and
BERAT B A i capital of retail of fashion
US$3,000,000 apparels
it k2R PHRTERE
& ARZE%3,000,0007T
M SEE(LS) Mainland China 51.0 Registered and fully paid  Distribution of fashion
BHERAT m B A 3t capital of apparels
US$2,000,000 DR
it k2
EARZE%£2,000,0007T
HRRERE Mainland China 75.4 Registered and fully paid  Trading of cars
BHERDA R A capital of BEAE
RMB10,000,000
it &2
BRARK
10,000,0007T
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended December 31, 2010
HZE2010F12A31H L FE

49. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 49. T EME 2 A (5

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities FRBENBRRBITEMNERES °
at the end of the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company EEZRAE LRAFINE RSB EE S
which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally affect BEBEZXE ZARAMBAR - &
the results or assets of the Group. To give details of I EMMBARFE EFARABM
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the HRAZBEREEBRR TR

Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

50. PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATE 50. X EBE A T)
Percentage
of equity
Place of interest
incorporation/ attributable Issued and
registration to the Group fully paid
Name of associate R/ AE@EEL 2 share capital Principal activities
BenmER 1A 3tk B RERDL ERTRMERK TEEHR
China Premium Lifestyle USA 498 24,534,491 shares of Investment holding
Enterprise, Inc. XM common stock of REER
US$0.005 each
BREBEX£0.0057T2
i FPt 24,534,491 0%
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SCHEDULE OF GROUP PROPERTIES

SEYEXR

For the year ended December 31, 2010
HZE2010F12A318LFE

(A)

(B)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Address Existing use

b 3B BRERZ

(A) REW=

Category of Percentage held
lease by the Group
RA¥R FAEEFFEIL

Units A, B and C on Level 24, Commercial
New Times Plaza,

No. 42 Wenwu Lu,

Xinhua Da Dao,

Qingyang District,

Chengdu,

Mainland China

FEMIE [EES
AT S F R

T EE K8 SR B 4255

R ES

24FZA - BRCEML

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

Medium-term lease 100%

4

(B) FEHEM R

Category of Percentage held
Address Existing use lease by the Group
i Bh RERE RAER FEEFFEIHL
Units 1912, Commercial Medium-term lease 100%
1915-1918 on Level 19,
Bright China Chang An Building,
No. 7 Jianguomennei Da Jie,
Dongcheng District,
Beijing, Mainland China
H B L R R R [EES & HA
BEPAXRE75R
HERLTREEIE

1912 ~ 1915%F 1918% fi;



SHARE OPTION INFORMATION
BARABEEFR

The following table discloses movement in the Company’s T &RFEEA R AR E2002F 512l B 2B %
share options granted under the 2002 Scheme for the year ~ RIXER2010F 12831 H I FE 2 & H)iE

ended December 31, 2010: o
Exercise price
(K3
Outstanding at Outstanding at
January 1, December 31, Before After
2010 Granted  Exercised Lapsed ~ Adjustment 2010 adjustment* adjustment?
R2010% during during during during ~ }42010% aERr FER
Eligible person Date of grant 1A1H the year the year theyear  theyeart  12A31R  Exercisable period HK$ HK$
RERAL REAH AR ERRE FRAR FRAN FANEERY  HROEY  AKE AT AR
Dr. Richard Man Fai LEE June 11, 2007 264,000 — (264,000 — — —  June 11,2007 - 08333 0.1667
(Director) June 10, 2013
FYERT 2007564117 20074564117
(%) E013F6A108
June 12, 2009 2,900,000 —(1,000,000)* — 7,600,000 —  June 12,2009 - 02950 0.0590
(9,500,000)¢ June 11, 2015
200967127 2009F6A127
215%6A11R
July 7, 2010 — 6,000,000 - - — 6000000  July7,2011- 0.1500
July 6, 2017
21067478 201147478
ENI757A6AH
3,164,000 6,000,000 (1,264,000)* — 7,600,000 6,000,000
(9,500,000)¢
Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE June 11, 2007 120,000 - - — 480,000 600,000 June 11,2007 - 08333 0.1667
(Director) June 10, 2013
£y 200764117 2007%6A117
(%) ZF2013F6A10R
September 25, 2007 144,000 — — — 576,000 720,000 September 25, 2007 - 08700  0.1740
September 24, 2013
200749425 200749425
2013F9A24A
June 12, 2009 2,900,000 - - — 11,600,000 14,500,000  June 12,2009 - 02950 0.0590
June 11, 2015
200967127 200964127
F015F6A11R
July 7, 2010 — 1,000,000 - — — 1,000000  July7,2011- 0.1500
July 6, 2017
21067478 01147478
201757468

3,164,000 1,000,000 =

12,656,000 16,820,000
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BrRREESR

SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

Exercise price

e
Outstanding at Outstanding at
January 1, December 31, Before After
2010 Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Adjustment 2010 adjustment*  adjustment®
R2010% during during during duing ~ R2010% BER REY
Eligible person Date of grant 1R1R the year the year theyear  theyeart  12A31A Exercisable period HK$ HKS$
RERAL RAAH HATE  ERRE  ERAR FRAN A0SR HRERY G AT AR
Mr. Tik Tung WONG September 25, 2007 3,480,000 — - — 13920,000 17,400,000  September 25, 2007 - 08700  0.1740
(Director) September 24, 2013
ThREE 2007459A25R 2007%59A25R
(%) EN13F9524A
June 12, 2009 2,900,000 — (500,000 — 9,600,000 12,000,000  June 12,2009 - 02950 0.0590
June 11, 2015
200964128 200964128
E01556411A
July7,2010 — 3,500,000 - - — 3500000  July7,2011- 0.1500
July 6, 2017
21067478 011%7478
EN175776H
6,380,000 3,500,000  (500,000)* — 23,520,000 32,900,000
Mr. Boon Seng TAN September 25, 2007 204,000 - — - 816,000 1,020,000  September 25, 2007 - 08700 0.1740
(Director) September 24, 2013
Ly eas 2007%9725A 2007%9725A
(2%) 013895248
June 12, 2009 300,000 — (300,000 — — —  June 12,2009 02950  0.0590
June 11, 2015
2009%6412A 200956412
E201556411A
504,000 — (300,000 - 816,000 1,020,000
Mr. Ying Kwan CHEUNG June 11, 2007 60,000 - - - 240,000 300,000 June 11,2007 - 08333 0.1667
(Director) June 10, 2013
RESEE 2007%6A411R 2007%6A411R
(%) E013F67108
September 25, 2007 204,000 — - — 816,000 1,020,000  September 25, 2007 - 08700  0.1740
September 24, 2013
200759A25R 2007%59A25R
E201359424A
June 12, 2009 300,000 - - — 1200000 1,500,000  June 12,2009 - 02950 0.0590
June 11, 2015
200964128 200964128
E01586411A
564,000 — — — 225,000 2,820,000




SHARE OPTION INFORMATION
BARABEEFR

Exercise price

e
Outstanding at Outstanding at
January 1, December 31, Before After
2010 Granted  Exercised Lapsed ~ Adjustment 2010 adjustment* adjustment?
R2010% during during during during ~ R2010% aERr FER
Eligible person Date of grant 1A1A the year the year theyear  theyeart  12A31R  Exercisable period HK$ HK$
RERAL REAH AR  FRRE  FROR FRAN FANAEY  HRTRY  ARE AT AT
Mr. Peter Pi Tak YIN November 11, 2009 500,000 — — — 2000000 2,500,000  November 11,2009 - 0.7800  0.1560
(Director) November 10, 2015
FELE 2009114117 2009114118
(%) E015%11410A8
500,000 - - — 2,000,000 2,500,000
Ms. Kam Har YUE June 11, 2007 96,000 - - — 384000 480,000 June 11,2007 - 08333 0.1667
(Director) June 10, 2013
REBRL 2007%6A117 2007%6A117
(%) ZF2013F6A10R
September 25, 2007 168,000 — — — 672,000 840,000 September 25, 2007 - 08700  0.1740
September 24, 2013
200749425 2007494257
2013F9A24A
June 12, 2009 2,900,000 - - — 11,600,000 14,500,000  June 12,2009 - 02950 0.0590
June 11, 2015
200967127 2009F6A12R
215F6A11R
3,164,000 - - — 12,656,000 15,820,000
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BrRREESR

SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

Exercise price

fTE
Qutstanding at Qutstanding at
January 1, December 31, Before After
2010 Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Adjustment 2010 adjustment*  adjustmentt
R2010% during during during during  #2010% EETI 1
Eligible person Date of grant 1R1R the year the year theyear  theyear* 12A31H  Exercisable period HK$ HK$
RERAL REAH HATR  FRRE FRAR FAXY FANER  BRORY  ORE A¥r  AEn
Continuous contract June 11, 2007 120,000 — (30,000)* — 360,000 450,000 June 11, 2007 - 08333 0.1667
employees June 10, 2013
HEANET 0076411 20746A118
E2013564108
August 9, 2007 624,000 — (180,000  (180,000) 1776000 2,040,000  August9, 2007 - 1.0650 02130
August 8, 2013
2007%8A9A 2007%8A9A
E013F8A8H
September 25, 2007 2,864,000 — (1,376,000 (1,620,000 5952,000 5,520,000  September 25, 2007 - 08700 0.1740
(300,000 September 24, 2013
20079825 200749258
E013595248
June 12, 2009 2,990,000 — (590,000 (1,500,000 9,600,000 1,000,000  June 12,2009 - 02950  0.0590
(9,500,000)¢ June 11, 2015
200967128 200967128
EN15F6711A
November 11, 2009 500,000 —  (150,000% — 1400000 1,750,000  November 11, 2009 - 07800 0.1560
November 10, 2015
2009F11A11H 2009F11A11H7
E015811A108
July7,2010 — 6,500,000 - - — 6500000  July7,2011- 0.1500
July 6, 2017
21067478 11%7878
EN175776H
7,098,000 6,500,000 (2,326,000 (3,300,000 19,088,000 17,260,000
(9,800,000)¢
24538000 17,000,000  (42390,000)* (3,300,000 80,592,000 95,140,000
(19,300,000)¢

* Before adjustment for the share subdivision which was *
effective on February 17, 2010.

# After adjustment for the share subdivision which was

effective on February 17, 2010.

#

AFM2010F2 1 7B AR Z R m i 4iVE L A

= o

EL2010F 2 A 17 B &£ 3z B 0 4 4 1 i 38

B

o
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